
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR
MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL
OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO
ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, MAY 5, 2015 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
15-05-01 designating Pinal Canyon Road and Hermosa
Vista Road as Country Dirt Roads and accepting the roads
into the Gila County Maintained Roadway System.
(Steve Sanders)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
15-05-02 renewing a non-exclusive, non-public water
franchise for the Bonita Creek Land and Homeowners'
Association (BCLHA) for an additional 15 years, from May
5, 2015, to May 4, 2030.  (Marian Sheppard) 

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Order No.
LL-15-01, a liquor license application submitted by Michael
A. Dahling for a new Series 12 restaurant license for Old
County Inn located in Pine, Arizona.  (Marian Sheppard)

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to thank the Military Order
of the Purple Heart for the important work they are doing
on behalf of American Veterans and adopt Proclamation
2015-08 proclaiming Gila County as a Purple Heart
County.  (Michael Pastor)

 



 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to accept a donation from
Capstone Mining Corp - Pinto Valley Operations to the Gila
County Recycling & Landfill Department in the amount of
$2,500 to purchase parts for the County's Refurbished Bike
Program.  (Sharon Winters)

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution 15-05-03 which authorizes the execution of an
Intergovernmental Service Agreement between the Gila
County Sheriff's Office and Tonto Apache Tribe for housing
detainees at the Gila County Detention Facility for an initial
term to begin once the Agreement has been fully executed
and shall end on May 1, 2017.  (Matt Solberg)

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Sheriff's
Office electronic submission of a Revised 2015 State
Homeland Security Grant Program Application to the State
of Arizona, Department of Homeland Security for a
communications upgrade in the amount of $55,292. 
(Keith Thompson)

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No.
2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
DE14-055408) between the Arizona Department of
Economic Security and the Gila County Board of
Supervisors to increase the total contract amount from
$4,826,020 to $4,876,020, of which said funds are utilized
for the Gila/Pinal Local Workforce Investment Area per the
requirements of the Workforce Investment Act. 
(Malissa Buzan)

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Lease
Agreement between Payson Unified School District (PUSD)
and the Gila County Community Services Division, Gila
Employment and Special Training Program, whereby the
PUSD will lease a building at 501 S. McLane, Payson,
Arizona, to Gila County at a cost of $500 per month for use
as an adult day treatment center to provide services to



as an adult day treatment center to provide services to
clients enrolled in the Arizona Department of
Developmental Disabilities Program, effective June 1, 2015,
through June 1, 2016.   (Malissa Buzan)

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve an
Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)
No. 022414 between Gila County and the City of Globe to
extend the IGA for a one-year period, whereby upon request
from the City of Globe, the County will provide excess
granite resurfacing material on occasion and when
available during the time period of March 18, 2015, to
March 17, 2016, for use in the City's park recreational
facilities.  (Jeff Hessenius)

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted
for Request for Proposals No. 110514 for janitorial service
in southern Gila County; award to the lowest, most
responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the
Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning
bidder, for an amount not to exceed $92,036.86 per year,
unless carpet cleaning (an additional $0.18 per square foot)
and stripping and waxing floors (an additional $0.25 per
square foot) services are required. 
(Jeff Hessenius and Steve Stratton)

 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 040615 - Colcord
Road Paving Project. 
(Jeff Hessenius and Steve Stratton)

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any member of the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval to adopt Resolution No. 15-05-04 authorizing Gila



A.   Approval to adopt Resolution No. 15-05-04 authorizing Gila
County Probation Department's participation in the FY
2015-2016 Family Counseling Program through the Arizona
Supreme Court, Administrative Office of the Courts,
Juvenile Justice Services Division, and certifying that a
matching fund requirement of $1,719 for the Program will
be provided by the County.

 

B.   Approval of Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental
Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-040496) between Gila
County and the Arizona Department of Health Services to
continue to provide HIV care and support services to Gila,
Apache and Navajo Counties for the period of April 1, 2015,
through March 31, 2016, in the amount of $217,613.00.

 

C.   Approval of the SNAP (Supplemental Nutrition Assistance
Program) Community Organization Partnership Application
for federal fiscal year 2016 between the Arizona Community
Action Association and the Gila County Community
Services Division, Community Action Program which, if
approved, will allow Gila County to continue to be a SNAP
Organization Partner and be reimbursed for expenses in an
estimated amount of $9,568.95 for the period of October 1,
2015, through September 30, 2016.

 

D.   Approval of Modification No. 4 to Cooperative Law
Enforcement Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004 between
the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the U.S. Department of
Agriculture, Forest Service to decrease the funding amount
from $75,980 to $74,800, incorporate some administrative
changes, and extend the performance period to December
31, 2015.

 

E.   Approval of a Letter of Agreement (Number 2015-04)
between the U.S. Department of Justice Drug Enforcement
Administration and the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the
amount of $20,000 for the period of January 1, 2015,
through December 31, 2015, in order to provide overtime
pay related to the Domestic Cannabis



Eradication/Suppression Program.  
 

F.   Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio
Permit submitted by Randy D. Nations to temporarily
extend the premises where liquor is permitted to be sold at
the Sidewinders Tavern & Grill, which is located in Pine,
Arizona for an event to be held on May 9, 2015.

 

G.   Approval of the following appointments to the Gila County
Cooperative Extension Advisory Board:  1) Reappointment
of Clark Richens for another two-year term of office,
retroactive from January 1, 2015, through December 31,
2016; and 2) appointment of Mike Burket to fill a vacancy
on said Board beginning May 5, 2015 through December
31, 2016.

 

H.   Approval of a request submitted by the 2015 Junior Class
of Globe High School to waive fees for the use of the Gila
County Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall for the School's
Junior/Senior Prom that was held on April 25, 2015.

 

I.   Acknowledgment of the appointments of Robert McKusick
and Lynn Hocking to the Canyon Water Improvement
District Governing Board, terms ending December 31, 2018.

 

J.   Acknowledgment of the March 2015 monthly activity report
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

 

K.   Acknowledgment of the March 2015 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

 

L.   Acknowledgment of the March 2015 monthly activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's
Office.

 

M.   Approval of the April 21, 2015, and April 28, 2015, Board
of Supervisors' meeting minutes.



 

N.   Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the
weeks of April 7, 2015, April 14, 2015, April 21, 2015, and
April 28, 2015.

 

O.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have
been approved by the County Manager for the weeks of
April 6, 2015, to April 10, 2015; and April 13, 2015 to April
17, 2015.

 

P. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the
weeks of April 28, 2015, and May 5, 2015.

 

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of
Supervisors on any issue within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors
may respond to criticism made by those who have
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or
may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and
the County Manager may present a brief summary of
current events. No action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   

ARF-3124     Public Hearing      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Deputy Director 
Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Deputy Director, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 15-05-01 designating Pinal Canyon Road and Hermosa Vista Road as
Country Dirt Roads.

Background Information
On February 16, 2010, Gila County Public Works received a citizens' petition to
establish Pinal Canyon Road and Hermosa Vista Road as County Dirt Roads.

Evaluation
The roads are approximately 2200 feet in length and provide access to 11 properties.
The roads meet the requirements of Gila County Country Dirt Road Policy ENG03-04.

Conclusion
Easements from property owners along the roads have been granted to the County.
Providing maintenance as described in the Country Dirt Road Policy will be a benefit
to both the County and the residents along the road.  Providing maintenance on these
roads will not reduce the level of service to other roads in the Gila County Maintained
Roadway System.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Deputy Director recommends that the Board adopt
Resolution No. 15-05-01.
 
 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-05-01 designating Pinal
Canyon Road and Hermosa Vista Road as Country Dirt Roads and accepting the roads
into the Gila County Maintained Roadway System.
(Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Resolution No. 15-05-01
Pinal Canyon and Hermosa Vista Country Dirt Road Easements



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-05-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
DESIGNATING PINAL CANYON ROAD AND HERMOSA VISTA ROAD AS 
COUNTRY DIRT ROADS AND ACCEPTING SAID ROADS INTO THE GILA 
COUNTY COUNTRY DIRT ROAD MAINTENANCE SYSTEM. 

                      
WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of A.R.S. §28-6701, the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors may establish, alter, or abandon highways within its jurisdiction; and,  
 

WHEREAS, a petition has been signed by ten or more resident taxpayers to designate Pinal 
Canyon Road and Hermosa Vista Road as Country Dirt Roads and to accept said roads into the Gila 
County Country Dirt Road Maintenance System; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the petition has been presented to the Gila County Board of Supervisors; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a date for a public hearing on the petition has been set and preceded by advertising 

once a week for two consecutive weeks in the official County newspaper; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Pinal Canyon Road and Hermosa Vista Road meet the requirements of Gila County 

Public Works Policy Number ENG 03-04 on the establishment of Country Dirt Roads;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors that Pinal Canyon Road and Hermosa Vista Road are hereby declared Country Dirt Roads 
and are accepted for maintenance into the Gila County Country Dirt Road Maintenance System as 
prescribed by Gila County Public Works Policy ENG 03-04. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of May 2015. 
 
 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
____________________________  ________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board 
 
     
Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Bryan B. Chambers  
Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief 





















   
ARF-3140     Public Hearing      2. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Resolution No. 15-05-02 authorizing the renewal of a 15-year
water franchise to Bonita Creek Land and Homeowners' Association.

Background Information
On April 7, 2015, the Board of Supervisors accepted an Application for
Water Franchise that was submitted by Ken Nagy, Water Director for
Bonita Creek Land and Homeowners' Association (BCLHA), to renew
BCLHA's water franchise for an additional 15 years.  This water system
has been in operation since 1956 when it was originally established as the
Rancho Bonita Water Company and later transferred to BCLHA on
February 3, 1992, per Gila County Resolution No. 92-2-1. 

The BCLHA has successfully been operating the Bonita Creek Water
Company and providing water to the Bonita Creek community since
1991.  The Bonita Creek Water system is located northeast of Payson,
Arizona, and it presently serves less than 50 customers in the Bonita
Creek community.

Evaluation
Per Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S.) § 40-283 (E), the Board of
Supervisors has given public notice of its intention to grant the renewal of
the water franchise to BCLHA for an additional 15 years.  The notice of
public hearing was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper, the
official newspaper of Gila County for 2015, on April 15, 22, and 29, 2015. 
A courtesy notice was also published in the Payson Roundup newspaper
on April 21, 2015.

The applicant has met all of the requirements to apply for a renewal of
this non-exclusive, non-public water franchise.  To date, none of the
qualified electors has petitioned the Board of Supervisors to deny such
privilege.



Conclusion
It is recommended that a public hearing be held by the Board of
Supervisors to obtain public comments on the granting of a 15-year
non-exclusive, non-public water franchise to the BCLHA.

Recommendation
If there is no public objection, and no Board of Supervisors' objection to
this application, the Clerk of the Board recommends that the Board of
Supervisors adopt Resolution No. 15-05-02, which grants a non-exclusive,
non-public water franchise to BCLHA for an additional 15 years, which
becomes effective from the date the Board Chairman signs the resolution
until May 4, 2030.   

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 15-05-02
renewing a non-exclusive, non-public water franchise for the Bonita Creek
Land and Homeowners' Association (BCLHA) for an additional 15 years,
from May 5, 2015, to May 4, 2030.  (Marian Sheppard) 

Attachments
Resolution No. 15-05-02
Bonita Creek - Public Hearing Notice
Bonita Creek - Water Franchise Application



Resolution 15-05-02  Page 1 of 4 

 

When recorded, deliver to: 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk 

Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 15-05-02  

 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

GILA COUNTY, STATE OF ARIZONA 

 

In the Matter of:       ) 

        ) 

Application of BONITA CREEK LAND    ) 

        )  F R A N C H I S E 

AND HOMEOWNERS’ ASSOCATION     )     

        ) 

for the renewal of a water franchise.    ) 

        ) 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, STATE OF 

ARIZONA, THAT: 

 

 WHEREAS, Bonita Creek Land and Homeowners’ Association (“Franchisee”) on April 

7, 2015, presented to the Gila County Board of Supervisors an application petitioning that the 

Board grant the renewal of a non-exclusive, non-public water Franchise to provide domestic and 

residential water to its member homes pursuant to A.R.S. §40-283 to enter upon all present and 

future public highways, roads, streets, alleys, thoroughfares (except state highways and except 

within the present confines of any incorporated city or town) within the unincorporated area of 

Gila County known as Bonita Creek, Payson, Arizona, to construct, operate and maintain water 

system facilities along, over, under and across said public highways, roads, streets, alleys and 

thoroughfares for the provision of water utility service; and, 

 

WHEREAS, on February 3, 1992, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No.  

92-2-1 consenting to the transfer of the Franchise from the Rancho Bonita Water Company to the 

Bonita Creek Land and Homeowners’ Association; and,  

 



Resolution 15-05-02  Page 2 of 4 

 

WHEREAS, the Bonita Creek Land and Homeowners’ Association has been operating 

the Bonita Creek Water Company and providing water to the Bonita Creek community since 

1991; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Franchise Service Area is legally described as follows: South Half (S½) 

of the Southeast Quarter (SE¼) and the Northeast Quarter (NE¼) of the Southeast Quarter (SE¼) 

of Section 31, Township 12 North, Range 11 East, and the Northwest Quarter (NW¼) of the 

Southwest Quarter (SW¼) of Section 32, Township 12 North, Range 11 East, G&SRB&M, Gila 

County, Arizona; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, upon filing of said application, the Board of Supervisors ordered the public 

notice of the intention of the Board to make such a grant by publication in the official County 

newspaper for 2015, the Arizona Silver Belt, once a week, three times consecutively on April 15, 

2015, April 22, 2015, and April 29, 2015, and by publication in the Payson Roundup on April 21, 

2015, and noticing that on Tuesday, May 5, 2015, the Gila County Board of Supervisors would 

consider the application at the Courthouse at 1400 E. Ash Street in Globe and at 610 E. Highway 

260 in Payson simultaneously by ITV; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Arizona Silver Belt and the Payson Roundup newspapers have provided 

the Gila County Board of Supervisors with an affidavit that the notice had been published in the 

newspapers; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, notice was also regularly given pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431; and, 

 

  WHEREAS, this matter appeared before the Gila County Board of Supervisors on May 5, 

2015, and no one appeared in opposition thereto; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, it appears that it will benefit the public safety, health or welfare in renewing 

this Franchise for an additional 15 years effective from the date of Board of Supervisors’ 

approval, and that the Franchisee has complied with all necessary laws to enable it to receive 

such a Franchise;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that the renewal of this Franchise be granted 

to Bonita Creek Land and Homeowners’ Association for the purpose of entering all present and 

future public highways, roads, streets, alleys, thoroughfares (except state highways and except 

within the present confines of any incorporated city or town) through May 4, 2030, unless earlier 

terminated, to construct, operate and maintain water service facilities within the unincorporated 

areas of Gila County, specifically providing, however, that: 

 

 1. All rights hereunder are granted under the express condition that the Board of 

Supervisors of Gila County shall have the power at any time to impose such restrictions and 

limitations and to make such regulations on such highways, roads, streets, alleys and 

thoroughfares as may be deemed best for the public safety, welfare and convenience. 

 2. All rights hereunder are granted on the express condition that the Franchisee shall 

bear all expenses, including damage and compensation, for any alteration of the direction, surface 



Resolution 15-05-02  Page 3 of 4 

 

grade or alignment of a county road or any other such highway, road, street, alley, or 

thoroughfare occasioned by the exercise of its Franchise rights.  If such road improvements are 

necessary and the Franchisee fails to make such improvements or bear all expenses necessary 

within 45 days after notification by Gila County, this grant shall be immediately rescinded and 

without any force or effect.  Franchisee shall erect and maintain all necessary safety precautions 

throughout the period of the improvements.  

 3. All rights hereby granted shall be exercised so as not to interfere or conflict with 

any easement or right-of-way heretofore granted by said Board of Supervisors.  Before 

Franchisee enters upon any highway, road, street, alley or thoroughfare that requires a right-of-

way permit from the Gila County Public Works Division pursuant to Gila County Right-of-Way 

Ordinance No. 02-01, Franchisee shall apply for and receive such a permit. 

 4. All water system facilities constructed, operated and maintained pursuant to this 

Franchise shall be placed, removed or relocated, initially and throughout the term of this 

Franchise, along, in, or, under, over and across the said highways, roads and thoroughfares in 

such manner and location as the Board of Supervisors or its duly authorized agents may approve.  

Such placement, removal or relocation shall be done at the sole expense of the Franchisee upon a 

determination by the Board of Supervisors of Gila County that such facilities interfere unduly 

with vehicular traffic over any such highway, road, street, alley, or thoroughfare. In all other 

instances, the costs incurred in relocating such facilities shall be borne by and added to the costs 

of the public or private improvement causing or resulting in such relocation. 

 5. Franchisee shall indemnify, defend, and save harmless Gila County from all costs, 

expenses and liabilities in connection with the grant of this Franchise and exercise of the same by 

Franchisee. 

 6. The Franchise granted herein shall not be deemed exclusive and the Board of 

Supervisors expressly reserves the right to grant from time to time similar Franchises over the 

same territory, highways, roads, streets, alleys and thoroughfares. 

 7. The right, privilege and Franchise granted herein shall be binding upon and inure 

to the benefit of Franchisee, its successors and assigns; provided, however, that no transfer or 

assignment shall be made without prior written notice to the Board of Supervisors. 

 8. In the event Gila County takes action to dispose of unnecessary public roadways 

in accordance with the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes 28-7201, et seq., Gila County 

shall recognize and preserve each of Franchisee’s prior rights-of-way, easements, and rights 

under this Franchise which are affected thereby, as they existed prior to such disposition. 

 9. This Franchise is granted upon the express condition that a current Certificate of 

Convenience and Necessity issued by the Arizona Corporation Commission in the name of 

Bonita Creek Land and Homeowners’ Association is presented to the Board of Supervisors of 

Gila County within six (6) months of the date of this Franchise; and if such Certificate is not 

submitted to the Board of Supervisors within the required time frame; this Franchise shall be null 

and void. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Resolution 15-05-02  Page 4 of 4 

 

 IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, State of Arizona, 

by its Chairman, has hereunto set her hand and caused its official seal to be affixed this 5
th

 day of 

May 2015. 

 

 

      

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman   

Gila County Board of Supervisors 

        

 

 

Approved as to form:     Attest: 

 

 

                  _____________________ 

Bryan Chambers      Marian Sheppard,  

Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief  Clerk of the Board 

 

The foregoing terms and conditions are hereby accepted by the Franchisee. 

 

      By                  

       

Title              

          

      Date              



 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO GRANT 
THE RENEWAL OF A NON-EXCLUSIVE NON-PUBLIC WATER FRANCHISE 

 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the BONITA CREEK LAND AND HOMEOWNERS’ ASSOCIATION has 
filed with the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, Globe, Arizona, an Application for Franchise, pursuant 
to A.R.S. §40-283 for the 15-year renewal  of a non-exclusive, non-public service franchise to provide 
domestic and residential water to its member homes.  The service area is known as Bonita Creek, which 
is located approximately 25 miles northeast of Payson, Arizona, in the unincorporated area of Gila 
County.  The franchised area is described as follows: 
 

South Half (S½) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) and the Northeast 
Quarter (NE¼) of the Southeast Quarter (SE¼) of Section 31, 
Township 12 North, Range 11, East, and the Northwest Quarter 
(NW¼) of the Southwest Quarter (SW¼) of Section 32, Township 12 
North, Range 11 East, G&SRB&M, Gila County, Arizona. 

 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors intends to grant the renewal of this 
Franchise for a period of fifteen (15) years.  The public hearing will take place at 10:00 a.m. on May 5, 
2015, in the Supervisors’ Auditorium, Gila County Courthouse, 1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, Arizona.  All 
interested parties and the public are invited to attend at this location or by ITV (interactive television) at 
610 E. Highway 260, Board of Supervisors’ Conference Room, Payson, Arizona.  If on or before such date 
more than fifty percent of the qualified electors of the County petition the Board of Supervisors to deny 
such privilege, it shall do so, and any privilege granted against such petition shall be void.    
 
 Dated at Globe, Gila County, Arizona this 8th day of April 2015. 
 
 
      /s/ Marian Sheppard                                             
      Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
      Gila County Board of Supervisors 





































































































   
ARF-3087     Public Hearing      2. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Old County Inn Restaurant Liquor License Application, Order No.
LL-15-01.

Background Information
Michael A. Dahling has submitted an application to the
Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC) for the Old
County Inn Restaurant in Pine.  The application is for a new Series 12
restaurant license.

The purpose of a Series 12 restaurant license is defined as follows: 
"Allows the holder of a restaurant license to sell and serve spirituous
liquor solely for consumption on the premises of an establishment which
derives at least 40% of its gross revenue from the sale of food.  Failure to
meet the 40% food requirement shall result in revocation of the
license.  4-213(C)"

Part of the statutory process is once the DLLC accepts and processes the
license, it is sent to the local governing body in which city, town or county
the establishment is located.  Upon the local governing body's review of
the application, a recommendation is then issued by the local governing
body, which in Gila County, is the Board of Supervisors (Board), to the
DLLC to either approve, deny or issue a "no recommendation" decision.

Per statutory requirements, a notice of hearing by the Board was posted
at the establishment for a period of 20 days, specifically to inform any
person residing or owning or leasing property within a one-mile radius of
the establishment regarding the application. To date, the Clerk of the
Board Department has not received any objections to this application.

Evaluation
The application has been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the Board



The application has been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the Board
of Supervisors Department for submission to the Board.  An internal
review has been conducted by the Community Development Division
Building Permit Department, the Health Department, and the Treasurer's
Office.

Health Department staff visited the establishment and determined there
are no issues with regard to Health Department permits.  The Community
Development Division, Building Permitting Department staff visited the
establishment and determined there are no issues with regard to building
permits.  The Treasurer's Office staff has determined that there are no
issues regarding delinquent property taxes. 

Conclusion
The application has been reviewed by several County departments with no
objections and no one from the public has submitted a written objection
to this application; therefore, a public hearing should be held by the
Board to obtain any comments from the public with regard to this
application before the Board takes an action to issue a recommendation
to the DLLC.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board issue
an approval recommendation to the DLLC if there are no objections
from the public.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Order No. LL-15-01, a liquor
license application submitted by Michael A. Dahling for a new Series 12
restaurant license for Old County Inn located in Pine, Arizona.  (Marian
Sheppard)

Attachments
Application
Interoffice Memos
Sheriff's Interoffice Memo & Affidavit of Posting































   
ARF-3110     Regular Agenda Item      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  
Submitted For: Mike Pastor, Member, Board of Supervisors 
Submitted By: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager, County Manager
Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of a Proclamation No. 2015-08 to proclaim Gila County as a
Purple Heart County

Background Information
The State Commander of the Military Order of the Purple Heart (MOPH)
recently addressed the County Supervisors Association and requested
each county in Arizona to proclaim itself as a Purple Heart County in an
effort to have Arizona designated as the first Purple Heart State. Their goal
is to have this accomplished by Memorial Day 2015.

Evaluation
Nationally, over 73,000 veterans and their dependents receive expert
assistance in obtaining well deserved benefits from the Veterans
Administration through MOPH.  Annually, MOPH obtains approximately
$300,000 in VA benefits for veterans, processes 21,000 claims, submitted
270 appeals, and made over 2,700 outreach visits.

MOPH is also proud of their numerous volunteers serving the hospitalized
throughout the country. They log more than 138,950 hours at over 100
sites each year. 

Conclusion
The veterans who have had their lives changed forever by suffering
various levels of injury and disability deserve recognition that MOPH is
organized to advocate for. Gila County can assist them in carrying out
their mission and attaining their goals by proclaiming Gila County as a
Purple Heart County.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt Proclamation



Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt Proclamation
2015-08 proclaiming Gila County as a Purple Heart County to assist
MOPH to attain their goal of having Arizona named the first Purple Heart
State.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to thank the Military Order of the Purple
Heart for the important work they are doing on behalf of American
Veterans and adopt Proclamation 2015-08 proclaiming Gila County as a
Purple Heart County.  (Michael Pastor)

Attachments
2015-08 Proclamation
Globe Purple Heart Recipients
Payson Purple Heart Recipients
Press Release
Military Order of the Purple Heart Letter



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 

COUNTY, ARIZONA, PROCLAIMING GILA COUNTY AS A PURPLE 

HEART COUNTY. 

     
WHEREAS, the people of Gila County have a great admiration and the utmost gratitude for the men and 

women who selflessly served their country and this county in the Armed Forces; and  
 

WHEREAS, veterans have paid the high price of freedom by not only leaving their homes and families, 

but by selflessly choosing to place themselves in harm’s way for the good of our nation and communities; 
and 

 

WHEREAS, through the contributions and sacrifices of our veterans, our citizens and communities are 

afforded the ability to maintain the freedoms and way of life guaranteed to all citizens; and 
 

WHEREAS, many men and women in uniform gave their lives while serving our nation in the Armed 

Forces; and 
 

WHEREAS, many citizens of our community were wounded during combat and earned the Purple Heart 

Medal in recognition of their meritorious acts of bravery and service to our communities and nation; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, we, the Gila County Board of Supervisors, proclaim Gila County as a Purple 

Heart County to recognize and honor the service and sacrifice of our nation’s men and women, who were 

wounded or killed while serving to protect the freedoms enjoyed by our communities and nation. 

 

PASSED and ADOPTED this 5
th

 day of May 2015. 

 

 

ATTEST:                                                    GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

______________________________          ______________________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board          Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

          
 

        PROCLAMATION NO. 2015-08 







Gila County to Become a Purple Heart County  

 
CONTACT:  Gila County Board of Supervisors (928) 402-8753  
                              For Immediate Release: 
                                                April 10, 2015 

 
(GLOBE, AZ) – This past February, Billy Walden, State Commander of the Military Order of 
the Purple Heart addressed the County Supervisors Association of Arizona asking each 
County in Arizona to proclaim themselves as a “Purple Heart County” in an effort to 
designate Arizona as the first “Purple Heart State”.  
 
The "Military Order of the Purple Heart of the U.S.A. Inc.," (MOPH) was formed in 1932 for 
the protection and mutual interest of all combat wounded veterans and active duty men and 
women who have received the decoration. Chartered by the Congress, The MOPH is unique 
among Veteran Service Organizations in that all its members were wounded in combat. For 
this sacrifice, they were awarded the Purple Heart Medal. With grants from the MOPH 
Service Foundation, the MOPH and its Ladies Auxiliary promote Patriotism, Fraternalism, 
and the Preservation of America's military history. Most importantly, through veteran service, 
they provide comfort and assistance to all Veterans and their families, especially those 
requiring claims assistance with the VA, those who are homeless, and those requiring 
employment assistance. Programs of the MOPH include VA Volunteer Service, JROTC 
Leadership Awards, Scholarships, Americanism, Purple Heart Trail and Cities, Welfare, and 
numerous community service programs, all with the objective of service to Veterans and their 
families. 
 
At this time three counties have formally designated themselves as Purple Heart counties; 
Coconino, Yavapai, and Graham. Gila County would like to follow suit and become the next 
Arizona Purple Heart County.  By making this declaration, Gila County not only honors its 
Purple Heart Recipients, but veterans all across the Nation.   
 
Gila County is currently seeking the names of Purple Heart Recipients who live in our 
County. If you or someone you know is a Purple Heart Recipient please contact us before 
April 30th with a name and a brief military description.  We are proud of each and every one 
of our citizens who have served in the Military and consider it an honor to recognize our 
Purple Heart Recipients.   
 
On Tuesday, May 5, 2015, at 10:00 AM, the public is invited to attend the Gila County Board 
of Supervisors Regular Board Meeting, at the Gila County Courthouse, 1400 E Ash Street, in 
Globe, or at the Gila County Complex, 610 E Highway 260, in Payson. The Board will have a 
special presentation to recognize those Veterans of Gila County who are Purple Heart 
Recipients. Each Recipient whose name we are given will receive a personalized and framed 
copy of the Proclamation as will each of the local Veterans organizations. 
 
If you are a Purple Heart Recipient and cannot attend the May 5 th meeting but would like a 
copy of the Proclamation, please call (928) 402-8753.  For information on The Military Order 
of the Purple Heart please visit their website at  www.purpleheart.org. 

 

### 

http://cts.businesswire.com/ct/CT?id=smartlink&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.purpleheart.org&esheet=51072847&newsitemid=20150406005145&lan=en-US&anchor=%22Military+Order+of+the+Purple+Heart+of+the+U.S.A.+Inc.%2C%22&index=1&md5=aa476fa5b98f35c90f17aa23752868bb
http://www.purpleheart.org/






   

ARF-3136     Regular Agenda Item      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Sharon Winters, Solid Waste Operations Manager 
Submitted By: Sharon Winters, Solid Waste Operations Manager, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Recycling & Landfill Management

Information
Request/Subject
Donation of $2,500 from Capstone Mining Corp - Pinto Valley Operations to support the Gila County
Refurbished Bike Program.

Background Information
The Gila County Recycling & Landfill Department collects paper and plastic products from Capstone -
Pinto Valley Operations to support their recycling efforts. Capstone has made a $2,500 donation to the
County's Refurbished Bike Program for the recycling and refurbishing of used bikes.

Evaluation
The donation of this $2,500 will purchase parts and paint for the Landfill employees and Department of
Corrections (DOC) inmates to rebuild bikes which were disposed at the Landfill. These bikes will be
distributed at Christmas to deserving children.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors accepting this donation of $2,500 from Capstone - Pinto Valley Operations,
the Recycling & Landfill Department with DOC labor will be able to rebuild and donate bikes for children.

Recommendation
The Gila County Recycling & Landfill Manager recommends accepting this donation from Capstone-
Pinto Valley Operations in the amount of $2,500.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to accept a donation from Capstone Mining Corp - Pinto Valley
Operations to the Gila County Recycling & Landfill Department in the amount of $2,500 to purchase
parts for the County's Refurbished Bike Program.  (Sharon Winters)

Attachments

Letter and Check







   

ARF-3117     Regular Agenda Item      3. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: 2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

When adopted
through May 1,
2017

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 15-05-03 and Intergovernmental Services Agreement between Sheriff's
Office and Tonto Apache Tribe.

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Office was contacted by the Chief of Police from the Tonto
Apache Tribe and requested that we enter into an Intergovernmental Service
Agreement to provide for the detention and care of detainees detained under the
authority of a Tribal Court order of the Tonto Apache Tribe at the Gila County
Detention Facility. The Tribe does not have its own detention facilities and relies on the
detention services provided by the Gila County Sheriff's Office.

Evaluation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office will provide for the detention and care of detainees
detained under the authority of a Tribal Court order of the Tonto Apache Tribe at the
Gila County Detention Facility on a space available basis and for a daily rate of
$54.63. Gila County will house detainees as to gender, classification status, and
provide the same levels of service that is routinely afforded to other detainees. Gila
County will provide receiving and discharging services twenty-four (24) hours per day,
seven (7) days a week. Gila County retains the final and absolute right either to refuse
acceptance or request removal of any Tribal Detainee exhibiting threatening behavior
or a medical condition that requires medical care beyond the scope of the Detentions
Medical Unit. The Tonto Apache Tribe will be responsible for all health care costs of
the tribal detainee while in custody. This Agreement shall become effective when
adopted by resolution and fully executed by and under the authority of the governing
body of each party's jurisdiction and the initial term shall be for a period beginning on
the date of Gila County's approval of this Agreement, and ending at 11:59p.m. on May
1, 2017.

Conclusion
The Tribe wishes to house their detainees at the Gila County Detention Facility.



The Tribe wishes to house their detainees at the Gila County Detention Facility.

Recommendation
Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of Supervisors
adopt Resolution No. 15-05-03 and approve the Intergovernmental Services Agreement
between the GCSO and the Tribe for the housing of detainees at the Gila County
Detention Facility.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 15-05-03 which authorizes the
execution of an Intergovernmental Service Agreement between the Gila County
Sheriff's Office and Tonto Apache Tribe for housing detainees at the Gila County
Detention Facility for an initial term to begin once the Agreement has been fully
executed and shall end on May 1, 2017.  (Matt Solberg)

Attachments
Resolution No. 15-05-03
Intergovernmental Service Agreement 
Tonto Apache Tribe Resolution No. 15-05
Legal Explanation



 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-05-03 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE GILA 

COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND THE TONTO APACHE TRIBE FOR THE 

DETENTION AND CARE OF DETAINEES DETAINED UNDER THE 

AUTHORITY OF A TRIBAL COURT ORDER OF THE TONTO APACHE 

TRIBE AT THE GILA COUNTY DETENTION FACILITY.  

 

WHEREAS, the Gila County Sheriff’s Office (GCSO) and the Tonto Apache Tribe (Tribe), a 

federally recognized Indian Tribe pursuant to Section 16 of the Indian Reorganization Act of 1934; (48 

Stat. 984), are desirous of entering into an Intergovernmental Service Agreement whereby the GCSO 

will provide for the detention and care of detainees detained under the authority of a Tribal Court 

Order of the Tonto Apache Tribe at the Gila County Detention Facility; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Services Agreement between the GCSO and the Tribe requires 

each entity’s governing body to adopt a resolution which authorizes the execution of the 

Intergovernmental Services Agreement.    

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors hereby 

authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Services Agreement between the GCSO and the 

Tribe for the detention and care of detainees detained under the authority of a Tribal Court Order of the 

Tonto Apache Tribe at the Gila County Detention Facility.    

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5
th

 day of May 2015, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

Clerk of the Board 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Bryan Chambers 

Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief 

























 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3128     Regular Agenda Item      3. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 1, 2015
through
September 30,
2016

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Department of Homeland Security 2015 Grant Program Application-Communications
Upgrade

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Office submitted a grant application in 2014 to purchase
equipment for a communications upgrade in the dispatch offices. The Sheriff's Office
was partially awarded the grant on January 14, 2015, in the amount of $25,912.
Those funds are in the process of upgrading two (2) of the eight (8) dispatch consoles.
The Sheriff's Office electronically submitted a new grant application for 2015 on March
2, 2015, and resubmitted it on April 8, 2015, with requested corrections to continue
the communications upgrade in the amount of $55,292 to upgrade four (4) dispatch
consoles. The Gila County Sheriff's Office had short notice to get the grant application
completed and submitted by the deadline of March 2, 2015; therefore, there wasn't
sufficient time to obtain the Board of Supervisors' approval prior to submitting the
grant application as is the required process.

Evaluation
If this grant is awarded to the Gila County Sheriff's Office, the acquisition and upgrade
of the communications equipment will replace four (4) outdated consoles. It will also
integrate current updated software and programming. The communications upgrade
will increase the level of communications service and also allow the Sheriff's Office to
support other agencies with communications during catastrophic failure.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office is requesting funds from the Department of Homeland
Security to purchase equipment to upgrade communications within their dispatch
centers in the amount of $55,292.

Recommendation



It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of Supervisors
approve the Sheriff's Office electronic submission of this grant application for a
communications upgrade to the Department of Homeland Security in the amount of
$55,292.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Sheriff's Office electronic submission of
a Revised 2015 State Homeland Security Grant Program Application to the State of
Arizona, Department of Homeland Security for a communications upgrade in the
amount of $55,292.  (Keith Thompson)

Attachments
Grant Program Application 
Equipment Quote





















































   
ARF-3119     Regular Agenda Item      3. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: Program Years 2014 and 2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

April 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No.2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADES14-055408) between the Arizona
Department of Economic Security and the Gila County Board of Supervisors.

Background Information
The purpose of this Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) is to provide Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Title 1B
services to eligible youth, adults, and dislocated workers throughout the Gila/Pinal Counties Local Workforce
Investment Area.  These services are provided in accordance with federal and state regulations and the most current
Local Area Plan.  

*Initial Contract Number ADES14-055408 has been modified to become DE14-055408 with Amendment No. 1.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 2 to this IGA (Contract No. DE14-055408) will provide additional funding dollars to this contract
under Section 6.0 Manner of Finance, Paragraph 6.2 the following allocation of funds by Program and Fiscal Year
are added:

FY15 Set Aside - System Building funds are added in the amount of $50,000. Set Aside - System Building funds
shall be used solely for the purpose of Pinal County local area transitional expenses listed in Attachment C.

The total ($50,000.00) of these funds must be expended by 6/30/2016.  
The final expenditure report for these funds must be submitted to the Arizona Department of Economic Security
(ADES) by 8/15/2016.  

The reimbursement ceiling is increased from $4,826,020 to $4,876,020.

Attachment B, Allocation by Program and Fiscal Year is revised to reflect all current totals by Program and Fiscal
Year and Attachment B, Allocation by Program and Fiscal Year revised 3/27/2015 is attached to this Amendment.

Conclusion
Additional dollars added to this IGA  (Section 6.0 Manner of Finance, Paragraph 6.2) reflects an increase of $50,000
to the Workforce Investment Act Department.   The Intergovernmental Agreement, Amendment No. 2, between the
Arizona Department of Economic Security and the Gila County Board of Supervisors will increase the budget from
$4,826,020 for a new total of $4,876,020.

Recommendation
The Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No. 2 to
the IGA in order to obtain an increase in funding under this contract.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
DE14-055408) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and the Gila County Board of Supervisors to
increase the total contract amount from $4,826,020 to $4,876,020, of which said funds are utilized for the
Gila/Pinal Local Workforce Investment Area per the requirements of the Workforce Investment Act. 
(Malissa Buzan)

Attachments



Attachments

Amend No 2 DE14-055408
Amend No 1 DE14-055408
WIA IGA DE14-055408





















   
ARF-3135     Regular Agenda Item      3. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015/2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

June 1, 2015 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Lease Agreement with Payson Unified School District.

Background Information
Gila Employment and Special Training (GEST) coordinates with county, state and federal governments in a joint
effort to better serve the citizens of Gila County.

The Demonstration Project began in 1975 and was founded on the principle of “acceptance”.  Establishing
community acceptance of the individuals with disabilities is and always will be our priority.  In 1996, the program
name was changed to Gila Employment and Special Training (GEST), but our goal remains the same as we provide
daily living skills and employment supports to all GEST clients.

Evaluation
As part of the contract requirements with Arizona Department of Disabilities (DDD), the GEST program is obligated
to provide day treatment adult services to clients enrolled in its DDD program.  The current location for this service
is a room leased from a church. The church is requesting use of the room, so a new location for the DDD program is
needed. 

If approved by the Board of Supervisors, the Lease Agreement will become effective June 1, 2015.

Conclusion
By approving this Lease Agreement, the GEST program will have a designated site to be used for program activities.

Recommendation
The Community Services Division Director recommends the Board approve this Lease Agreement.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Lease Agreement between Payson Unified School District (PUSD) and
the Gila County Community Services Division, Gila Employment and Special Training Program, whereby the PUSD
will lease a building at 501 S. McLane, Payson, Arizona, to Gila County at a cost of $500 per month for use as an
adult day treatment center to provide services to clients enrolled in the Arizona Department of Developmental
Disabilities Program, effective June 1, 2015, through June 1, 2016.   (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments

Lease agreement

































   
ARF-3092     Regular Agenda Item      3. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  
Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division

Information
Request/Subject
Approve Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement No. 022414 with
the City of Globe.

Background Information
On April 1, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) No. 022414 with the City of Globe, whereby on occasion,
and upon request from the City of Globe, the County will provide excess
granite resurfacing material, when available, during the time period of
March 18, 2014 to March 17, 2015, for use in the City's park recreational
facilities.
 

Evaluation
On occasion the City of Globe has a need for granite to provide ground
surfacing in the City parks.  The City of Globe does not have access to
granite and seeks to find the most cost effective means possible to
continue to provide recreational facilities for use by Gila County citizens
for recreational purposes.  Gila County has access to a granite pit that
produces granite for surfacing walking, driving and parking areas.  To
further the economic development of the County, the County agrees that
upon written request from the City of Globe, and when in the opinion of
the County, the County has excess granite available, the County will
provide granite to the City of Globe for use in City parks.

The County will remove the granite from the County pit and screen the
granite, if necessary.  The City will provide the loading and transportation
of the Granite to the City park where it is needed. 

IGA No. 022414 expires on March 17, 2015.  The IGA contains a provision
that allows for two one-year renewal periods, upon mutual consent of
both parties.  This Amendment will serve to extend IGA No. 022414 for
one additional year, from March 18, 2015 to March 17, 2016.



Conclusion
By having an active Intergovernmental Agreement in place, it will allow for
the County to provide, when available and upon request by the City of
Globe, excess granite for surfacing ground areas at City parks between
March 18, 2015, to March 17, 2016.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board approve the Amendment to
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 022414 between Gila County and the
City of Globe, to extend the IGA for a one-year period, so that the County
may provide excess granite material to be used, on occasion and upon
request and availability, for recreational facilities at City parks so that
Gila County citizens may continue to use the City parks for recreational
purposes.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Amendment to
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) No. 022414 between Gila County and
the City of Globe to extend the IGA for a one-year period, whereby upon
request from the City of Globe, the County will provide excess granite
resurfacing material on occasion and when available during the time
period of March 18, 2015, to March 17, 2016, for use in the City's park
recreational facilities.  (Jeff Hessenius)

Attachments
Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement 022414 with City of
Globe
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 022414 with City of Globe
Legal Explanation















 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3122     Regular Agenda Item      3. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: FY 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

May 18, 2015 to
May 17, 2016

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award for Request for Proposals No. 110514 - Janitorial Service for Southern
Gila County.

Background Information
In the past, the County has hired a contractor to perform the evening custodial duties
5 nights a week for the southern Gila County facilities.  The current janitorial contract
for southern Gila County will expire on May 17, 2015.  On March 17, 2015, the Board
of Supervisors approved a request to advertise Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 110514
for janitorial services for southern Gila County.  RFP No. 110514 was advertised in the
Arizona Silver Belt newspaper on March 25th and April 1st, 2015.  The bids were
opened in a public setting on April 8, 2015.

Evaluation
Bids were received from four contractors.  Bid responses were evaluated in accordance
with A.R.S. §41-2533, Competitive Sealed Bidding; awards shall be made to the lowest
responsible and responsive bidder whose bid conforms in all material respects to the
requirements and criteria set forth in the Request for Proposals.  Award of RFP 110514
would result in a contract with a janitorial contractor to provide evening custodial
duties for a term of 12 months, with an option to renew for three additional one-year
periods.

The following County facilities will be serviced under the contract:  Globe Courthouse,
Guerrero Building, Health and Community Services,WIC Building, Public Works
Administration Building, Facilities/Sign Shop, and the Michaelson Building.  Pricing
was included, as a separate line item, in the RFP for the Copper Administration
Building, which is anticipated to be occupied in 2015.

Clarification was requested from Carnation Building Service, Inc. after all bids were
opened and reviewed.  Carnation Building Service, Inc. submitted a revised price sheet
to comply with the request for an "annual" cost versus a "monthly" cost.

Conclusion



Conclusion
After extensive review, based on the bid responses received, it is the goal of the
Finance Division and the Public Works Division to award a contract to the lowest, most
responsible and responsive qualified bidder.

Recommendation
The staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the award of Request for
Proposals No. 110514 to Jani-Serv, Inc. to provide janitorial service to southern Gila
County for a period of 12 months from May 18, 2015, to May 17, 2016, with 3
one-year renewal options.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Request for Proposals
No. 110514 for janitorial service in southern Gila County; award to the lowest, most
responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the award
contract for the winning bidder, for an amount not to exceed $92,036.86 per year,
unless carpet cleaning (an additional $0.18 per square foot) and stripping and waxing
floors (an additional $0.25 per square foot) services are required. 
(Jeff Hessenius and Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Request for Proposals No. 110514
Bid Tab Spreadsheet
Contract No. 110514-JaniServ Inc.
Marsden West bid
WCD Enterprises bid
Carnation Building Service bid-clarified and revised
Clarification requested email to Carnation Building Service
Carnation Building Service bid
RFP Issue List
Walk Through Sign In Sheet
Legal Explanation



 

 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
110514 

 
 
 

JANITORIAL SERVICE FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 
 
 
 
  

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
Tommie C. Martin, Vice Chairman 

John D. Marcanti, Member 
 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 

Don E. McDaniel Jr. 
 
 

 



 1 

                                                           GILA COUNTY 
NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514 

JANITORIAL SERVICE FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Gila County is requesting proposals from qualified Contractors to provide Jani-
torial Services for County facilities located in Southern Gila County. 
 
 
SUBMITTAL DUE DATE: Wednesday, April 08, 2015             11:00 AM 
 
RETURN PROPOSAL TO: Gila County Procurement 
 Guerrero Complex          
 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, AZ 85501 
     
MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING:           Tuesday, March 31, 2015               10:00 AM  

Gila County Courthouse, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ,    2nd Floor 
Meeting will begin at Courthouse and continue to locations pro-
vided in complete RFP packet. 

 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that sealed competitive Proposals for the material or services as specified will be 
received by the Gila County Procurement Department, until the time and date cited. 
 
Interested Bidders may obtain a copy of this solicitation by calling Gila County Procurement at 928-402-8612. 
Bidders are strongly encouraged to carefully read the entire Request for Proposal. 
 
Proposals received by the correct time and date will be publicly opened and recorded thereafter in the Guerre-
ro Building Conference Room, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, or other site, which may be designated.  Any proposals 
received later than the date and time specified above will not be considered.   
 
The County takes no responsibility for informing recipients of changes to the original solicitation document.  It 
is the Offeror’s responsibility to obtain a copy of any amendment relevant to this solicitation.   
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to waive 
any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.   
 
All procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the 
Gila County Procurement Code.  A copy of the Code is available for review in the Deputy Clerk of the Board’s 
office, Globe, AZ. 
 

Arizona Silver Belt advertisement dates:    March 25, 2015 and, April 01, 2015 

 
 
 
Signed:  ______________________________________________________________  Date:  ________________ 
  Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief 
                for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 
 

 

Signed:  ______________________________________________________________  Date:  _________________  
                Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 



 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 

 
 
Solicitation Notice ........................................................................................................................................................................... 1 
 
Scope of Services....................................................................................................................................................................... 3-10 
 
Exhibit “A”; Instructions to Bidders ............................................................................................................................... 11-13  
 
General Terms and Conditions ................................................................................................................................................ 14  
 
Exhibit “B”; Contract Award Agreement ...................................................................................................................... 15-18 
  

 Exhibit “C”; Minimum Specifications/Information.................................................................................................. 19-20 
 

Exhibit “D”; W-9 ............................................................................................................................................................................. 21 
 
Insurance Provisions ............................................................................................................................................................ 22-23 
 
Required Contract Forms ................................................................................................................................................... 24-34 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

It is the intention of Gila County to award a contract to a qualified Contractor for janitorial services at several of 
its facilities in Southern Gila County.  The Contractor shall furnish all necessary labor, supervision, equipment, 
transportation and all effort necessary to perform the required services at the designated locations. 
 
 

Building  
Address 

Square 
Footage 

 
Floors 

 
Restrooms 

Mop  
Closets 

Storage 
 Closets 

Gila County Courthouse                (0101) 

     1400 E. Ash St. 

     Globe, AZ  85501 

 7,661 

13,858 

10,221 

1st 

2nd 

3rd 

5 

7 

10 

1 

0 

1 

1 

0 

0 

Guerrero  Building                         (0106) 

     1405 E. Ash St. 

     Globe, AZ  85501 

 

5,886 

 

1st 

 

 

2 

 

1 

 

0 

Health & Community Services     (6005) 

     5515 S. Apache Ave. 

    Globe, AZ  85501 

 

32,502 

 

 

1 

 

6 

 

3 

 

1 

WIC Building                                   (0204) 

     5515 S. Apache Ave 

     Globe, AZ  85501 

 

1,792 

 

1 

 

1 

 

1 

 

0 

Public Works Administration      (0710) 

     745 N. Rose Mofford Way 

     Globe, AZ  85501 

 

10,130 

 

 

1 

 

2 

 

1 

 

0 

Facilities/Sign Shop Building        (0712) 

     725 N. Rose Mofford Way 

     Globe, AZ  85501      

 

2,197 

 

1  

 

2 

 

1 

 

0 

 

Michaelson Building                      (0201) 

     149 S. Broad St. 

     Globe, AZ  85501 

 

7,952 

1st 

2nd  

 

2 

2 

1 

1 

1 

1 

FUTURE BUILDING TO BE ADDED AT 

A LATER DATE IN 2015 

Copper Administration Bldg.        (0103) 

     1350 E. Monroe Street 

     Globe, AZ  85501      

 

 

19,902 

 

 

1  

 

 

6 

 

 

1 

 

 

1 

 Allowances for I.T. and storage rooms, not a part of the contract, have been accounted for in the square 
footage. 

   

 
SCHEDULE 

The contract will require cleaning services five (5) nights a week (excluding those weeks with an official holi-
day), Monday through Friday, unless otherwise noted.  Cleaning services will not be required on days in which 
a declared State of Emergency has been made by the Governor or in the event of any other unforeseen type of 
emergency where County offices are closed.  There are ten (10) County holidays, and services will not be pro-
vided on these days unless the County agency makes such request and pays for these additional services. 
 
 
ADOSH GUIDELINES 

Contractor must be familiar with and operate within guidelines set forth by the Arizona Division of Occupa-
tional Safety and Health (ADOSH) guidelines, which affects custodial and housekeeping operations.  Contractor 
must insure that all employees assigned to this contract are knowledgeable of the current ADOSH guidelines 
affecting custodial and housekeeping operations. 
 
 



 4 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
CONTRACTORS PERSONNEL 

All individuals working for the awarded Contractor will be carefully screened and must pass a background 
check prior to working on Gila County property under this contract.  Investigation will include criminal record, 
and driving record.  All questionable findings of background checks will be discussed with special panel of Gila 
County Management and Law Enforcement.  As a minimum, individuals with prior felony convictions within the 
past ten (10) years, those who are currently facing misdemeanor or felony charges, and those currently on any 
criminal probation will be prohibited from performing any services under this contract in the County Attor-
ney’s Office, Superior or Justice of the Peace Courts, Probation Offices, or Constable’s Office.  There will be no 
cost to the Contractor for the background investigations. 
 
Contractor must provide trained qualified personnel, at least 18 years or older, to perform the duties required 
under this contract.  A list of persons, and their phone numbers, performing the work shall be provided by the 
Contractor to the County should the need arise in case of an emergency. 
 
Any person assigned to this contract found to be in possession of or under the influence of intoxicants or nar-
cotics shall be removed from assignment to this Contract.  Any person found guilty of the use of narcotics or 
intoxicants shall not perform services on County property. 
 

 Job Supervisor 
The Contractor shall provide a job supervisor for this contract who will be responsible to the County for 
the competent performance of all custodial work. The supervisor shall be trained and instructed in proper 
methods and systems of custodial maintenance.   
 
The supervisor shall make sufficient daily routine inspections to insure work is performed as specified.  In 
addition, Contractor supervisor shall direct the cleaning activities of the custodial staff.  Contractor super-
visor shall inspect the building prior to employees leaving and any deficiencies will be corrected.   
 
The Contractor shall provide to the County the name and phone number of the supervisor and alternate(s) 
who shall act for the Contractor when the supervisor is absent.  This information shall be designated in 
writing to the Gila County Facilities and Land Management Manager prior to contract start date. 

 
 

 Contractor Responsibilities  
Contractors’ personnel, including any subcontractors, if any, will be supplied with identification badges 
that must be worn at all times while on County property.   
 
Contractor will be responsible for assigned keys and card access.  Any costs associated with re-keying 
doors or replacing access cards will be deducted from monies owed to Contractor, if Contractor, Contrac-
tor’s personnel, or Contractors subcontractor is responsible for the loss.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 5 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES 

 County Provided Equipment 
Gila County reserves the right to control all janitorial products and chemicals that will be used in each des-
ignated building.  Copies of Material Safety Data Sheets on each chemical shall be kept on file.    
 
The County Facilities Management is responsible for ordering Janitorial Supplies and will control inventory 
of the paper products, chemicals and cleaning products and shall be responsible for storage of these prod-
ucts and chemicals.  
 
 Training:  Chemical use training is a requirement of the Contractor and will be provided 

through Gila County by the Supplier. 
 

 Contractor Provided Equipment 
Contractor shall provide their own equipment to perform the scope of work under this contract.  Contrac-
tor’s equipment must be in good operating condition at all times and must meet Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration (OSHA) standards.  The appearance, cleanliness, and suitability for the job of all 
equipment must be acceptable to the County Facilities Manager or designee at all times. 
 
 Safety:  For all operations requiring the placing and movement of the Contractor’s equipment, 

Contractor shall observe and exercise, and compel his employees to observe and exercise, all 
necessary caution and discretion so as to avoid injury to persons, damage to property of any 
and all kinds, and annoyance to or undue interference with the movement of the public and 
County personnel. 

 
All ladders, scaffolding, or other devices used to reach the surface of objects not otherwise 
accessible for the required cleaning operations, shall be of sound construction, firm and sta-
ble, and shall be maintained in good condition.  All such equipment shall be moved onto the 
areas where they are required, placed, shifted where necessary, and removed from the areas 
in such manner as to provide maximum safety to persons and property in and around areas 
of cleaning operations. 

 
 
 

DAMAGES 
In the event that the Contractor or its employees cause damage to a structure, equipment or other items, the 
Contractor shall repair or replace the items damaged at actual replacement value and be responsible for all la-
bor and materials expended by the County or another Contractor in connection with the repair or replacement.  
These specific damages do not limit the Contractor’s liability for other unspecified potential damages. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 6 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 

Building Areas and Janitorial Standards 

 Sweeping and Dust Mopping Standards:  Sweeping shall leave the surfaces uniformly clean of all surface 
dirt including corners and places inaccessible to the mop.  Surface accumulation of hardened dirt that can-
not be loosened with the broom shall be loosened sufficiently to permit removal by sweeping or if neces-
sary, shall be washed.  It is intended that all dust and surface contamination except deeply embedded dirt 
and stains shall be removed by sweeping or mopping with a treated mop.  Dirty mops are not acceptable 
for use.  

 
1. Sweeping and Dust Moping (Uncarpeted Areas) 

a. Vestibules, lobbies and entries 
b. Corridors 
c. Stairwells, stars and landings (interior) 
d. Elevators and elevator vestibules 
e. Offices, Courtrooms and Conference rooms 

 

 Dusting and Vacuuming Standards: Dusting shall be accomplished by means of vacuum cleaners sup-
plemented by chemically treated clean cloths.  Oil treatment for cloths will not be permitted.  Surfaces shall 
be cleaned and free from dust after dusting is completed.  Dust shall be removed and not scattered around 
the room.  Low dusting includes all surfaces not over six feet from the floor.  Venetian blinds shall be dust-
ed with a treated dust cloth by hand or with a vacuum cleaner attachment especially designed for cleaning 
Venetian blinds.  Office equipment such as typewriters, adding machines, calculators and similar instru-
ments shall not be dusted because of possibility of damage.  Tops of desks will also be excluded from dust-
ing. 

 
1. Vacuuming (Carpeted Areas) 

a. Lobbies and entries (interior) 
b. Stairwells, stairs and landings (interior) 
c. Corridors 
d. Offices, Courtroom and Conference rooms 

2. Dusting and Vacuuming (Low Cleaning-Under 6’) 
a. All furniture and fixtures (i.e.) file cabinets, tables, etc. 
b. Window sills, ledges, etc. 
c. Vending Machines 
d. Stairwells, stairs, landings and railings (interior) 

 
3. Dusting and Vacuuming (High Cleaning-Over 6’) 

a. Door casings 
b. Partitions, wood paneling, etc. 

 

 Trash Removal Standards:  All waste baskets shall be emptied and boxes, cans, paper, etc. marked trash 
which is placed near the trash cans for disposal shall be removed in a manner that will not cause dispersion 
of dust.  Trash shall not be allowed to blow around.  Any trash dropped shall be immediately retrieved by 
the custodian or contractor and properly placed in the trash receptacle. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 7 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
1. Trash Removal 

a. Empty all trash containers, replace liners as needed; DO NOT place leaking trash bags on car-
pet. 

b. Dispose of trash in sealed and/or tied plastic bags in outside dumpsters. 
 

 Washing Standards:  Washed surfaces shall be clean and free from all dirt, grease and film including em-
bedded dirt and grease.  All small and narrow openings shall be cleaned to the same degree as other sur-
faces.  Surfaces shall be dried and left clean. 

 
1. General Washing 

a. Clean and sanitize urinals inside and out 
b. Clean and sanitize commodes inside and out. 
c. Clean mirrors 
d. Clean and sanitize miscellaneous restroom and toilet fixtures. 
e. Clean and sanitize restroom and toilet floors. 
f. Clean and sanitize restroom wash basin wall area and toilet wall area. 
g. Clean and sanitize shower rooms. 
h. Damp wipe all restroom and locker room ledges and sills. 
i. Spot clean walls, doors and trim. 
j. Clean and sanitize water fountains. 
k. Windows inside and outside of building 
l. Wash baseboards, doors, and door handles 
m. Clean light switches 

 
2. Washing Glass 

a. Glass shall be washed by application of glass cleaner, rubbed with a cloth and finally polished 
with a clean soft dry cloth or textile disposable wipers.   

b. Use only soft cloths on Plexiglas.   
c. The washing shall not contaminate adjacent non-glass areas.   
d. Glass shall be left clean and dry, free from film or streaks and any contamination visible when 

looking through the glass towards natural light source.   
e. Sill and frames shall be damp wiped. 

 
3. Washing Except Glass 

a. All surfaces shall be washed with a mild neutral detergent or quaternary disinfectant-
detergent solution following manufacturer’s dilution ration.   

b. Surface shall be left clean without streaks.   
c. Scrub brush or scour pad shall be used where necessary to loosen the dirt. 

 
4. Washing in Restroom, Public and Patient Areas 

a. Restroom floors, chairs, tables and mirrors shall be cleaned as specified with quaternary disin-
fectant-detergent.   

b. Commodes and urinals shall be washed clean with disinfectant-detergent and toilet brush 
then wiped dry with textile disposable wipers or clean cloths. 

 

 Damp Wiping Standards:  Surfaces shall be left clean and free from film or streaks upon completion of 
damp wiping. 

 

 Disinfecting Standards:  Urinals and commode surfaces shall be disinfected with a concentration of qua-
ternary disinfectant-detergent.  It shall be allowed to stand in the fixtures for at least ten minutes.  Bowl 
cleaner shall be used once weekly for lime and iron stain removal except where water conditions require 
more frequent applications.  In these cases, bowl cleaner shall be used twice weekly. 
 

 
 



 8 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
 Wet Mopping Standards:  After dust mopping, all floors shall be cleaned by wet mopping using quater-

nary ammonium germicide and shall be free from streaks, stains and film from dirt or soap.  There shall be 
no splashes on walls, baseboards, furniture and furnishings.  Wet mopping is also required on all stairwells, 
stars, landings & elevator hard floors. 

 

There shall be no mop strings left on the floor.  Surface should be dry in a reasonable amount of time.  Cor-
ners and spaces inaccessible to the mop shall be carefully cleaned and dry.  Dirty mops are not acceptable 
for use. 

 
1. Wet Mopping 

a. All tile, wooden or hard surface floors. 
 

 Polishing Standards:  This shall be accomplished with metal polish and all surfaces shall be rubbed to a 
soft gloss with clean cloth or textile disposable wipers. 
 
1. Brass and Stainless Steel 

a.  Clean and polish all brass and stainless steel (i.e. railings, elevators, doorknobs, plumbing fix-
tures, kick plates, etc.) 

b. Chromium-plated, stainless steel and brass shall be polished with a dry cloth or textile dispos-
able wipers. 

 

 Spray Buffing Standards (Hard Surfaced Floors):  Spray buff all lobbies, corridors, and conference 
rooms, Spray buff product to be of the same manufacturer as floor finish. 

 

 Spot Cleaning Carpets Standards:  A carpet adequately spot cleaned is free of all stains, deposits, or spills 
(Exceptions:  any stain, contractor has made every attempt to remove by industry standards, and such 
stain has become permanent to the surface).  Care will be taken to use a product for cleaning that will not 
harm or discolor the carpet fibers or backing. 

 
 

DAILY CLEANING SCHEDULE 

 Daily 
1.  Empty all wastebaskets; transport to specified area for removal.  Replace liners as needed. 
2.  Clean all entryways and walkways six feet outside of entry. 
3.  Sweep or dust mop all entrances, entryways, and lobbies. 
4.  Spot clean all glass and interior partitions. 
5.  Clean all restrooms. 

a. Clean and disinfect all drinking fountains. 
b. Clean and disinfect all sinks, toilets, and urinals. 
c. Remove all finger marks from walls, stalls, doors, and light switches. 
d. Damp wipe all ledges and sills. 
e. Clean all mirrors and ledges of mirrors. 
f. Sweep and mop all uncarpeted floors (Including Health Department Exam Rooms) 
g. Replenish all restroom with paper towels, tissue, and soap. 
h. Empty and remove trash. 

6. Clean elevators, door tracks, and lobbies. 
7. Remove trash from all buildings to the designated dumpster. 
8. Clean all kitchens by sweeping, mopping floors and removing trash only. 
9. Sweep and dust stairwells, stairs, and landings (interior).   Wet mop, as needed. 
10. Vacuum all courtrooms and offices with vacuum cleaner. 

 

 

 

 



 9 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
 Two Times Weekly – (Minimum): 

1. Vacuum all carpeted floors (including under desks) with a vacuum cleaner. 
2. Clean stairwells, steps and tread in the Courthouse using appropriate cleaning machine.  Wipe down 

hand rails. 
3. Dust furniture in lobby areas (top, side, and lower area), fixtures, ledges, and window sills using a 

treated dust cloth or feather duster. 
4. Remove all finger marks from furniture, fixtures, ledges and sills. 
5. Damp mop all quarry and tile floors. 

 

 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 Temporary or Permanent Work Changes   
Locations and janitorial service at the locations may change from time to time pending on the needs of the 
County.  It is possible during the period of this Contract that new locations may be added and some loca-
tions removed from the schedule.  These location changes shall be processed as an amendment to the con-
tract requiring Board approval and shall result in no penalties to the County. 
 
The County shall have the right to require Contractor’s personnel to perform other cleaning duties on the 
premises as the County shall deem desirable or necessary and Contractor shall promptly comply with such 
requirements, provided however, that only such of Contractor’s personnel who are performing cleaning 
services of a routine cleaning nature shall be utilized, and provided further that the Contractor shall not be 
required to perform the effected routine cleaning services during such times.  No change in payment rate 
for routine work will be made due to temporary work changes. 
 

 Contract Performance 
If at any time during the term of the contract the performance becomes unsatisfactory to the County, the 
Contractor will be directed to provide adequate personnel or otherwise correct the unsatisfactory perfor-
mance.  Any cost to the County directly related to correction of unsatisfactory performance, or lack of per-
formance, will be deducted from Contractor’s billing.  Should the County need to correct unsatisfactory 
work performed by the Contractor, or lack of work performed by the Contractor, the cost will be deter-
mined based on the hourly rate for each employee utilized, the number of hours the employee is utilized, 
and the labor burden for the utilization of the employee.  Contractor shall do all the work provided in the 
specifications and shall do additional extra and incidental tasks as may be considered necessary from time 
to time to complete the work in a satisfactory manner. 
 

 Storage Space 
Contractor shall store its supplies and equipment in storage areas and custodial closets designated by the 
County.  Contractor agrees to keep these areas neat and clean at all times in accordance with all applicable 
fire regulations.  Basins, sinks and drains will be wiped clean daily and sanitized at least weekly.   

 
 

BILLABLE WORK 

 Carpet Cleaning Per County Request 
Carpet cleaning shall be performed by shampooing or steam cleaning.  Carpets must be vacuumed thor-
oughly prior to shampooing or steam cleaning. 

 
 Stripping and Waxing of Floors per County Request 

Strip all tile floors, removing all dirt and old wax cleaning out door and baseboards, applying 3 coats of 
non-slip floor finish. 

 

 

 

 

 



 10 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
INQUIRIES 

 
Requests for additional information relating to this RFP should be directed to the Purchasing Department at 
(928) 402-8612, or emailed to jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov.   Responses will be sent out to all plan holders in the 
form of an addendum. 

 

Any correspondence related to a Request for Proposals should refer to the appropriate Request for Proposals 
number, page, and paragraph number.  However, the Contractor must not place the Request for Proposal num-
ber on the outside of an envelope containing questions since such an envelope may be identified as a sealed 
Proposal and may not be opened until after the official Request for Proposal due date and time.  Questions re-
ceived after 3:00 PM, April 6, 2015, will not be answered.    

 

Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be binding.  Oral and other interpretations or clarifi-
cations will be without legal effect. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 11 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS 

 
Important:  Exhibit “A”, Instructions to Bidders and Exhibit “B”, Bidders Award Agreement, are basic content to 
Gila County Bid packages.  Individual bids may require different language for instructions and award agree-
ments.  Where applicable, such changes will appear in Exhibit “C”, Minimum Product Specifications and Infor-
mation and taken precedence over the language appearing in Exhibits “A & B”. 
 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

Preparation of Sealed Proposal 

A. Sealed Proposals will be received by the Gila County Purchasing Department, from individuals and Con-
tractors to deliver the product(s), goods and services contained to establish a contract for specified loca-
tions within Gila County.  The County seeks sealed Proposals only from qualified, experienced Contractors 
able to provide services which are, in all respects, responsive to the specifications.  All Proposals shall be 
on the forms provided in this Request for Sealed Proposal package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if 
required, but copies must have original signatures. 
 

B. Before submitting the Proposal and Forms each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the Scope of Work, 
laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully correlate its observa-
tions with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the expense and difficulties attend-
ing the performance of the work.  The submission of a Proposal will constitute a representation of compli-
ance by the Contractor.  There will be no subsequent financial adjustment, other than that provided for by 
the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Contractors must complete the Proposal and all forms provided in this Request for Proposal package in full, 

original signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the Proposal and to be submitted at the time 
of bid, and made a part of this contract.  The County will use the Proposal and Qualifications Form in evalu-
ating the capacity of Contractor to perform the Scope of Services as set forth in the Contract.  Failure of any 
Contractor to complete and submit the Price Sheet and Signature/Offer Page and all required forms at time 
and place of opening shall be grounds for automatic disqualification of the Contractor from further consid-
eration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the Proposal must also be legibly printed below the signature. 

Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 
E. The full name of each person or company interested in the Request for Proposal shall be listed on the Pro-

posal. 
 
F. No alterations in Proposals, or in the printed forms therefore, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise will 

be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the Contractor; if initialed, the County 
may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 

Amendments 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this Request for Sealed Proposal must be acknowledged by 
all Contractors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the Bidder Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form, page 32. 

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a Proposal being rejected as non-
responsive.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



 12 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
 

Offer & Acceptance Period 
In order to allow for an adequate evaluation, the County requires an offer in response to this solicitation to be 
valid and irrevocable for ninety (90) days after the proposal due date and time. 

 
Discussions 

The County reserves the right to conduct discussion with offerors for the purpose of eliminating minor irregu-
larities, informalities, or apparent clerical mistakes in the proposal in order to clarify an offer and assure full 
understanding of, and responsiveness to, solicitation requirements. 
 

Public Record 

All proposals submitted in response to this Request for Proposals shall become the property of the County and 
shall become a matter of public record available for review after contract award notification. 
 
Proposal results ARE NOT provided in response to telephone or written inquires.  A tabulation of proposals 
received is on file in the Gila County Board of Supervisors Office, and Gila County Website, and available for 
review after contract award. 
 

Late Proposals 

Any proposal received later than the date and time specified on the Notice of Request for Proposal will not be 
considered. 
 

Submittal Proposal Format 

It is required that One (1) Original and One (1) copy (2 TOTAL), all with original signatures, on all required 
RFP documents be submitted.  The County will not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation of Pro-
posal, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy these 
forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not be considered.  Failure to include all required documents, 
all with original signatures, may invalidate the bid. 

 
1. By signature in the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page 33, Contractor certifies: 

A. The submission of the proposal did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any eco-

nomic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or service 
to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision,  County, 
City, Town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Contractor awarded the contract to 
provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the Proposal.  Delivery charges may differ-
entiate depending on geographical location. 

 
2. Proposals submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving proposals at 

the place and prior to the time designated for receipts of Proposals. 
 

3. The County is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 
confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the 
Proposal deadline. 

 

 

 

 



 13 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope as follows: 

1. A minimum of Three (3) copies, all with original signatures shall be provided by the bidder.   

2. The bidder’s company name shall be written on the outside front of the sealed envelope. 

3. The Proposal Title “Janitorial Service for Southern Gila County”, RFP No., “110514”, Date “April 08, 

2015”, and time “11:00 AM” of Proposal opening shall be written on the outside of the sealed enve-

lope.   

4. The Bidder shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated in the Notice.  

Late deliveries will not be considered for award. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 14 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Award of Contract   

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award the Proposal which is deemed to be 
in the best interest and most advantageous to the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any or other provisions of the RFP, the County reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all Proposals; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a Request for Proposal. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the County contracts to the lowest, 

responsive, most qualified, and responsible Contractor.  To ensure that all Contractors are experi-
enced, reasonably equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determi-
nation of responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the Proposal of any Contractor who has previously 

failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior Proposal for providing janitorial 
services similar in nature. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this Request for Proposal will be reviewed by the Gila County Attorney 

and Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Contractors who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose Proposals are most advantageous to the County may be invited to appear before the Board for 
an oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Contractor shall sign and file with the County, within ten (10) days after No-

tice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 

Protests 

Only other Contractors who have submitted a bid proposal for this RFP have the right to protest.  A protest of 
an award must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in 
writing and must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, 
Arizona  85501. 
 

Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  Contractor shall main-
tain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the operation of the busi-
ness conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the 
act. 
 
 

 

 



 15 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
EXHIBIT “B” BIDDER AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as the contract agreement to any Contractor, their agents, subcontractors and/or repre-
sentatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the County, by submitting Proposals to this or any 
other solicitation requiring sealed Proposals, does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of ac-
ceptance of these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) appearing on page 33, Offer and Acceptance 
Page, and Exhibit “D” Bidders Qualification and Certification Form pages 24-25. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The County maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Contractor hereby assigns to the County any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 

Authority to Contract 

This contract is based upon the Request for Proposal, Attached Exhibits and Forms, issued by the County and 
the offer submitted by the Contractor in response to the RFP.  The offer shall substantially conform to the 
terms, conditions, specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP and attached ex-
hibits.  All other conditions, specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of the RFP, attached 
exhibits and forms are incorporated by this reference into this contract.  The county reserves the right to clarify 
any contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the 
offer, as determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The con-
tract and incorporated RFP with attached exhibits and forms shall contain the entire agreement between Gila 
County and the Contractor relating to these requirements and shall prevail over any and all previous agree-
ments, contracts, proposals, negotiations, purchase orders, or master agreement in any form.  The contract ac-
tivity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Manager, after the Gila County Board of Supervisors ap-
proves the award.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any items or services awarded, or any other 
agreement that is based upon this contract may be made without express written approval of the Gila County 
Board of Supervisors in the form of an official contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the 
part of the Contractor or any agency is a violation of the County Procurement Code.  Any such action is subject 
to the legal and contractual remedies available to the County inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, 
suspension and/or debarment of the Contractor. 

 

Independent Contractor 

Contractor is an independent contractor of the County.  Contractor represents that he has or will secure, at his 
own expense, all personnel required in performing the services under this contract. Such personnel shall not be 
employees of or have any contractual relationship with the County.  All personnel engaged in work under this 
contract shall be fully qualified and shall be authorized or permitted under State and local law to perform such 
services.  Contractor warrants that he has obtained or will obtain Worker’s Compensation Insurance for his 
employees working on this contract and that any subcontractors will likewise obtain Worker’s Compensation 
Insurance for their employees working on this contract.  It is further agreed by Contractor that he shall obey all 
state and federal statutes, rules, and regulations which are applicable to provisions of the services called for 
herein.  Neither Contractor nor any employee of the Contractor shall be deemed an officer, employee, or agent 
of the County. 
 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of Su-
pervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Contractor. 

 

Contract Default 

A. The County, by written notice of default to the Contractor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 
 



 16 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
 

1. If  the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within the 
times specified; or 
 

2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the County terminates this contract in whole or part, the County may procure supplies or 

services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the County for any excess 
costs for such similar supplies or services. 

 

Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the 
event that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may 
treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Costs and Payments 

 Payment:  Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Title 35 and 41, Net 30 days.  Upon re-
ceipt and acceptance of goods and services, the Contractor shall submit a complete and accurate invoice for 
payment from the County within thirty (30) days.  Invoices may be submitted monthly, or bi-monthly, for 
services performed under this contract. 

 
 Payment of Taxes:  The Contractor shall be responsible for paying all applicable taxes. 
 
 Tax Indemnification:  Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay all Federal, state and local taxes applica-

ble to its operation and any persons employed by the Contractor.  Contractor shall, and require all subcon-
tractors to hold the County harmless from any responsibility for taxes, damages and interest, if applicable, 
contributions required under Federal, and/or state and local laws and regulations any other costs includ-
ing transaction privilege taxes, unemployment compensation insurance, Social Security and Worker’s 
Compensation. 

 
 IRS W9 Form:  In order to receive payment the Contractor shall have a current IRS W9 Form on file with 

the County unless not required by law.   
 
Note:  If County receives a Preliminary Lien Notice from a subcontractor the Contractor will provide Lien Waiv-
ers prior to Contractor receiving payment. 
 

Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and towns 
of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely acquisi-
tion and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The Contractor to whom this contract is awarded may be 
requested by other parties of said interactive purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the right to 
purchase supplies, equipment and services provided by the Contractor under this contract, pursuant to the 
terms and conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules and 
regulations of the respective entity and the approval of the Contractor. 
 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 

 

 



 17 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
Termination of Contract 

The County, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written consent, or by 
giving thirty (30) days written notice to you.  The County at its convenience, by written notice, may terminate 
this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the County shall be liable only for payment un-
der the payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received by the 
County before the effective date of termination. 
 
The County reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Contractor to 
carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The County will issue a written ten (10) day notice of 
default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions 
or services/specifications required in the contract. 
 

2. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor attempts to impose on the County material products, or 
workmanship, which is of unacceptable quality.  

 
3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service and/or product within the time stipulated in the con-

tract. 
 

4. In the opinion of the County, the Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the re-
quirements of the contract and/or give the County a positive indication that Contractor will not or 
cannot perform to the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the County created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of County, State and 
Federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.   
 
If funds are not allocated by the County and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the 
contract period for the service may be terminated by the County at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The County shall notify the Contractor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by 
a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the County in the event this provision is exercised, and the 
County shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of termina-
tion under this paragraph. 
 

Force Majeure 

Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other nor deemed in default under this Con-
tract if and to the extent that such party’s performance of this Contract is prevented by reason of Force 
Majeure.  The term “Force Majeure” means an occurrence that is beyond the control of the party affected and 
occurs without its fault or negligence.  Force Majeure shall not include late performance by a subcontractor 
unless the delay arises out of a Force Majeure occurrence in accordance with this Force Majeure term and con-
ditions. 
 
If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by Force Majeure, the delayed party shall noti-
fy the other party in writing of such delay, as soon as is practical, of the commencement thereof and shall speci-
fy the causes of such delay in such notice.  Such notice shall be hand-delivered or mailed certified-return re-
ceipt and shall make a specific reference to this article, thereby invoking its provisions.  The delayed party shall 
cause such delay to cease as soon as practicable and shall notify the other party in writing when it has done so.  
The time of completion shall be extended by contract modification for a period of time equal to the time that 
results or effects of such delay prevent the delayed party from performing in accordance with this Contract. 
 

 

 

 



 18 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
Indemnification Clause 

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation 
and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or 
loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the 
negligent or willful acts or omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees 
or subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Work-
ers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such contractor to conform to any federal, state or local 
law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the In-
demnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of 
the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that Contractor 
will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is 
applicable.  In consideration of the award of this contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of subroga-
tion against the County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from the work performed 
by the Contractor for the County. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 19 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 

 
EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 

It is the intent of this Invitation for Proposals to enter into a contract with a qualified Contractor to provide jan-
itorial services for Southern Gila County facilities. 
 

General Purpose 

1. All product specifications are minimum.   
 
2. Contractor should have adequate manufacturing/stocking facilities to serve the needs of Gila County. 
 
3. All Proposals must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless otherwise stated 

in the Proposal specifications. 
 
4. Contractor shall review its Proposal submission to assure the following requirements are met. 

a. One (1) original and two (2) copies, total of three (3), all with original signatures shall be sub-

mitted 

b. Qualification and Certification Form  

c. Price Sheet  

d. References List  

e. No Collusion Certification  

f. Intentions Concerning Subcontracting  

g. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance  

h. Bidder’s Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment   

i. Offer and Acceptance Page   

j. Background Investigation Authorization 

k. W9 

 

Term and Renewal 
The term of the Contract shall commence upon award and remain in effect for a period of one (1) year, unless 
terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein.  The Contractor agrees that the County shall 
have the right, at its sole option, to renew the Contract for three (3) more additional one-year periods or por-
tions thereof.  In the event the County exercises such rights, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the original 
contract, and any amendments issued during the term of the contract, shall remain the same and apply during 
the renewal period with the possible exception of price and/or minor scope additions and and/or deletions. 
 

Price Adjustment 

The County may review a fully documented request for a price increase only after the Contract has been in ef-
fect for one (1) year.  A price increase adjustment shall only be considered at the time of a contract extension 
and shall be a factor in the extension review process.  The Board of Supervisors shall determine whether the 
requested Contract price increase or an alternate option is in the best interest of the County.  Any agreed upon 
Contract price changes will be applied to each specific location under the contract and documented on the re-
newal amendment as requested. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 20 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
Evaluation of Proposal  
Award shall be made to the responsible Offeror whose proposal is determined to be the most advantageous to 
the County based upon the evaluation criteria listed below.  The evaluation factors are listed in their relative 
order of importance and percentage weight. 
 

a.    Cost (50%) 
b.    Qualifications and Prior Experience (30%) 
c.    Conformity to Submittal Requirements (10%) 
d.    References (10%) 

 
 
Negotiations with Individual Contractors 
 Gila County may establish procedures and schedules for conducting Negotiations.  Disclosure of a Contrac-

tors Price or any information derived from competing Proposal Prices or any information derived from 
competing Proposals is prohibited.   

 
a.    Any Response to a request for Clarification of a Proposal shall be in writing.   
b.    Gila County shall keep a record of all Negotiations. 

 
 For the purposes of conducting Negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the following 

methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 
 

a. Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with Responsible Contrac-
tors for the purpose of determining source selection and/or Contract Award.  

 
b. Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the Director to enter into exclusive Ne-

gotiations with the Responsible Contractor whose Proposal is determined in the selection process 
to be most advantageous to the County. 

 
 Exclusive Negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent Negotiations or may be conducted 

without requiring previous concurrent Negotiations.  
 

a. A determination to conduct exclusive Negotiations shall not constitute a Contract Award nor shall 
it confer any property rights to the successful Contractor.   

 
b. If exclusive Negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the County may enter in-

to exclusive Negotiations with the next highest rank Contractor without the need to repeat the 
formal Solicitation process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 21 

 



 22 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their obligations have been discharged, 
including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance against claims for injury to persons 
or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by 
the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way limit the in-
demnity covenants contained in this Contract.  The County in no way warrants that the minimum limits con-
tained herein are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of 
the work under this contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors and 
Contractor is free to purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary.  
 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of liabil-

ity not less than those stated below. 
 
 1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 
 General Aggregate $2,000,000 
 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 
 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. Policy shall be endorsed to include master key coverage. 
b. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The Coun-

ty of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of 
the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

c. Policy shall be endorsed to include coverage for "care-custody-control". 
 

2. Automobile Liability 
  Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used in the per-

formance of this Contract. 
  Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The Coun-
ty of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of 
the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor, including automobiles 
owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor". 

 

3. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 
 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 
a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 

 
B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 

following provisions: 
1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of Gila 

shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect 
to all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the indemni-
fication provisions of this Contract. 

 



 23 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION:  Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Con-

tract shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in cover-
age or endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the 
County.  Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 
85501, and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved unli-

censed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The Coun-
ty in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the Con-
tractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance 

(ACORD form or equivalent approved by the County) as required by this Contract.  The certificates for 
each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its be-
half. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work com-

mences.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or prior to commencement 
of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.   

 
 Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide evidence of renewal 

is a material breach of contract. 
 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Gila County Purchasing, 1400 E. Ash 

St., Globe, AZ 85501.  The County project/contract number and project description shall be noted on the 
certificate of insurance.  The County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all insur-
ance policies required by this Contract at any time.   

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured’s 

under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the County separate certificates and endorsements for 
each subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements 
identified above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Contract shall be 

made by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal Con-
tract amendment, but may be made by administrative action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 24 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
EXHIBIT “D” Bidder Qualifications and Certification 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of Contrac-
tors under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 110514 Janitorial Service for Southern Gila County 
 
The applicant submitting this Proposal warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Physical Address, E-Mail Address and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   ________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons 

Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 

3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from com-

peting for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the contracting 

agency, the reasons for the Contractors disqualification, and whether this disqualification remains in ef-

fect in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 

4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract with the Contractor prior to contract expiration date 

(under your Contractor’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details 

including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated in the narrative 

part of this Contract. 

 

5. CONTRACTOR  MUST ALSO PROVIDE AT LEAST THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION ALONG WITH 

THEIR PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL:   

a. A brief history of the Company. 

b. A Cost Proposal shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached herein and made a full part of 

this contract by this reference. 

c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to the Scope 

of Services described herein, shall be submitted on the Reference List, attached herein and made 

a full part of this contract by this reference. 

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services. 

e. A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must accompany 

the Proposal.   

f. Sealed list of “equipment used” in performing the services must accompany proposal submitted 

by Contractor. 

g. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

 



 25 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
 

6. Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  ___________________________________________ 
                                              (If Applicable) 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a business’ computed 
loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, can reward policyholders with 
lower losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining factor in bid award. 

 

7. Current Contractor Business License Number:  ___________________________________________________________ 
                    (If Applicable) 

 

8. Contractor must provide copies of all required Arizona Certifications and Licenses in performing the 
scope of services provided in this request for proposals. 

         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
       ____________________________________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ____________________________________________________________ 
       Title 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 26 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
PRICE SHEET 

Please complete price sheet in its entirety for the services provided in RFP 110514 Janitorial Service for South-
ern Gila County. 
 
Contractor Name:  ____________________________________________________            Phone No.:  _____________________________ 

 

 
 

Location 
Square  

Foot 
Annual Cost  
Per Location 

 
Gila County Courthouse 

1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, AZ 

 
31,740 

 
    $ 

   
Guerrero Building 

1405 E. Ash Street, Globe, AZ 

 
5,886 

 
    $ 

 
Health & Community Services 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Globe, AZ 

 
32,502 

 
    $ 

 
WIC Building 

5515 S. Apache Ave., Globe, AZ 

 
1,792 

 
    $ 

 
Public Works Administration Building 

745 N. Rose Mofford Way, Globe, AZ 

 
10,130 

 
    $ 

 
Facilities/Sign Shop Building 

725 N. Rose Mofford Way, Globe, AZ 

 
2,197 

 
    $ 

 
Michaelson Building 

157 S. Broad Street, Globe, AZ 

 
7,952 

 
    $ 

   

 
TOTAL ANNUAL COST FOR JANITORIAL SERVICE 

   
   $ 

Copper Administration Building 
1350 E. Monroe Street, Globe, AZ 

19,902  

 
TOTAL ANNUAL COST INCLUDING COPPER ADMINISTRATION 

BUILDING 

   
   $ 

 



 27 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
PRICE SHEET (continued) 

 
BILLABLE WORK:  (page 9) Cost Per Square Foot 

 
Cost for Carpet Cleaning 

       
     $            

 
Cost for Stripping & Waxing Floors 

      
     $ 

 
 

*Each location shall be billed separately with location identified on invoice when submitted to Gila County Ac-
counts Payable Department for payment.  County Terms “Net 30”.  Services shall be billed monthly 

 
All applicable taxes shall be included in proposed amount. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 28 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
REFERENCES LIST 

 
References 

Please list a minimum of three (3) references for contracts of similar size and scope as this Request for Pro-
posals during the past twenty-four (24) months, in or as close to Gila County as possible.  Bidder may attach 
further reference information as necessary. 
 
 
1. Company Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone:  ________________________     Address:  ____________________________________________________________ 

Job Length of Time:       _______________Months          _______________Years 

Job Description:  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
2. Company Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone:  ________________________     Address:  ____________________________________________________________ 

Job Length of Time:       _______________Months          _______________Years 

Job Description:  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
3. Company Name:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact:  _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone:  ________________________     Address:  ____________________________________________________________ 

Job Length of Time:       _______________Months          _______________Years 

Job Description:  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
        ____________________________________________________________ 

           Company Name 
 

 _____________________________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

____________________________________________________________ 
           Title 

 



 29 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
AFFIDAVIT BY CONTRACTOR 

CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 
IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 

 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 

)ss 
COUNTY OF:   ) 

 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________                                                                     
(Name of Individual) 
 
being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he/she is _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                 (Title)  

of___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ and 
                                                                                     (Name of Business) 

 
 
That he/she is bidding on Gila County BID NO. 110514 JANITORIAL SERVICE FOR SOUTHERN GILA 

COUNTY, GLOBE, AZ, and, 
 
 
 

That neither he/she nor anyone associated with the said  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                      (Name of Business) 
 
 
 
has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise taken any ac-
tion in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above mentioned project. 
 

 

        __________________________________________________________ 
Name of Business 

 
__________________________________________________________  
By 

 
__________________________________________________________ 
Title 

 
 

 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ______________ day of ____________________________, 20____________. 

 
______________________________________________________________                My Commission expires: 
Notary Public   
                ________________________________________________ 

 

 



 30 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 

 
 
 At the time of the submission of bids for Request for Proposals No. 110514, Janitorial Service for 
Southern Gila County, my intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is as indicated below. 
 
 In indicating that it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work, this will acknowledge that 
such subcontractor will be identified and approved by the Facilities Manager prior to award of the contract; 
and that documentation, such as copies of letters, requests for quotations, quotations, etc., substantiating the 
actions taken and the responses to such actions is on file and available for review. 

A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must accompany the 
Proposal response.  The list must include the subcontractors name, address, and phone number. 
 

Any subcontractor not listed with the bid must be approved by the County Facilities Manager prior to 
providing any work pursuant to this contract.  Further, contractor warrants that all subcontractors will comply 
with all terms and conditions of this contract including but not limited to all insurance and worker’s compensa-
tion coverage provisions of this contract.  The County reserves the right to terminate the contract if the con-
tractor fails to comply with the provisions of this certification. 
 
 
 
 
 

     It is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 

 

     It is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 ____________________________________________________________  

                 Name of Firm 
 

     ____________________________________________________________  
                     By: (Signature) 

 

     ____________________________________________________________  
                                                                                                 Title 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 31 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 

 
Contractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. 
§ 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure that each 
subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise complies with the State and 
Federal Immigration Laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any subcontractor in 
order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   
 
 Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal Immigra-
tion Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract 
subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If the breach 
is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be required 
to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been provided under 
the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor as soon as possible so as not to delay delivery of ser-
vices.   
 
 Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 
Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:  “Subcontractor hereby 
warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal immigration laws appli-
cable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further 
agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to insure that Subcontractor is in com-
pliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed to be a mate-
rial breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination 
of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the respon-
sibility of Contractor.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________________________ 
        Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
        __________________________________________________ 
        Printed Name 
 
        __________________________________________________ 
        Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 32 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
BIDDER CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed and/or executed and submitted with 
this Request for Proposals (RFP).  If Contractor fails to complete and/or execute any portion of the Bid docu-
ments, all with original signatures, the RFP may be determined to be “non-responsive” and rejected. 
 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED / EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM                     _________________ 

PRICE SHEET                    _________________ 

REFERENCE LIST                    _________________ 

NO COLLUSION IN BIDDING                   _________________ 

INTENTIONS IN SUBCONTRACTING                  _________________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE                _________________ 

BIDDER’S CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT               _________________ 

OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE PAGE                  _________________ 

BACKGROUND AUTHORIZATION                  _________________ 

W-9                     _________________ 

  
 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

    #1  #2               #3             #4           #5 

INITIALS         _______________        _______________      _______________      _______________     _______________ 
 
DATE         _______________        _______________      _______________      _______________     _______________  
 

 

Signed and dated this __________________ day of ____________________________________, 2015. 
 
 
               ____________________________________________________________ 
                                          Contractor: 

                 ____________________________________________________________ 
                                     By:   
 

 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Gila County Purchasing Department and bearing 
the following statement on the outside of the envelope:  Company Name, Request for Sealed Proposals No. 
110514 Janitorial Service for Southern Gila County.  All proposals shall be filed with Gila County Procurement at 
1400 E. Ash St., Guerrero Building, Globe, AZ on or before April 08, 2015, 11:00 AM. 



 33 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS NO. 110514   

JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY 

 
OFFER AND ACCEPTANCE 

 
TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and 
conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this Request for Proposal document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Contractors bid proposal is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid proposal is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Contractor submitting 
the proposal has not revealed the contents of the proposal to, or in any way colluded with, any other Contractor 
which may compete for the contract; and that no other Contractor which may compete for the contract has re-
vealed the contents of a proposal to, or in any way colluded with, the Contractor submitting this proposal. 
 
 
 
 
Contractor Submitting Proposal: 

 

__________________________________________________________ 

Company Name 

__________________________________________________________ 

Address 

__________________________________________________________ 

City                                       State                     Zip 

__________________________________________________________ 

Signature of Person Authorized to Sign 

__________________________________________________________ 

Printed Name 

__________________________________________________________ 

Title 

For Clarification of this Offer, Contact: 

 

Name:  _________________________________________________ 

 

Title:  __________________________________________________ 

 

Phone No.: ____________________________________________ 

 

Fax:  ____________________________________________________ 

 

Email: __________________________________________________ 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

 

The Contractor is now bound to provide the materials or services listed in RFP No.: 110514 including all terms 

and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the Contractor’s Offer as accepted by County/public entity.  

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as Contract No. _______110514_______. 

 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
Awarded this ________ day of _____________________, 2015 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 

ATTEST 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy County Attorney/Civil 
Bureau Chief  
for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 



 34 

 

 

 

 

Waiver of Liability and Release Form 

BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION AUTHORIZATION 

 

 

I _________________________.__________ hereby give the Gila County Purchasing Department the right   
               (Print First, Middle Initial, & Last Name) 

 

to make a thorough investigation of my background as part of the bidding proposal process for Bid 

No.110514. 

 

The term “back-ground investigation” as used in this document refers to any and all information and 

sources of information that may be deemed necessary to obtain or contact, to determine the offerors fitness 

as a bid award candidate. 

 

I understand that I do not have to agree to this background investigation, but that refusal to do so may ex-

clude me from consideration for bid award. 

 

I understand that information collected during this investigation will be limited to that appropriate to de-

termining my suitability for the project out for bids and that all such information collected during the inves-

tigation will be kept confidential. 

 

I hereby release from liability and promise to hold harmless, under any and all possible causes of legal ac-

tion, any and all persons or entities who shall furnish any information or opinions to the Purchasing De-

partment, its agents or employees. 

 

I hereby release from liability and promise to hold harmless, under any and all possible causes of legal ac-

tion, the political subdivision, the Purchasing Department, its agents or employees for any statements, acts 

or omissions in the course of my background investigation. 

 

I release from liability given by me to the political division, its officers, agents and employees, all others as 

mentioned above, shall apply to any rights of action arising from the denial of bid award based on infor-

mation received from the background investigation.    

 

 

Please read carefully before signing.      

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:  _______________________________________  Date:  __________________ 

 

 

 

Date of Birth:  _____________________ 



DESCRIPTION

Square Foot
Annual Cost per 

Location

Annual Cost per 

Location/per SF

Annual Cost 

per Location

Annual Cost per 

Location/per SF

Annual Cost per 

Location

Annual Cost per 

Location/per SF

Annual Cost per 

Location

Annual Cost per 

Location/per SF

JANITORIAL     

Gila County Courthouse 31,740  $       27,792.46 0.88  $      32,119.45 1.01  $       38,220.00 1.20  $       21,960.00  $                        0.69 

Guerrero Building 5,886  $         5,618.97 0.95  $        7,070.12 1.20  $         6,360.00 1.08  $         6,144.00  $                        1.04 

Health & Community Services 21,934  $       16,338.95 0.74  $      22,354.88 1.02  $       19,140.00 0.87  $       27,816.00  $                        1.27 

WIC Building 1,792  $         4,554.60 2.54  $        2,394.07 1.34  $         3,120.00 1.74  $         6,144.00  $                        3.43 

Public Works Administration Building 10,130  $         8,102.50 0.80  $      10,741.27 1.06  $         9,600.00 0.95  $       10,776.00  $                        1.06 

Facilities/Sign Shop 2,197  $         4,554.60 2.07  $        2,641.99 1.20  $         3,120.00 1.42  $         6,144.00  $                        2.80 

Michaelson Building 7,952  $         8,102.50 1.02  $        8,379.90 1.05  $         6,360.00 0.80  $         9,420.00  $                        1.18 

TOTAL ANNUAL COST: 81,631  $       75,064.58  $      85,701.68  $       85,920.00  $       88,404.00 

Copper Administration Building 19,902  $       16,972.25 0.85  $      19,288.48 0.97  $       19,140.00 0.96  $       18,420.00  $                        0.93 

TOTAL 101,533  $       92,036.83 0.906  $   104,990.16 1.034  $    105,060.00 1.035  $    106,824.00  $                      1.052 

Billable Work per SF:

Cost for Carpet Cleaning  $               0.180  $              0.085  $               0.080  $               0.085 

Cost for Stipping & Waxing Floors  $               0.250  $              0.225  $               0.050  $               0.210 

Marsden West Carnation Building Service, Inc.

RFP NO 110514

JANITORIAL SERVICE FOR SOUTHERN GILA COUNTY

Jani-Serv, Inc. WCD Enterprises













































































































































































































































































































































































      BID  

TITLE:

      BID              DUE

      NO.: DATE:
 

WCD Enterprises (Wes)                                                                         

wes.dryden@yahoo.com                                                              

480-415-3416                                             

emailed 03-20-15/9:18 A.M.

Jani-Serv Inc. (Bill)                                                                          

bill@janiservinc.com                                                              

602-387-0770                                             

emailed 03-20-15/9:18 A.M.

Carnation Building Services (John)                                                                    

jvaughn@carnationbldgsvcs.com                                                           

303-340-4828                                             

emailed 03-20-15/9:18 A.M.

emailed 03-20-15/9:18 A.M.

McGraw Hill Dodge (Veronica)                                                                          

veronica.williford@mhfi.com                                                                                                          

QUOTE TABULATION FORM

GILA COUNTY

Service Master                                                                             

jchikie@aol.com                                                               

928-474-0610                                             

Janitorial Service for Southern Gila County

emailed 03-20-15/9:18 A.M.

emailed 03-20-15/9:18 A.M.

Daniana Professional Cleaning Services                                                                          

danianapcs@gmail.com                                                              

602-714-9354                                             

emailed 03-20-15/9:18 A.M.

emailed 03-20-15/9:18 A.M.

Blue Book (Danielle)                                                                          

dbenson@bluebook.com                                                                                             

R

A

N

K

I

N

G

Moonlite Janitorial Services                                          

no email-mailed out RFP                                                         

928-474-5352

mailed hard copy 03-20-15

emailed 03-20-15/9:18 A.M.

110514 11:00 A.M. 4/08/2015

COMMENTS

Executive Cleaning Service LLC (Tom)                                                                        

tomecs@optonline.net                                                            

888-984-4501

BIDDER FIRM NAME BID AMOUNT

A Touch of Class (Bunnie)                                                                      

dragonflyzblue@gmail.com                                                              

928-951-0603                                             



Debbie Does Dusting (Debbie)                                                                 

debbiedoesdustingaz@yahoo.com                                                       

602-510-0886                                            

emailed 03-20-15/9:18 A.M.



 

 

 





 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-3143     Regular Agenda Item      3. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

9-28-15 to
10-31-15

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Invitation for Bid No. 040615 - Colcord Road Paving Project.

Background Information
Gila County holds an easement from the Tonto National Forest on 5.35 miles of Forest
Road 291, east of Payson, AZ, (Colcord Road), from SR 260 to Colcord Estates.  By
paving an unpaved portion of Colcord Road, it will reduce emergency response
time, improve dust control and provide better road conditions for the residents and
visitors to the County.

Evaluation
This is a project that Gila County has wanted to do for quite some time.  By paving a
portion of the unpaved roadway, it will reduce emergency response time, reduce dust,
improve driving conditions and eliminate the need for the County to routinely blade
the 1.2 miles.

Colcord Road is a forest road under easement to Gila County.  The road serves
multiple subdivisions in the area.  The road is approximately 5.35 miles long.  The
beginning 2.2 miles from SR 260 have a paved surface.  The remaining 3.15 miles of
road are unpaved.  This project would continue the pavement from the 2.2 miles of
paved roadway, to Gordon Canyon Bridge, approximately 1.2 miles.  Gila County will
preform the subgrade prep and will provide traffic control and a water truck for dust
control.

This paving project was first identified and included in the County's fiscal year
2012/2013 budget under Capital Improvement Funds.  For various reasons, the
project has been bumped to later years.  Now the project is ready to move forward with
the intent to extend the paved surface for approximately 1.2 miles.  This will reduce
maintenance and provide a better surface for the traveling public.

Conclusion
By paving a portion of the unpaved 3.15 miles of Colcord Road in northern Gila



By paving a portion of the unpaved 3.15 miles of Colcord Road in northern Gila
County, it will reduce emergency response time, reduce dust and improve driving
conditions for the public.  It will also eliminate 1.2 miles of dirt road that routinely
needs blading.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Deputy Director and the Finance Division Director
recommend that the Board of Supervisors authorize the advertisement of Invitation for
Bids No. 040615 - Colcord Road Paving Project, to be published for two (2) consecutive
weeks in the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation for Bids
No. 040615 - Colcord Road Paving Project. 
(Jeff Hessenius and Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
Invitation to Bid No. 040615





 

 

 
 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

BID CALL 040615 
 
 

COLCORD ROAD PAVING PROJECT 
 
 
 

BIDDER’S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

Tommie C. Martin, Vice Chairman 
John D. Marcanti, Member 

 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 

Don E. McDaniel, Jr. 

 
 
 

*Public Works Director* 
Steve Stratton 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  Content                                                                               Page 

 

Table of Contents ........................................................................................................................... 1 

Advertisement ............................................................................................................................... 2 

Scope of Work ............................................................................................................................ 3-7 

Exhibit “A”:  Instructions to Contractors ..................................................................................... 8-12 
 Preparation of Sealed Bids .............................................................................................................. 8 
 Bid Bid Guaranty/Requirement of Contract Bonds ......................................................................... 9 
 Amendments/Inquiries ................................................................................................................. 10 
 Late Bid/Submittal Bid Format ...................................................................................................... 11 
  
General Terms and Conditions ................................................................................................. 13-14 

Acceptance Contract/Agreement ................................................................................................. 13 
 Protests/Laws and Ordinances ...................................................................................................... 14 
  

Exhibit “B”:  Contractor Award Agreement .............................................................................. 15-20 
 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations/Authority to Contract ......................................................... 15 
 Contract Amendments/Contract Default/Right to Assurance ...................................................... 16 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement ........................................................................ 16 
 Cancellation of County Contracts/Termination of Contract ......................................................... 17 
 Compensation & Method of Payment/Payment of Taxes ............................................................ 18 
 IRS W-9 Form/Purchase Orders .................................................................................................... 18 
 Force Majeure ............................................................................................................................... 19 
 Warranties/General ...................................................................................................................... 20 
 Bid Evaluation Process .................................................................................................................. 20 

Exhibit “C”:  Minimum Product Specifications/Information ...................................................... 21-25 
 Section 1.0; General Purpose ........................................................................................................ 21 
 Section 2.0; Bid Pricing .................................................................................................................. 22 
 Section 3.0; Price Adjustments ..................................................................................................... 22 
 Section 4.0; Order and Delivery .................................................................................................... 23 
 Section 5.0; Negotiations with Individual Contractors ................................................................. 24 
 Section 6.0; Product Specifications ............................................................................................... 25 

Insurance Provisions ............................................................................................................... 26-30 
 Indemnification Clause .................................................................................................................. 26 
 Insurance Requirements .......................................................................................................... 26-30  

Qualification and Certification Forms (Signature Required)....................................................... 31-32 

Reference List (Signature Required) .............................................................................................. 33 

Bid Price Sheet (Signature Required) ............................................................................................. 34 

No Collusion Certification (Signature Required)  ............................................................................ 35 

Intentions Concerning Subcontracting (Signature Required) .......................................................... 36 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance (Signature Required) ......................................................... 37 

Surety Bond (Signatures Required) ............................................................................................... 38 

Contractor Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment (Signature Required) ....................................... 39 

Offer Page (Signature Required) .............................................................................................. 40-41 

Statutory Performance Bond/Statutory Labor & Materials Bond .............................................. 42-43 



 2 

 

 

GILA COUNTY 
PROCUREMENT GROUP 

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID 

1400 East Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 

85501 

 BID NUMBER 
               040615 

BID DUE DATE: June 12, 2015 TIME: 11:00 AM MST 
 

DESCRIPTION: Colcord Road Paving 
 
PRE-BID CONFERENCE: Monday, June 1, 2015/10:00 A.M. 
 
Bid Opening and Submittal Location:   Gila County Guerrero Conference Room  

Guerrero Building 
1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, AZ  85501 

  
In accordance with A.R.S. §41-2533, Invitation For Bid No. 040615 for the materials or services specified will be 
received by the Gila County Finance Department at the above specified location until the time and date cited.   
 
Request for submittals after the specified date and time to the Finance Department shall not be considered.  To 
receive bid documents contact the Contracts Administrator at (928) 402-8612. 
 
Additional instructions for preparing a bid are provided in Exhibit “A”, of the bid documents to Offerors as 
contained within this solicitation. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all bids, or to accept any bid, or to waive any 
informality in any bid, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.  All procurement 
activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the Gila County 
procurement code.  A copy of the Code is available for review in the office of the Clerk of the Board, Gila County 
Courthouse, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ.         
                   
Advertisement Dates:  May 13th and May 20th, 2015 

 
BIDDERS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE SOLICITATION. 

 
Designated 
Department: 

Gila County Public Works Division Consolidated Roads 

Type of Contract: Term 
Term of Contract: 30 Days 
Phone Number: 928-402-8612 

 
 

Signed:  Date:             /              / 
 Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors   

 
Signed:  Date:             /              / 

 Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief 
for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 

  

 



 3 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

This scope pertains to the section of Colcord Road at the end of the pavement to the Gordon 

Canyon Bridge abutment. The work consists of extending the pavement approximately 1.2 miles 

beyond the point of the existing pavement to include asphalt concrete (AC) paving with two (2) 

thirteen foot (13 ft.) driving lanes with a total width of twenty six feet (26 ft.). 

 

The intent of this Invitation for Bids is to provide for construction and completion, in every detail, 

of the work described.  It is further intended that the Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, 

equipment, tools, and supplies required to complete the work in accordance with the plans, 

specifications, and terms of the contract. 

 

All specifications, and terms and conditions, under the Contract include furnishing at least, but not 

limited to, minimum product specifications. Contractors who agree to provide the minimum bid 

Specification for this bid shall be considered for award. 

 

Goals and Objectives 

 All work must conform to the M.A.G. Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works 

Construction Edition 2012 and all current revisions thereto. 

 Standard Details refer to the M.A.G. Standard Details for Public Works Construction. 

 Disposal of all waste material will be the responsibility of the contractor, subject to the 

approval of the County Project Manager. 

 A tapered edge treatment for cattle guards and bridge abutments shall be per Attachment 

“A”. 

 

Construction Schedule   

Prior to commencement of the work the Contractor shall prepare and submit a written 

schedule covering the general sequence of the work to be performed.  Contractors work 

schedule on the job will be Monday through Thursday, except holidays. First truck will be at 

7:00 A.M. and last truck through the job will be at 3:30 P.M.  The work schedule, after review 

and acceptance, shall not be changed without written consent.  The contractor shall assume 

the full responsibility for performing the work in an orderly process under the Contract. 

 

Public Convenience and Safety 

The Contractor shall control his operations and those of his subcontractors and all suppliers, to 

assure the least inconvenience to the public.  Under all circumstances, safety shall be the most 

important consideration. 

 
 



 4 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Scope of Work continued….. 

Before the Contractor or any subcontractor begins work on the project they must read the Gila 

County Public Works Division Safety & Loss Control booklet and sign an acknowledgement 

form. All work shall be performed by Federal OSHA Standards. 

 

Maintenance of Traffic 

Gila County will furnish, erect, and maintain barricades, warning signs, and other traffic control 

devices in reasonable conformity with the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices for 

Streets and Highways (MUTCD) PART VI, unless otherwise specified herein.  The County shall 

also construct and maintain in a safe condition any temporary connections necessary for 

ingress to and egress from abutting property or intersecting roads, streets or highways.   

 
Any work done or materials used without supervision or inspection by an authorized 

representative of the County may be ordered removed and replaced at the Contractor’s 

expense unless the County’s representative failed to inspect after having been given 

reasonable notice in writing that the work was to be performed. 

 

Inspection of Work 

All materials and each part or detail of the work shall be subject to inspection by the County’s 

Engineer or designee.  The County’s Engineer or designee shall be allowed access to all parts of 

the work and shall be furnished with such information and assistance by the Contractor as is 

required to make a complete and detailed inspection. 

 

Quantities 

Quantities appearing in the Bid Documents are approximate only and are to be used for the 

comparison of bids.  County estimates the asphalt quantity should not exceed 3,400 tons. 

 

Asphalt Testing 

 Contractor, at its own cost, shall provide sampling and density testing per MAG 

Standard Specifications.   

 
A testing lab approved by the County Engineer or designee shall perform such testing.  

Contractor, at its cost, shall provide Quality Control personnel.   

 
Each report shall indicate the location at which the test was made, the date, the type 

and source of material tested, test designation and name of person performing the 

test.  All tests shall be submitted to the County Engineer or designee within five (5) days 

after the test is performed. 

 



 5 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Scope of Work continued….. 

 

The frequency of samples taken shall be a minimum of one (1) per day or as determined by the 

County Engineer or designee. 

 
The frequency of density testing shall be every one thousand feet (1,000 ft.) per lane.  Exact 

locations of tests may be designated by the County Engineer or designee.  The County Engineer 

or designee has the authority to require density testing to be done by nuclear compaction 

method.  All costs associated with this method shall be at Contractors expense. 

 
 Material sampling and density testing for asphalt concrete shall be per MAG Standard 

Specifications Section 321. 

 
Each report shall indicate the location at which the test was made, the date, the type of 

source of material tested, test designation and name of person performing the test.  All 

tests are to be submitted to the County engineer or designee within five (5) field days 

after the test. 

 
Material sample testing for asphalt concrete shall include gradation and asphalt content.  A 

minimum of one (1) sample per one thousand, two hundred (1,200) tons of material, but no 

less than one (1) sample from each source, is required for each day of paving or as determined 

by the County Engineer or designee. 

 

A rolling pattern shall be established by a testing firm for the Contractor to follow at the 

Contractors expense.  County may review the pattern and discuss options. 

 

Subgrade Preparation 

Subgrade preparation shall be done by Gila County per MAG Standard Specification Section 

301. 

 Material sampling and density testing for subgrade and aggregate base materials shall 

be per MAG Standard Specifications Section 310. Gila County will offer all testing results 

of subgrade to the Contractor. 

 

Work under this section shall include all grading under the roadway pavement area in addition 

to all grading outside the pavement area.  Subgrade within the area of measurement shall be 

compacted to a minimum of ninety-five percent (95%) at the optimum moisture content prior 

to base course placement.  Work under this section shall also include grading and compacting 

the fore slope and back slope per the typical roadway section.  All work outside of the 

measurement area shall be compacted 90% minimum.   

 



 6 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Scope of Work continued….. 

 

Aggregate Base Course  

      The aggregate base course will be prepared by Gila County. 

 

 A four inch (4”) Aggregate Base Course layer shall be constructed according to ADOT 

Standard Specifications Class 2. Compaction shall have a density of not less than one 

hundred percent (100%). 

 

 County shall place a minimum of four inches (4”) of Aggregate Base Course and 

placement shall adhere to MAG Standard Specifications Section 310.  

 

 County shall maintain the accepted grade with the proper moisture content until 

placement of subsequent surface course.   

 

 Traffic shall be restricted to a minimum until placement of subsequent surface course 

to avoid segregation of the aggregate base material.   

 

 Compacted layers of aggregate base shall be maintained in a condition satisfactory to 

receive any subsequent surface material or traffic, when so required.  Areas not within 

the allowable tolerance shall be corrected by scarifying, placing additional material, 

remixing, reshaping re-compacting to the specified density and surface tolerance.   

 

Asphalt Concrete Pavement 

 Mix design shall be per MAG Standard Specification 710 (3/4” / 19mm). 

 

 A finished 2.5” AC Pavement layer over 4” AB shall be constructed per the 

requirements of MAG Standard Specifications Section 321.  

  

 Asphaltic concrete pavement shall have a density of not less than 95%. 

 
 Taper for cattle guards and bridge abutment shall be constructed as in Attachment “A”. 

 

Payment shall be per ton in accordance with the Bid Schedule for all work complete and in 

place.  All other costs associated with this item shall be incorporated in to the bid price. 

 

 

 

 



 7 

 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Scope of Work continued….. 

 

Final Cleanup 

Contractor, at its own cost, shall restore the site to pre-construction conditions.  Before final 

acceptance, all private or public property and grounds occupied by the Contractor in 

connection with the work shall be cleaned of all rubbish; excess materials, temporary 

structures and equipment, and all parts of the work shall be left in a condition acceptable to 

the County Project Manager.   

 

Contract Time 

Contractor shall complete all project work within ten (10) working days from the date the 

Contractor receives the Notice to Proceed from the County. 

 

 

TYPICAL SECTION – COLCORD ROAD:   ATTACHMENT “A” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 8 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO CONTRACTORS 

 

IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO CONTRACTORS AND EXHIBIT “B”, CONTRACTORS 

AWARD AGREEMENT ARE BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS 

MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT LANGUAGE FOR INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE 

APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL APPEAR IN EXHIBIT “C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT 

SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER THE LANGUAGE APPEARING 

IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 

 

EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO CONTRACTORS 

 

Preparation of Bid 

A. Bids will be received by the County of Gila Finance Department, from Contractors to deliver 

the product(s), goods and services contained to establish a contract for specified locations 

within Gila County.  The County seeks Sealed Bids only from qualified, experienced 

Contractors able to provide service which is, in all respects, responsive to the 

specifications.  All Bids shall be on the forms provided in this Invitation for Bids package.  It 

is permissible to copy these forms if required. 

 

B. Before submitting its Bid, each Contractor shall familiarize itself with the Scope of Work, 

and laws, regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully 

correlate its observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of 

the expense and difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a 

Bid will constitute a representation of compliance by the Contractor. There will be no 

subsequent financial adjustment, other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of 

such familiarization. 

 

C. Contractors must complete the attached forms in this Invitation for Bids package in full, 

original signature in ink on all copies, by the person(s) authorized to sign the Bid and to be 

submitted at the time of Bid, and made a part of this contract.  The County will use the Bid 

and attached forms in evaluating the capacity of Contractors to perform the Scope of 

Services as set forth in the Contract.  Failure of any Contractor(s) to complete and submit 

the Price Sheet and Signature/Offer Page at time and place of opening, shall be grounds for 

automatic disqualification of Contractor(s) from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the Bid must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 

 
 



 9 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Exhibit “A” – Instructions to Contractors continued….. 

 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the Invitation for Bid shall be listed 

on the Bid. 

 

F. No alterations in Bids, or in the printed forms therefore, by erasures, interpolations, or 

otherwise will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the 

Contractor; if initialed, the County may require the Contractor to identify any alteration so 

initialed. 

 

Bid Bid Guaranty 
 
Each bid Bid shall be accompanied by a certified check, cashier’s check or surety bond for ten 

percent (10%) of the amount of the bid included in the Bid as a guarantee that the Contractor will 

enter into a contract to perform the proposed work in accordance with the plans and 

specifications.  

 

Requirement of Contract Bonds 

 

At the time of the execution of the contract, the successful bidder shall furnish the County a 

Statutory Performance Bond and a Statutory Labor and Materials Bond or bonds which have been 

fully executed by the bidder and his surety guaranteeing the performance of the work, and the 

payment of all legal debts that may be incurred by reason of the Contractor's performance of the 

work, unless the successful bidder chooses not to take a payment draw.  The surety and the form 

of the bond or bonds shall be acceptable to the County.  Unless otherwise specified, the surety 

bond or bonds shall be in a sum equal to the full amount of the contract.  All bonds shall conform 

to the requirements of A.R.S. §34-222 and §34-223.  Note: The Performance and Labor and 

Materials bonds will be waived if the successful bidder chooses not to take a payment draw 

during the course of the project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 10 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Exhibit “A” – Instructions to Contractors continued….. 

Amendments 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this Invitation for Bids shall be acknowledged by 

all Contractors in the following manner: 

 

1. The Contractor Check List and Addenda Acknowledgment Form shall be completed and 

signed. 

2. Copies of all addenda must be attached to the submittal. 

 

Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in one of the above manners may result in a Bid being 

rejected as non-responsive. 

 

Inquiries 

A. Any questions related to this IFB should be directed to:  the Contracts Administrator, Jeannie 

Sgroi, (928) 402-8612. 

 
Questions should be submitted in writing when time permits.  The Gila County Supervisors, at 

their sole discretion, may require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence 

related to any Invitation for Bid should refer to the appropriate Invitation for Bid number, 

page, and paragraph number. However, the Contractor(s) must not place the Invitation for 

Bids number on the outside of an envelope containing questions since such an envelope may 

be identified as a Sealed Bid and may not be opened until after the official Invitation for Bids 

due date and time.   

 

Questions received less than five (5) working days prior to the date for opening Bids will be 

answered only if time permits.  Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be 

binding.  Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 

 
B. Bid results ARE NOT provided in response to telephone inquires.  Bidders must be present at 

bid opening for results.  A tabulation of Bids received is on file in the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors offices and available for review after contract award. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 11 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Exhibit “A” – Instructions to Contractors continued….. 

Late Bids 

Any Bid received later than the date and time specified on the Notice for Sealed Bids will be 

returned unopened.  Late Bids shall not be considered.  Any Contractor submitting a late Bid shall 

be so notified. 

 

Submittal Bid Format: 

It is requested that One (1) Original and Two (2) copies ( 3 TOTAL) with original signatures on all 

three (3) of the Qualification and Certification Form, Reference List, Price Sheet, No Collusion 

Certification, Intentions Concerning Subcontracting, Legal Arizona Workers Act, Surety Bid Bond, 

Bidder Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment Form, Offer Page shall be submitted on the 

forms and in the format specified in the Invitation for Bids.  The County will not be liable for any 

cost incident to the preparation of Bids, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-right 

infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall 

not be considered.   

NOTICE:  SURETY (BID) BOND FORM MUST ACCOMPANY BID SUBMITTAL. 

 

 

1. By signature in the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, Contractor certifies: 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive 

practices. 

B. The Contractor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, 

any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 

trip, favor, or service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition 

and cost of supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any 

political subdivision, County, City, Town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by 

Contractor awarded the contract to purchase the same products, goods and services, at 

the same prices stated in the Bid.  Delivery charges may differentiate depending on 

geographical location. 

 

2. Bids submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving Bids at 

the place and prior to the time designated for receipts of Bids. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 12 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Exhibit “A” – Instructions to Contractors continued….. 

 

3. The County is not responsible for any Contractor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in 

preparing an offer confers no right to the Contractor unless the Contractor discovers and 

corrects such errors prior to the Bid deadline. 

 

The Bid shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Three (3) copies with original 

signatures on all shall be provided by the Contractor.  The words “SEALED BID” with INVITATION 

FOR BID TITLE “COLCORD ROAD PAVING PROJECT”, “CONTRACT NO. 040615”, DATE “JUNE 12, 

2015”, and TIME “11:00 AM MST TIME” of  Bid opening shall be written on the envelope.  The 

Contractor shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated in the 

Notice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 13 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

Award Contract 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any Bid by individual line 

item, by group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in 

the best interest, most advantageous of the County of Gila. 

 
a. Notwithstanding any or other provisions of the Invitation for Bids, the County 

reserves the right to: 

1. Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 

2. Reject any or all Bids; or portions thereof; or 

3. Reissue an Invitation for Bid; or 

4. Delay awarding a contract to the lowest responsible Contractor(s) in order to 

attempt to value engineer the contract.  Value engineering shall be defined as 

altering the work of the contract in order to complete the contract in a more cost 

effective manner without changing the general scope of the contract.  Changes 

that decrease the total dollar amount of the Bid by not more than twenty-five 

percent (25%) do not change the general scope of the contract.  The lowest 

responsible Contractor(s) does not have to agree to value engineer, and the 

County reserves the right to reject all Bids. 

 

2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the County contracts to 

the lowest responsive and responsible Contractor(s).  To ensure that all Contractors are 

experienced, reasonably equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual 

obligations, a determination of responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 

3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Contractor(s) who has 

previously failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior Bid for 

furnishing and installing materials similar in nature. 

 

4. All submitted forms provided in this Invitation for Bids will be reviewed by the Gila County 

Board of Supervisors. 

 

5. Those Contractor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best 

qualified and whose Bids are most advantageous of the County may be invited to appear 

before the Board for an oral review. 

 



 14 

 
 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
General Terms & Conditions continued….. 

 

6. The apparent successful Contractor(s) shall sign and file with the County, within ten (10) 

days after Notice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the 

contract. 

 

Protests 

Only other Bidders who have submitted a Bid have the right to protest.  A protest of a proposed 

award or of an award must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of 

Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and must include: 

 

A. The name, address and telephone number of the protester. 

B. The signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 

C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 

D. A detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of 

relevant documents. 

E. The form of relief requested. 

 

All Protest shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash 

Street, Globe, Arizona  85501. 

 

Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  

Contractor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits 

required for the operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall 

comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 

42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the act. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 15 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 

EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACTOR AWARD AGREEMENT 

 

This exhibit shall serve as an example of the contract agreement to any contractor, their agents, 

subcontractors and/or representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the County, 

by submitting bids to this or any other solicitation requiring Sealed Bids, does hereby agree to the 

following provisions.  Proof of acceptance of these provisions will be the Contractor’s signature(s) 

appearing on Page 40, Contractors OFFER PAGE, and Contractors Qualification and Certification 

forms(s) Pages 31-32. 

 

Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The County maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are 

borne by the purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the contractor hereby assigns 

to the County any and all claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the 

contract. 

 

Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the Invitation for Bids issued by the County and the offer 

submitted by the Contractor in response to the Invitation for Bids.  The offer shall substantially 

conform to the terms, conditions, specifications and other requirements set forth within the text 

of the Invitation for Bids.  The county reserves the right to clarify any contractual terms with the 

concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, as 

determined by the County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The 

contract shall contain the entire agreement between Gila County and the Contractor relating to 

these requirements and shall prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, Bids, 

negotiations, purchase orders, or master agreement in any form.   

 

The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Manager, after the Gila 

County Board of Supervisors approves the award.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any 

items or services awarded, or any other agreement that is based upon this contract may be made 

without express written approval of the Gila County Board of Supervisors in the form of an official 

contract amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the contractor or any 

agency is a violation of the County Procurement Code.  Any such action is subject to the legal and 

contractual remedies available to the County inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, 

suspension and/or debarment of the Contractor.  

 

 
 
 
 



 16 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Exhibit “B” – Contractor Award Agreement continued….. 

Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County 

Board of Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the 

Contractor. 

 
 
Contract Default 

A. County, by written notice of default to the contractor, may terminate the whole or any part 

of this contract in any one of the following circumstances: 

 

1. If  the Contractor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within 

the times specified; or 

2. If the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails 

to remedy the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 

B. In the event the County terminates this contract in whole or part, the County may procure 

supplies or services similar to those terminated, and the Contractor shall be liable to the 

County for any excess costs for such similar supplies or services. 

 
 
Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent 

to perform, the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this 

intent to perform.  In the event that a demand is made and no written assurance is given within 

five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this 

contract. 

 
 
Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, 

cities, and towns of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs 

and improve timely acquisition and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The Contractor(s) to 

whom this contract is awarded may be requested by other parties of said interactive purchasing 

agreements to extend to those parties the right to purchase supplies, equipment and services 

provided by the vendor under this contract, pursuant to the terms and conditions stated herein.  

Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules and regulations of the respective 

entity and the approval of the Contractor. 

 



 17 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Exhibit “B” – Contractor Award Agreement continued….. 

Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 

 
 

Termination of Contract 

The County, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time by mutual written 

consent, or by giving thirty (30) days written notice to you.  The County at its convenience, by 

written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the 

County shall be liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for the 

services rendered and accepted material received by the County before the effective date of 

termination. 

 

The County reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of 

Contractor to carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The County will issue a 

written ten (10) day notice of default to Contractor for acting or failing to act as in any of the 

following: 

 

1. In the opinion of the County, Contractor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, 

conditions or services/specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the County, Contractor attempts to impose on the County material 

products, or workmanship, which is of unacceptable quality.  

3. Contractor fails to furnish the required service and/or product within the time stipulated in 

the contract. 

4. In the opinion of the County, Contractor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract and/or give the County a positive indication that Contractor 

will not or cannot perform to the requirements of the contract. 

 

Each payment obligation of the County created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of 

County, State and Federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an 

obligation.  If funds are not allocated by the County and available for the continuance of service 

herein contemplated, the contract period for the service may be terminated by the County at the 

end of the period for which funds are available.  The County shall notify the Contractor at the 

earliest possible time which service may be affected by a shortage of funds.  No penalty shall 

accrue to the County in the event this provision is exercised, and the County shall not be obligated 

or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of termination under this 

paragraph. 

 
 
 



 18 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Exhibit “B” – Contractor Award Agreement continued….. 

Compensation and Method of Payment 

Gila County will pay the Contractor following the submission of itemized invoices for the services 

requested.  The County will not pay by Statement.  No payment shall be issued prior to receipt of 

material or service.  Each invoice must show the contract number, purchase order number, date of 

delivery, name and mailing address of Contractor. 

 

Payment of Taxes 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for paying all applicable taxes. 
 

1. State and Local Transaction Privilege Taxes:  The County is subject to all applicable state 
and local transaction privilege taxes.  Transaction Privilege taxes applying to the sale are 
the responsibility of the seller to remit.  Failure to collect such taxes from the buyer does 
not relieve the seller from its obligation to remit taxes. 
 

2. Tax Indemnification:  Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay all Federal, state and local 
taxes applicable to its operation and any persons employed by the Contractor.  Contractor 
shall, and will require all subcontractors to hold the County harmless from any 
responsibility for taxes, damages and interest, if applicable, contributions required under 
Federal, and/or state and local laws and regulations and any other costs including 
transaction privilege taxes, unemployment compensation insurance, Social Security and 
Worker’s Compensation. 

 
 
IRS W-9 Form 
In order to receive payment the Contractor shall have a current I.R.S. W-9 Form on file with the 

County, unless not required by law. 

 
Purchase Orders 
The Contractor shall, in accordance with all terms and conditions of the contract, fully perform and 

shall be obligated to comply with all purchase orders received by the Contractor prior to the 

expiration or termination hereof, unless otherwise directed in writing by the County, including, 

without limitation, all purchase orders received prior to but not fully performed and satisfied at 

the expiration or termination of this contract. 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 19 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Exhibit “B” – Contractor Award Agreement continued….. 

 

Force Majeure 
Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other nor deemed in default 

under this Contract if and to the extent that such party’s performance of this contract is prevented 

by reason of force majeure.  The term “force majeure” means an occurrence that is beyond the 

control of the party affected and occurs without its fault or negligence.  Without limiting the 

foregoing, force majeure includes acts of God; acts of the public enemy; war; riots; strikes; 

mobilization; labor disputes; civil disorders; fire; flood; lockouts; injunctions-intervention-acts; or 

failures or refusals to act by governmental authority; and other similar occurrences beyond the 

control of the party declaring force majeure which such party is unable to prevent by exercising 

reasonable diligence. 

 

Force Majeure shall not include the following occurrences: 

 Late delivery of equipment or materials caused by congestion at a manufacturer’s plant or 

elsewhere, or an oversold condition of the market. 

 Late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a force majeure 

occurrence in accordance with this force majeure term and condition; or 

 Inability of either the contractor or any subcontractor to acquire or maintain any required 

insurance, bonds, licenses or permits. 

 If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by force majeure, the 

delayed party shall notify the other party in writing of such delay, as soon as is practicable 

and no later than the following working day, of the commencement thereof and shall 

specify the causes of such in such notice.  Such notice shall be delivered or mailed certified-

return receipt and shall make a specific reference to this article, thereby invoking its 

provisions.  The delayed party shall cause such delay to cease as soon as practicable and 

shall notify the other party in writing when it has done so.  The time of completion shall be 

extended by contract amendment for a period of time equal to the time that results or 

effects such delay prevent the delayed party from performing in accordance with the 

contract. 

 Any delay or failure in performance by either party hereto shall not constitute default 

hereunder or given rise to any claim for damages or loss of anticipated profits if, and to the 

extent that such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

 

 

 

 

 



 20 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Exhibit “B” – Contractor Award Agreement continued….. 

Warranties 
The Contractor warrants that the materials supplied under this contract are free of liens and shall 

remain free of liens. 

 

General 

After receipt of all bids, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-

responsive.  Unsigned offers, unacknowledged Addenda, incomplete bids, non-conformance with 

mandatory requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 

 

Subsequent to the initial review, all remaining offers shall be reviewed by the Gila County Public 

Works Fiscal Manager to evaluate the information submitted, perform tests when necessary and 

make comparisons in order to approve or reject the Request.  If rejected, the purchasing 

department shall give written notice to the Bidder submitting this request. 

 

 

Bid Evaluation Process 

All Bids shall be evaluated by using the following criteria.  The recommendation for contract 

award will be made to the responsible Contractor whose Bid is determined to be the most 

advantageous to Gila County when applying the weighted criteria:  50% price, 25% compliance 

with specifications, and 25% serviceability.  The County reserves the right to award in whole or 

in part, by item or group of items, by section or geographic area, or make multiple awards, 

where such action serves the County’s best interest. 

 
 

Evaluation of Bid and Negotiations 

The Director shall appoint a selection committee to evaluate the Bids and makes a 

recommendation based on the criteria set forth in the Invitation for Bids.  The Board of 

Supervisors shall not act in capacity of the selection committee.  Bids shall be evaluated on the 

factors set forth in the Invitation for Bids. 

 

For the purpose of conducting Negotiations, the County shall determine what Bids are susceptible 

for being selected for Award.  A determination that a Bid is unacceptable shall be in writing, state 

the basis of the determination and be retained in the Public Works files.  If it is determined a Bid is 

not reasonably susceptible of being selected for Award, the Contractor shall be notified and shall 

not be afforded an opportunity to modify its Bid. 

 
 



 21 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS -TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS – PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS 

 

Purpose 

It is the intent of this Invitation for Bids for a qualified Contractor to pave a 1.2 mile portion of 

Colcord Road. 

 

This specification is intended to describe the type, size, and quality, which will best meet the 
demands of the using department.  It is NOT intended to favor any one brand or make.  The 
mention of brand names or components merely serves to specify the quality or general type 
required. 

 

 

SECTION 1.0 
 
General Purpose 

1.1 All product specifications are minimum.  Contractor must provide a product specification 

sheet. 

 
1.2 Contractor should have adequate manufacturing / stocking facilities to serve the needs of 

Gila County. 

 
1.3 All Bids must represent the entire package.  Partial awards will not be made unless 

otherwise stated in the Bid specifications. 

 
1.4 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes 

are estimates of County needs and in no event shall the County be obligated to purchase 

the exact quantities of any item set forth in the Bid.  The County does not guarantee any 

maximum or minimum amounts of purchase. 

 
1.5 Contractor shall review its Bid submission to assure the following requirements are met. 

1.5.1 One (1) original and two (2) copies all with original signatures on all submissions. 

1.5.2 Qualification and Certification Form  (page 31-32) 

1.5.3 Reference List (page 33) 

1.5.4 Price Sheet (page 34)  

1.5.5 No Collusion Certification  (page 35) 

1.5.6 Intentions Concerning Subcontracting (page 36) 
 



 22 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 
Minimum Specifications continued….. 

1.5.7 Legal Arizona Workers Act  (page 37) 

1.5.8 Surety “Bid” Bond  (page 38) 

1.5.9 Bidder Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment  (page 39) 

1.5.10 Offer Page  (pages 40-41) 

 

 

SECTION 2.0 

 
Bid Pricing 

2.1 The Contractor shall submit the Bid in the form of a firm unit price.  Prices shall be in effect 

for the duration of the contract period at the lump sum price bid.  Contractor shall 

incorporate all profit and discount into their price.  The exception will be any price 

reduction, which will be applied to the contract immediately upon the Contractor’s or Gila 

County’s discovery of any such price reduction. 

  

2.2 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect for the 

period the services are performed, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein.  

Profit costs for extensions(s) may be negotiated should the Contractor provide information 

indicating the necessity for such price increases and must meet the Board of Supervisor’s 

approval prior to any such extension.  

 

2.3 Contractors are encouraged to offer additional pricing for other related products, items, 

and/or components which are not specifically addressed as line items in the Invitation for 

Bids.  Pricing offered should be noted on the price sheet, page 34, in the format requested.  

Pricing documents/catalogs shall accompany any additional pricing offered. 

 

 

SECTION 3.0 

 
Price Adjustments 

3.1 The County shall be and is hereby authorized to make necessary alterations in the work as 

may increase or decrease the originally awarded contract amount, provided the alteration 

does not change the total contract cost or the total cost of any major contract item by 

more than 25 percent (25%). 

 

 
 
 
 



 23 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 
Minimum Specifications continued….. 

 

Alterations which do not exceed the 25 percent (25%) limitations shall not invalidate the 

contract and the Contractor agrees to accept payment for such alterations as if the altered 

work had been a part of the original contract. 

 
These alterations which are for work within the general scope of the contract shall be 

covered by “Change Orders” issued by the County. 

 
Change orders for altered work shall include extensions of contract time where, in the 

County’s opinion, such extensions are commensurate with the amount and difficulty of 

work added. 

 

Should the amount of altered work exceed the 25 percent (25%) limitation hereinbefore 

specified, such excess altered work shall be covered by supplemental agreement. 

 

If the Owner and the Contractor are unable to agree on a unit adjustment for any contract 

item that requires a supplemental agreement, the Owner reserves the right to terminate 

the contract with respect to the item and make other arrangements for its completion. 

 

 

SECTION 4.0 

 
Ordering and Delivery: 

4.1 ORDERING:  Gila County does not warrant the order of any equipment prior to actual need.  

Gila County’s Public Works personnel may re-order equipment as it becomes necessary or 

based on the required needs within the County during the term of this contract. 

 

4.2 PRODUCT DELIVERY Location:  Gila County Payson, AZ.  The Board of Supervisors may 

designate other or alternate delivery sites at any time during the term of the contract.  

These needs may be based on, but not limited to, seasonal, emergency, historical usage 

data. 

 

4.3 Contractor shall retain title and control of all goods until they are delivered and the 

contract of coverage has been completed.  All risks of transportation and all related 

charges shall be the responsibility of the Vendor.  All claims for visible or concealed 

damage shall be filed by the Vendor.  The County will assist the Vendor in arranging for 

inspection. 

 



 24 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 
Minimum Specifications continued….. 

 

SECTION 5.0 

 
Negotiations With Individual Contractors 

5.1 Gila County Public Works Department shall establish procedures and schedules for 

conducting Negotiations.  Disclosure of one Contractors Price or any information derived 

from competing Bid Prices or any information derived from competing Bids is prohibited.   

 
5.1.1 Any Response to a request for Clarification of a Bid shall be in writing.  

5.1.2 The Public Works Department shall keep a record of all Negotiations. 

 

5.2 For the purposes of conducting Negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of 

the following methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 

 
A. Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with 

Responsible Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and/or 

Contract Award. 

B. Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the Public Works Director 

to enter into exclusive Negotiations with the Responsible Contractor whose Bid is 

determined in the selection process to be most Advantageous to the County. 

 

5.3 Exclusive Negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent Negotiations or may 

be conducted without requiring previous concurrent Negotiations.  

 
5.3.1 A determination to conduct exclusive Negotiations shall not constitute a Contract 

Award nor shall it confer any property rights to the successful Contractor.   
 

5.3.2 If exclusive Negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the 

County may enter into exclusive Negotiations with the next highest rank Contractor 

without the need to repeat the formal Solicitation process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 25 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 
Minimum Specifications continued….. 

 

SECTION 6.0 

 

Product Specification – Minimum Specifications:  Bid No. 040615 Colcord Road Paving Project 

 
Mix design shall be per MAG Standard Specification 710 (3/4” / 19mm). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 26 

 

 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 

INSURANCE PROVISIONS 

 

INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE: 

The Contractor agrees to indemnify and save harmless the County of Gila, its officers, agents and 

employees, and any jurisdiction or agency issuing permits for any work included in the project, 

their officers, agents and employees, hereinafter referred to as indemnitee, from all suits and 

claims, including attorney's fees and cost of litigation, actions, loss, damage, expense, cost or 

claims of any character or any nature arising out of the work done in fulfillment of the terms of 

this Contract or on account of any act, claim or amount arising or recovered under workers' 

compensation law or arising out of the failure of the Contractor to conform to any statutes, 

ordinances, regulation, law or court decree.  It is agreed that the Contractor will be responsible for 

primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this contract of indemnity applies.  

In consideration of the award of this contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of 

subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from 

the work performed by the Contractor for the County. 

 
 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 

The Contractor shall furnish Certificate(s) of Insurance to the County within ten (10) calendar 

days of notification of award and prior to all contract extensions. 

 

Contractor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their obligations have been 

discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance against 

claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 

performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or 

subcontractors.   

 

The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way 

limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Contract. 

 

The County in no way warrants that the minimum limits contained herein are sufficient to protect 

the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under this 

Contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors.  Contractor 

is free to purchase such additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 

 

 

 



 27 

 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 
Insurance Provisions continued….. 

 

A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE - Contractor shall provide coverage with 

limits of liability not less than those stated below: 

 

 1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, broad form contractual liability and 

XCU coverage. 

 

 General Aggregate $2,000,000 

 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: 

"The County of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to 

liability arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor". 

 

2. Automobile Liability 

  Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used in 

the performance of this Contract. 

  Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

a.  The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: 

"The County of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability   

arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor, including 

automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor". 

 

3. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 

 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 

 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 

 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 

 

 

 



 28 

 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 
Insurance Provisions continued….. 

 

4. Builders' Risk Insurance or Installation Floater $________ 

 In an amount equal to the initial Contract Amount plus additional coverage equal to 

Contract Amount for all subsequent change orders. 

a. The County of Gila, the Contractor, subcontractors, engineer and engineer’s 

consultant and any others with an insurable interest in the work shall be Insured’s 

on the policy. 

b. Coverage shall be written on an all risk, replacement cost basis and shall include 

coverage for soft costs, flood and earth movement. 

c. Policy shall be maintained until whichever of the following shall first occur:  (1) final 

payment has been made; or, (2) until no person or entity, other than the County of 

Gila, has an insurable interest in the property required to be covered. 

d. Policy shall be endorsed such that the insurance shall not be canceled or lapse 

because of any partial use or occupancy by the County. 

e. Policy must provide coverage from the time any covered property becomes the 

responsibility of the Contractor, and continue without interruption during 

construction, renovation, or installation, including any time during which the 

covered property is being transported to the construction installation site, or 

awaiting installation, whether on or off site. 

f. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 

g. Contractor is responsible for the payment of all policy deductibles. 

 

B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to 

include, the following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the 

County of Gila shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the 

Contractor even if those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory 

with respect to all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under 

the indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 

 

 



 29 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 
Insurance Provisions continued….. 

 

C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION:  Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of 

this Contract shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, 

canceled, reduced in coverage or endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior 

written notice has been given to the County.  Such notice shall be sent directly to Gila ounty 

Finance Department, Attn:  Jeannie Sgroi, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ, 85501 and shall be sent 

by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 

D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or 

approved unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not 

less than B+ VI.  The County in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer 

rating is sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 

 

E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the County with certificates of 

insurance (ACORD form or equivalent approved by the County) as required by this Contract.  

The certificates for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that 

insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 

 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before 

work commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or 

prior to commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration of 

the project.  Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to 

provide evidence of renewal is a material breach of contract. 

 

 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Jeannie Sgroi, 1400 E. Ash 

St., Globe, AZ, 85501.  The County project/contract number and project description shall be 

noted on the certificate of insurance.  The County reserves the right to require complete, 

certified copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract at any time.  

 

F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional 

insured’s under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the County separate certificates and 

endorsements for each subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to 

the minimum requirements identified above. 

 

 

 
 



 30 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 
Insurance Provisions continued….. 

G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Contract 

shall be made by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not 

require a formal Contract amendment, but may be made by administrative action. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



 31 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 

QUALIFICTION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 
 

Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications 

of Contractors under consideration for final award. 

 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 

Contract Number 040615 Colcord Road Paving Project 
 
The Contractor submitting this Bid warrants the following: 

 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

 
_____________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 

________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting agency, 

and the reasons Contractor failed to perform, in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 

3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited 

from competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details, including 

the date, the contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractors disqualification, and 

whether this disqualification remains in effect, in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 

4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract for cause with Contractor (under your 

firm’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give details 

including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was terminated, in 

the narrative part of this Contract.  

 

5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractors Firm.  

b. A Cost Bid shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made a full 

part of this contract by this reference.  

 



 32 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 
Qualification/Certification continued….. 

 

c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar to 

the Scope of Work described herein; shall be submitted on the Reference List, 

attached hereon and made a full part of this contract by this reference.  

d. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified services.   

e. List of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must 

accompany the Bid.  The subcontractors ROC, contact name and phone # must be 

included. 

f. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 

 

6 Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona:  _________________________ 
                                             (If Applicable) 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a 

business’ computed loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by premium, 

can reward policyholders with lower losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining factor in bid 

award. 

 

7. Current Arizona Contractor License Number:  ____________________________________ 
       (If Applicable) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

       Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

       ______________________________________ 

       Printed Name 

 

       ______________________________________ 

       Title 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 33 

 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 

REFERENCE LIST 
 
These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of the Contractor 
under consideration for final award.  The information may be a determining factor in award. 
 
References 

Please list a minimum of four (4) references for projects of similar size and scope to the as this Invitation for 
Bids during the past twelve (12) months, in or as close to Gila County as possible. 
 

 
1. Company: ________________________________________________ 

Contact: ____________________________________________________ 

Phone: ____________________________________________________ 

Address: ____________________________________________________ 
 
 

2. Company: ________________________________________________ 

Contact: ____________________________________________________ 

Phone: ____________________________________________________ 

Address: ____________________________________________________ 
 
 

3. Company: ________________________________________________ 

Contact: ____________________________________________________ 

Phone: ____________________________________________________ 

Address: ____________________________________________________ 
 
 

4. Company: ________________________________________________ 

Contact: ____________________________________________________ 

Phone: ____________________________________________________ 

Address: ____________________________________________________ 

 

 

_____________________________________ 
            Name of Business 

_____________________________________ 
            Signature of Authorized Representative 

_____________________________________ 

            Title 



 34 

 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 

PRICE SHEET 

 

Complete and return this form for the total price proposed on this form.  Attach any pertinent cost 

breakdowns, sub-totals of component cost, etc. to this Bid-pricing page. 

 

 

 

Vendor Name:  ______________________________________   Phone No.:  __________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

COLCORD ROAD PAVING PROJECT 
Bid 040615 

 
                                    
 
                                  TOTAL BID $ ________________________________  
 
*Price to include all applicable taxes and required fees. 
               No tax shall be levied against labor. 

 

 

 

    

 ______________________________________ 

       Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

       ______________________________________ 

       Printed Name 

 

       ______________________________________ 

       Title 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 35 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 

AFFIDAVIT BY CONTRACTOR 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 

 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 

)ss 
COUNTY OF:   ) 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________                                                                     
(Name of Individual) 
being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he is ____________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                (Title)  

of_______________________________________________________________________________  and 
                                                                      (Name of Business) 
 
 

That he is bidding on Gila County Bid No. 040615 COLCORD ROAD PAVING PROJECT, Payson, AZ.  
and, 
 
 

That neither he nor anyone associated with the said _____________________________________  
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                     (Name of Business) 
 
has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above mentioned project. 
 

       _____________________________________________ 
Name of Business 

 
_____________________________________________  
By 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Title 

 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this __________ day of _________________________, 20_____. 

 
 
_________________________________________               My Commission expires:  _______________ 
Notary Public 



 36 

 
 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 

CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 
 
 
 At the time of the submission of bids on BID NO. 040615 COLCORD ROAD PAVING PROJECT, my 
intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is as indicated below. 
 
 In indicating that it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work, this will acknowledge that 
such subcontractors will be identified and approved by the County prior to award of contract; and that 
documentation, such as copies of letters, requests for quotation, etc., substantiating the actions taken and 
the responses to such actions is on file and available for review.  A list of any subcontractors (if applicable) 
to be used in performing the service must accompany the Bid.  The list must include the subcontractors 
name, address, and phone number.  List must be provided in a sealed envelope marked “List of 
Subcontractors”. 

 
 
 
 
 

     YES,  it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 

     NO,   it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 

 
 
 



 37 

 
 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 
 

Firm hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Firm’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 
23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Firm shall further ensure that each 
subcontractor who performs any work for Firm under this contract likewise complies with the State and 
Federal Immigration Laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Firm and any subcontractor in 
order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   
 
 Any breach of Firm’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal 
Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 
Contract subjecting Firm to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If the 
breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Firm shall be 
required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been 
provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to 
delay delivery of services.   
 
 Firm shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 
Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:  “Subcontractor 
hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal immigration 
laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). 
Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to insure that 
Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor 
will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and 
including suspension or termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 
responsibility of Firm.   
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 
 

 

 

 



 38 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 

SURETY (BID) BOND 
(Penalty of this Bond must not be less than 10% of the bid amount) 

 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,   
 
that we, the undersigned __________________________________________, as Principal, hereinafter 
called the Principal, and _____________________________________________ a corporation duly 
organized under the laws of the State of __________________________________, as Surety, hereinafter 
called the Surety, holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in this State issued by the 
Director of the Department of Insurance, are held and firmly bound unto the Gila County as Obligee, 
hereinafter called the Obligee, in the sum of ten percent (10%) of the amount bid, submitted by Principal to 
Gila County for the Work described below, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, the 
said Principal and the said Surety bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and 
assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, the Principal is herewith submitting its Bid for: 
 

COLCORD ROAD PAVING PROJECT 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, BID CALL NO. 040615 

 
NOW THEREFORE, if the Obligee, acting by and through its County Engineer, accepts the Bid of the Principal 
and the Principal shall enter into contract with the Obligee in accordance with the terms of such Bid, and 
give such bonds and certificates of insurance as may be specified in the contract documents with good and 
sufficient surety for the faithful performance of such contract and for the prompt payment of labor and 
material furnished in the prosecution thereof, or in the event of the failure of the Principal to enter into 
such contract and give such bonds and certificates of insurance, if the Principal shall pay to the Obligee the 
difference not to exceed the penalty of the bond between the amount specified in the Bid and such larger 
amount for which the Obligee may in good faith contract with another party to perform the work covered 
by the Bid then this obligation is void.  Otherwise, it remains in full force and effect provided, however, that 
this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of A.R.S. §34-201, and all liabilities on this bond shall be 
determined in accordance with the provisions of the section to the extent as if it were copied at length 
herein. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands and seals: 
 
 
Principal     Surety 
 
By      By Attorney-in-Fact 
   
Title      Address, Attorney-in-Fact 
      Subscribed and sworn to before me 

This _________ day of ___________________,2015 
        

      My commission expires:  ______________________ 
      Notary Public 



 39 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 

BIDDER CHECKLIST  &  ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed and/or executed and submitted with 
this IFB.  If Firm fails to complete and/or execute any portion of the Bid documents, all with original 
signatures, the IFB may be determined to be “non-responsive” and rejected. 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT      COMPLETED / EXECUTED 
 
QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM              ______________ 

REFERENCE LIST             ______________ 

PRICE SHEET             ______________ 

NO COLLUSION IN BIDDING            ______________ 

INTENTIONS IN SUBCONTRACTING           ______________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE         ______________ 

ANTI-TERRORISM WARRANTY           ______________ 

SURETY “BID” BOND            ______________ 

CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT         ______________ 

OFFER PAGE             ______________ 

      
 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 

    #1  #2             #3             #4           #5 

Initials         ________        ________          ________           ________          ________ 

Date         ________           ________          ________            ________          ________  
 

 

Signed and dated this _________ day of ______________________, 2015 
 

            ______________________________________ 
                                       Firm: 

            ______________________________________ 
                                 By:   
 
 
Each Bid shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Gila County Finance Department and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Request for Sealed Bids:  Bid No. 040615 Colcord Road Paving Project.  All 
Bids shall be filed with the Gila County Finance Department in the Guerrero Building at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ on or 
before June 12, 2015, by 1100 AM. 

 



 40 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 

OFFER PAGE  

 
TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all 
terms and conditions, instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this Invitation 
for Bids document. 
 
Signature also certifies the Firms bid Bid is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that 
the bid Bid is not made with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Firm submitting 
the Bid has not revealed the contents of the Bid to, or in any way colluded with, any other Firm 
which may compete for the contract; and that no other Firm which may compete for the contract 
has revealed the contents of a Bid to, or in any way colluded with, the Firm submitting this Bid. 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  040615 Colcord Road Paving Project 

 
 
Firm Submitting Bid:    For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________ Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 
 
________________________________________ Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   
       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 
 

 
 
Bid must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Firm. 

 
 
 



 41 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 
(For Gila County use only) 

 

 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Firm ___________________________ is now bound to provide the materials or services listed 

in IFB No.: 040615 including all terms and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the 

Firm’s Offer as accepted by County/public entity. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as    Contract No. 040615   . The Firm has been 

cautioned not to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this 

Contract until Firm receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 

 

 Awarded this _________ day of ___________________, 2015 

 
 
 ______________________________________________ 
 Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 ______________________________________________ 
 Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 ______________________________________________ 
 Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief 
                  for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 42 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS 

BID NO. 040615 

 

STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND 
PURSUANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2 OF 

THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
 

( PENALTY OF THIS BOND MUST BE 100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT ) 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
That, _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________,  (hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal, and 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(hereinafter called Surety), a corporation duly organized and existing the laws of the State of 
_____________________________________________ with its principal office in the city of 
___________________________ holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by the 
Director of the Department of Insurance, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto Gila County (hereinafter called the 
Obligee) in the amount of (100% of Contract Amount)______________________________________ dollars 
($_________________), for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their whereof, 
the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrator, executors, successors, and assigns, jointly 
and severally, firmly by these presents. 

WHEREAS, the Principal has agreed to enter into a certain contract with the Obligee for: COLCORD ROAD 
PAVING-PAYSON, AZ contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied 
at length herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said Principal shall faithfully 
perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of said contract during the 
original term of said contract and any extension thereof, with or without notice to the Surety, and during the life of 
any guaranty required under the contract, and shall also perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, 
conditions, and agreements of any and all duly authorized modifications of said contract that may hereafter be made, 
notice of which modifications to the Surety being hereby waived; then the above obligation shall be void, otherwise to 
remain in full force and effect;  

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, 
of the Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of 
said Title, Chapter and Article, so the extent as if they were copied at length herein. 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgment such reasonable attorneys' 
fees as may be fixed by a judge of the court. 

 
Witness our hands this __________ day of _____________, 20 ______. 
 

 
              
Principal    Seal      By: 
 
 
              
Surety    Seal      By: 
 
              
Agency of Record          Agency Address 
 
           
Arizona Countersignature 
 
           
Address 
 
           
Phone Number 



 43 

 
 
 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
BID NO. 040615 

 

STATUTORY LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND 
PURSANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2 OF 

THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 

 
(PENALTY OF THIS BOND MUST BE 100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT) 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
That, ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________,  (hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal,  and 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(hereinafter called Surety), a corporation duly organized and existing the laws of the State of  
_____________________________________________ with its principal office in the city of 
___________________________ holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by the 
Director of the Department of Insurance, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto Gila County (hereinafter called the 
Obligee) in the amount of (100% of Contract Amount)______________________________________ dollars 
($_________________), for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, 
administrator, executors, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

WHEREAS, the Principal has agreed to enter into a certain contract with the Obligee for: COLCORD ROAD 
PAVING-PAYSON, AZ contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied 
at length herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said Principal shall faithfully 
perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of said contract during the 
original term of said contract and any extension thereof, with or without notice to the Surety, and during the life of 
any guaranty required under the contract, and shall also perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, 
conditions, and agreements of any and all duly authorized modifications of said contract that may hereafter be made, 
notice of which modifications to the Surety being hereby waived; then the above obligation shall be void, otherwise to 
remain in full force and effect; 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, 
of the Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of 
said Title, Chapter and Article, so the extent as if they were copied at length herein. 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgment such reasonable attorneys' 
fees as may be fixed by a judge of the court. 

Witness our hands this __________ day of _____________, 20 ______ 
 
 
              
Principal    Seal      By: 
 
 
              
Surety    Seal      By: 
 
 
              
Agency of Record          Agency Address 
 
           
Arizona Countersignature 
 
           
Address 
 
           
Phone Number 



   

ARF-3132     Consent Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne, Court Administrator 
Submitted By: Sylvia Hernandez, Probation Officer Manager, Superior Court
Department: Superior Court Division: Probation Department
Fiscal Year: FY 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07/01/2015 -
06/30/2016

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 15-05-04 for Probation Department's participation in the FY 2015-2016
Family Counseling Program. 

Background Information
For the past fourteen years, Gila County has been providing a matching fund
requirement for the Gila County Probation Department to participate in the Family
Counseling Program through the Arizona Supreme Court, Administrative Office of the
Courts, Juvenile Justice Services Division.

Evaluation
As provided for in A.R.S. 8-264, a County may elect to participate in the family
counseling program by resolution of the County's Board of Supervisors.   The Supreme
Court shall then certify a list of counties which have elected to participate and shall
inform those counties of the amounts of funding available to them.

The court shall certify that the amount expended by the county for purposes of
determining matching funds has been utilized to supplement, not supplant, county or
state funds that would otherwise be available for family counseling services.

The court shall certify that the amount of aid provided by the state and county to a
family counseling program does not exceed seventy percent of the program's annual
operating budget.

Conclusion
The monies for this program provide services for strengthening family relationships
and prevention of juvenile delinquency.

In the past, when the Board of Supervisors has adopted this resolution the County
Finance Department has allocated the cash match requirement to the Probation
General Fund under line item 4340-45 - Miscellaneous matching funds expense.



Recommendation
The Gila County Probation Department recommends the adoption of Board Resolution
No. 15-05-04 certifying that the Board of Supervisors will provide $1,719 in matching
funds for the participation in the Family Counseling Program.

Suggested Motion
Approval to adopt Resolution No. 15-05-04 authorizing Gila County Probation
Department's participation in the FY 2015-2016 Family Counseling Program through
the Arizona Supreme Court, Administrative Office of the Courts, Juvenile Justice
Services Division, and certifying that a matching fund requirement of $1,719 for the
Program will be provided by the County.

Attachments
15-05-04 Board Resolution





   
ARF-3126     Consent Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Ginnie Scales, Health Services Program Manager 
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Prevention Services, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Prevention Services
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

04/01/2015 through 3/31/16 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-040496) with the Arizona Department
of Health Services for HIV Care Services.

Background Information
Gila County has provided HIV care and support services to Gila, Apache, and Navajo Counties for over eight years. 
Contract No. ADHS13-0040496 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on August 6, 2013.  Amendment No.1 to
the contract was approved by Board of Supervisors on December 17, 2013.  Amendment  No. 2 approved by the
Board of Supervisors on January 20, 2015.  Amendment No. 3 will change several line items and decrease the
contract by $59,012.00.  Amendment No. 3 will extend services through March 31, 2016.

Evaluation
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. ADHS13-040496 will allow Gila County the ability to continue
providing HIV care and support services to Gila, Apache and Navajo Counties.

Conclusion
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Contract No ADHS13-040496 will allow Gila County the ability to provide HIV care
and support services to Gila, Apache and Navajo Counties.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Health and Emergency Services Division Director that the Board of Supervisors
approve Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-040496) between Gila County
and the Arizona Department of Health Services for the period of April 1, 2015, through March 31, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-040496) between Gila
County and the Arizona Department of Health Services to continue to provide HIV care and support services to Gila,
Apache and Navajo Counties for the period of April 1, 2015, through March 31, 2016, in the amount of $217,613.00.

Attachments

Amendment No. 3
Amendment No. 2
Amendment No. 1
Original contract







































































































   
ARF-3142     Consent Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 1, 2015 - September 30, 2016 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
FFY2016 SNAP Community Organization Partner Application with Arizona Community Action Association.

Background Information
The Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA) unites communities to end poverty through community-based
initiatives and solutions.  The ACAA is a 501 (c)(3) non-profit agency created in 1967 to address poverty across
Arizona. Through a collaboration of nearly 300 organizations and individuals, the ACAA develops and implements
strategies to address and ultimately eliminate poverty.

The Community Action Program was launched in 1964 as part of President Lyndon B. Johnson’s Economic
Opportunity Act to fight poverty by empowering the poor. Core funding comes from Community Service Block Grants
(CSBG) with additional support from local, state and federal grants; individual and corporate donations; foundation
grants and community-based collaborations.

Programs operated, managed or supported by the ACAA include: 

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance (LIHEAP) Utility Grants
Weatherization Assistance Program
Home Energy Assistance Fund
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) Outreach
Nutrition Assistance Community Organization Partnerships
Arizona Self Help (www.arizonaselfhelp.org)
People’s Information Guide

Evaluation
SNAP (Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program) is the new federal name for Food Stamps.  The ACAA is
currently accepting SNAP Community Organization Partnership Applications.  The Gila County Community Services
Division, Community Action Program (CAP), is applying to the ACAA to continue to be a SNAP Partner.  The
Partnership Application has been completed and, if approved by the Board of Supervisors, will be submitted to the
ACAA for review.  Included in the Partnership Application is a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) which will be
signed by both parties.  This MOU will provide funding from the ACAA to CAP to be used to assist eligible citizens
residing in Gila County to apply for SNAP assistance.  The MOU will be in place for the period of October 1, 2015,
through September 30, 2016.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors authorizing the SNAP Arizona Community Organization Partnership Application to be
submitted to ACAA and upon approval by ACAA, the Gila County Community CAP will continue to be a SNAP
Partner.  If approved by the ACAA, an MOU will be signed by both parties which will provide funding for CAP to
provide assistance to residents of Gila County to apply for SNAP benefits.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
application.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the SNAP (Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program) Community Organization Partnership



Approval of the SNAP (Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program) Community Organization Partnership
Application for federal fiscal year 2016 between the Arizona Community Action Association and the Gila County
Community Services Division, Community Action Program which, if approved, will allow Gila County to continue to
be a SNAP Organization Partner and be reimbursed for expenses in an estimated amount of $9,568.95 for the period
of October 1, 2015, through September 30, 2016.

Attachments

FFY2016 SNAP Community Organization Parternship Application
FFY2015 SNAP Community Organization Partnership Application 























































FFY15 SNAP Partnership Application 

Memorandum of Understanding 

United States Department of Agriculture Food and Nutrition Services  
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 

Draw-Down Funding for Community Partnerships to Increase SNAP Enrollment 

This is a Partnership Agreement between 

Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA) 
and 

Community Organization Partner (COP) 

I. Purpose and Scope 

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to clearly identify the roles and responsibilities of each 
party as they relate to providing increased access and enrollment in the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 
(SNAP), also known as Nutrition Assistance in Arizona. The Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA) is the entity 
responsible for enrolling and supporting partners (heretofore referenced as COPs), as well as administering the draw-
down of these USDA through the Arizona Department of Economic Security (DES). 

This Partnership is intended to help inform potentially eligible households about the availability, eligibility 
requirements, application procedures and benefits of SNAP. To support this goal, ACAA and COP will participate in 
activities targeting eligible households, providing accurate information, serving as a trusted source of information and 
assistance in your community, and assisting households with completing the application process, preferably through 
the Health-e Arizona online application portal. Allowable activities are outlined in the Partnership Agreement and 
Payee Form.  

Both ACAA and COP should ensure that program activities are conducted in compliance with all applicable Federal 
laws, rules, and regulations including Civil Rights and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) circulars governing 
cost issues. 

All applicants and recipients are granted civil rights in accordance with Federal laws and US Department of 
Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Services (USDA) policy that services will be provided without discrimination on the 
basis of race, color, national origin age, sex, disability, sexual orientation, political beliefs or religion.  

II. MOU Term

The term of this MOU Agreement is the period within which the project responsibilities of this agreement shall be 
performed. The term begins October 1, 2014 and ends September 30, 2015. 

III. ACAA Role and Responsibilities

1. ACAA shall serve in the following roles and maintain responsibilities stated herein during the duration of the
MOU term:













   

ARF-3137     Consent Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

October 1, 2014
through
September 30,
2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Modification No. 4 to the Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement No.
11-LE-11031200-004 between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the U.S.
Department of Agriculture, Forest Service. 

Background Information
The Board of Supervisors (BOS), on behalf of the Gila County Sheriff's Office, has
entered into a Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement with the United States
Department of Agriculture (USDA) Forest Service of which there is an Exhibit A
attached to the Agreement that is the Operating and Financial Plan for a particular
fiscal year.  The purpose of the Agreement is to document a cooperative effort between
the U.S. Forest Service (USFS) and the Gila County Sheriff's Office to enhance State
and local law enforcement in connection with activities on National Forest Service
lands and provide for reimbursement to Gila County for the intensified portion of this
effort.
 
On October 5, 2010, the BOS approved a Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement
with the FY 2011 Operating and Financial Plan attached as Exhibit A.  This Agreement
is identified as Forest Service Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004.  The USFS
approved this Agreement on November 8, 2010.
 
On February 21, 2012, the BOS approved Modification No. 1 to F.S. Agreement No.
11-LE-11031200-004 to add funding in the amount of $83,000 for work to be
performed in FY 2012 Annual Financial and Operating Plan, attached as Exhibit A;
and additional language was added to the Agreement, as follows:  "An Annual
Operating Plan will be negotiated on a fiscal year basis.  At the end of the fiscal year,
funds not spent may be carried forward to the next fiscal year or de-obligated at the
request of the U.S. Forest Service.  Upon expiration of the Cooperative Law
Enforcement Agreement, any funds not expended by the Cooperator (which is Gila
County) will be obligated.  Note:  Annual Operating Plan for Fiscal Year 2011,
Agreement #11-LE-11031200-007 will become Exhibit A, Annual Operating Plan for



Fiscal Year 2011 to this agreement."  Also, the word "Operating Plan" in the Agreement
was changed to "Annual Operating Plan."
 
On December 18, 2012, the BOS approved Modification No. 2 to F.S. Agreement No.
11-LE-11031200-004. The funding amount increased due to a carryover of funds from
$83,000 to $87,498. Gila County contact name changed to Nancy Neumann and
additional language was added to the Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement.
Exhibit A changed from the Fiscal Year 2012 Annual Financial and Operating Plan to
the Fiscal Year 2013 Annual Financial and Operating Plan.
 
On February 18, 2014, the BOS approved Modification No. 3 to F.S. Agreement No.
11-LE-11031200-004. The funding amount decreased from $87,498 to $75,980. The
Gila County Cooperator Program Contact changed to Sheriff Adam Shepherd and the
Cooperator Administrative Contact changed to Sarah White, CAO. Additional language
was added to the Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement. Exhibit A changed from
the Fiscal Year 2013 Annual Financial and Operating Plan to the Fiscal Year 2014
Annual Financial and Operating Plan.

Evaluation
Modification No. 4 changes the following:
1. Funding amount changes from $75,980 to $74,800.
2. The performance period is extended through December 31, 2015.
3. Exhibit A changes to from the Fiscal Year 2014 Annual Financial and Operating
Plan to the Fiscal Year 2015 Annual Financial and Operating Plan.

Conclusion
It is imperative that Modification No. 4 to F.S. Agreement 11-LE-11031200-004 be
signed by the BOS to ensure that there is no lapse in the cooperative enforcement
services provided on National Forest Service lands within Gila County by the Gila
County Sheriff's Office Deputies; and to ensure that reimbursement of those services
occurs on a timely basis. 

Recommendation
Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
Modification No. 4 to the Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement No.
11-LE-11031200-004 in the amount of $74,800 for the performance period of October
1, 2014, through December 31, 2015. The FY 2015 Annual Operating and Financial
Plan will be incorporated as Exhibit A to this agreement (Modification No. 4.) 

Suggested Motion
Approval of Modification No. 4 to Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement No.
11-LE-11031200-004 between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the U.S.
Department of Agriculture, Forest Service to decrease the funding amount from
$75,980 to $74,800, incorporate some administrative changes, and extend the
performance period to December 31, 2015.

Attachments
Exhibit A-FY2015 Cooperative Law Enforcement Annual Operating Plan and Financial
Plan



Modification No. 4 to FS Grant/Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004
Modification No. 3 to FS Grant/Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004
Modification No. 2 to FS Grant/Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004
Modification No. 1to FS Grant/Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004
Original FS Grant/Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004
Legal Explanation



 

 
USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 

FS-1500-8A

 

Page 1 of 9 
 

  FS Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004 
Cooperator Agreement No.   

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
COOPERATIVE LAW ENFORCEMENT ANNUAL OPERATING PLAN & 

FINANCIAL PLAN 
Between The 

Gila County Sheriff's Office 
And the 

USDA, FOREST SERVICE 
Tonto National Forest 

 
 

2015 ANNUAL OPERATING AND FINANCIAL PLAN 
 

This Annual Financial and Operating Plan (Annual Operating Plan), is hereby made and entered 
into by and between the Gila County Sheriff's Office, hereinafter referred to as “Cooperator,” 
and the USDA, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest, hereinafter referred to as the “U.S. Forest 
Service,” under the provisions of Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement #11-LE-11031200-
004 executed on October 5, 2010.  This Annual Operating Plan is made and agreed to as of the 
last date signed below and is for the estimated period beginning October 1, 2014 and ending 
December 31, 2015.
 
Previous Year Carry-over: $0.00 
Current Fiscal Year Obligation: $74,800.00 
FY2015 Total Annual Operating Plan: $74,800.00 
 

I. GENERAL: 
 

A. The following individuals shall be the designated and alternate representative(s) of each 
party, so designated to make or receive requests for special enforcement activities. 

 
Principle Cooperator Contacts: 
 

Cooperator Program Contact Cooperator Administrative Contact 
Name: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Address:  Gila County Sheriff’s Office 
                P.O. Box  311 
                Globe, AZ  85501 
Telephone: (928) 425-4449 
FAX: (928) 425-5674 
Email: ashepherd@co.gila.az.us  
 

Name: Sarah White, CAO 
Address:  Gila County Sheriff’s Office 
                P.O. Box 311 
                Globe, AZ  85501 
Telephone: (928) 402-8579 
FAX: (928) 425-5674 
Email: swhite@co.gila.az.us  

 



 

 
USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 

FS-1500-8A

 

Page 2 of 9 
 

 
Principle U.S. Forest Service Contacts: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B. Reimbursement for all types of enforcement activities shall be at the following rates 
unless specifically stated otherwise: 

 
$0.585/mile patrolled 
Per diem rate is $25.00/day  
Wages for the individual officers at the prevailing rate ($32.70 - $53.76) per hour plus 
fringe benefits.  
 

II. PATROL ACTIVITIES: 
  

A. Time schedules for patrols will be flexible to allow for emergencies, other priorities, and 
day-to-day needs of both Cooperator and the U.S. Forest Service.  Ample time will be 
spent in each area to make residents and visitors aware that law enforcement officers are 
in the vicinity. 

1.  Patrol on following U.S. Forest Service roads: 
 

 National Forest System Roads 32, 33, 34, 55, 60, 64, 71, 112, 184, 188, 194, 198, 
199, 200, 203, 208, 222, 242, 284, 287, 287A, 287B, 289, 291, 303, 304, 349, 
406, 412, 417, 419, 423, 424, 426, 428, 430, 435, 445, 449, 473, 583, 608, 651, 
and 708. 

 
2. Patrol in the following campgrounds, developed sites, or dispersed areas: 

 
Globe Ranger District 
 Tuxedo Junction, CCC Camp and Sulfide Del Rey Campground:  .Late night 

patrol between 2200-0300 Friday and Saturday nights 
 Pioneer Pass: once per week, daytime/weekends. 
 Pinal Peak summer homes: once per week during the summer, and once per 

month during the winter. 
 Pipeline area in the vicinity of the junction of Highways 70 & 77. 
 Other patrols as needed on the Globe District, with emphasis on areas of illegal 

woodcutting.  These illegal cutting areas are determined through contact by the 
Gila County Sheriff's Office in Globe and the Globe Ranger District. 

U.S. Forest Service Program Manager 
Contact 

U.S. Forest Service Administrative 
Contact

Name: Bray Addison, Patrol Captain 
            Central Arizona Zone, LE&I            
Address: 2324 East McDowell Road 
City, State, Zip: Phoenix, AZ  85006 
Telephone: (602) 225-5241 
FAX: (602) 225-5286 
Email: brayaddison@fs.fed.us 

Name: Sherry J. Smith, Grants 
Management Specialist 
Address: 2324 East McDowell Road 
City, State, Zip: Phoenix, AZ  85006 
Telephone: (602) 225-5383 
FAX: (602) 225-5361 
Email: sherrysmith@fs.fed.us 



 

 
USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 

FS-1500-8A

 

Page 3 of 9 
 

   
Payson Ranger District 
 Upper and lower Tonto Campgrounds and Christopher Creek Campground:  

Friday through Sunday during May through September, and twice per month in 
the winter. 

 Other patrols as needed on the Payson District, with emphasis on areas of illegal 
woodcutting.  These illegal cutting areas are determined through contact by the 
Gila County Sheriff's Office in Payson and the Payson Ranger District. 

 
  Pleasant Valley Ranger District 

 Haigler Creek and Alderwood Campgrounds, upper and lower Canyon Creek 
Campgrounds, Workman Creek area:  Friday through Sunday during May through 
September and late night patrols and at least twice per month in winter. 

 Coyote Junction: late night during the summer. 
 Other patrols as needed on the Pleasant Valley District, with emphasis on areas of 

illegal woodcutting.  These illegal cutting areas are determined through contact by 
the Gila County Sheriff's Office in Payson and the Pleasant Valley Ranger 
District. 

 
  Tonto Basin Ranger District 

 Roosevelt Lake campgrounds:  late night patrols Friday through Sunday year-
around. 

 Lone Pine Saddle, Campaign Trailhead, Cherry and Coon Creek areas:  Twice per 
month.  

 
3. The Cooperator further agrees:  

 
To assist Forest Service Officers in the enforcement of natural resource conservation 
laws, rules, and regulations whenever possible.  
 
Dispatch additional deputies within manpower constraints for unforeseen or 
emergency situations upon request of the Forest Service.  
 
Provide radio communications for Forest Service law enforcement personnel as 
needed.  When advised that a Forest Service Law Enforcement Officer is "in service" 
on the Cooperator's frequency, the Cooperator dispatcher will provide basic officer 
safety welfare monitoring, welfare checks during vehicle stops and violator contacts, 
provide Arizona Criminal Justice information System (ACJIS)/National crime 
Information Center (NCIC) and Motor Vehicle Division (MVD) queries on request, 
and otherwise provide routine police dispatch services consistent with the 
Cooperator's own internal policies.  
 
Maintain interagency communication by means of informal meetings between the 
Forest Officers, Law Enforcement Officers for the purpose of exchanging mutually 
benefiting information.  



 

 
USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 

FS-1500-8A

 

Page 4 of 9 
 

 
Upon request of the Forest Service, the Cooperator shall provide copies of arrest 
reports, investigative reports, criminal complaints, citations, and other department 
records relating to crimes, offenses, disturbances, complaints and public safety 
responses handled by the Cooperator within the National Forest System.  Also upon 
request from the Forest Service, the Cooperator will provide statistical summaries of 
all incidents occurring within the National Forest System, subject to the capabilities 
of its automated data collection/retrieval systems. 

 
 

Total reimbursement for this category shall not exceed the amount of:  $74,800.00 
 

III. TRAINING: 
See Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement Provision IV-K for additional information. 
 
Total reimbursement for this category shall not exceed the amount of:  $0.00. 
 

IV. EQUIPMENT: 
See Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement Provisions IV-K, IV-L, and IV-M for additional 
information. 
 
 The Cooperator is authorized to purchase miscellaneous equipment and supplies 

necessary for its employees to adequately and safely perform their job under this 
agreement.   

 
Total reimbursement for this category shall not exceed the amount of:  $0.00 

 
V. SPECIAL ENFORCEMENT SITUATIONS: 

 
A. Special Enforcement Situations include but are not limited to: Fire Emergencies, Drug 

Enforcement, and certain Group Gatherings. 
 

B. Funds available for special enforcement situations vary greatly from year to year and 
must be specifically requested and approved prior to any reimbursement being 
authorized.  Requests for funds should be made to the U.S. Forest Service designated 
representative listed in Item I-A of this Annual Operating Plan.  The designated 
representative will then notify the Cooperator whether funds will be authorized for 
reimbursement.  If funds are authorized, the parties will then jointly prepare a revised 
Annual Operating Plan. 
 

1. Drug Enforcement:  This will be handled on a case by case basis. The request will 
normally come from the patrol Captain; however, it may come from the Special 
Agent in Charge or their designated representative. Reimbursement shall be made 
at the rates specified in Section I-B. Deputies assigned to the incident will 



 

 
USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 

FS-1500-8A

 

Page 5 of 9 
 

coordinate all of their activities with the designated officer in charge of the 
incident.  
 
      

2. Fire Emergency:  During emergency fire suppression and fire severity situations 
and upon request by the Forest Service pursuant to an incident resource order, the 
Cooperator agrees to provide special services beyond those provided under Section 
II-A, within the Cooperator’s resource capabilities, for the enforcement of State 
and local laws related to the protection of persons and their property. The 
Cooperator will be compensated at the rate specified in Section I-B; the U.S. 
Forest Service will specify times and schedules. Upon concurrence of the local 
Patrol Captain or their designated representative, an official from the Incident 
Management Team managing the incident, Cooperator personnel assigned to an 
incident where meals are provided will be entitled to such meals.  
 
All requests to provide additional law enforcement support on National 
Forest System lands during extreme fire conditions will become effective and 
reimbursable only when the Forest Service specifically requests assistance 
through the Forest Dispatch or Expanded Dispatch Office, a Resource Order 
Number is provided, and the County Dispatch Office is notified of the request.  
Initial attack responses without a Resource Order by the Forest Service are 
not reimbursable. 
 
Upon request and concurrence by the Sheriff’s Department,  
 
The Sheriff’s Department shall: 
 
a. Provide to the Forest Service, fully equipped Sheriff’s Deputies who meet the 

standards of training as listed in the Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement, 
Provisions II-B, including appropriate vehicles(s), in numbers requested by the 
Forest Service to provide law enforcement for fire severity or fire suppression 
situations.  These duties are above and beyond the customary duties that are 
routinely provided by the Sheriff’s Office and will be covered under Special 
Enforcement Situations.  The Sheriff’s Deputies will continue to work under 
the direction of the Sheriff’s Department.  The Sheriff’s Deputies will 
coordinate their patrol activities with the U.S. Forest Service Patrol Captain, or 
their designee, while assigned to each specific fire severity or fire suppression 
patrol area, and coordinate their activities with the Incident Commander while 
assigned to each specific wildland fire severity or fire suppression situation.  
All Deputies assigned to a wildland fire severity or fire suppression situation 
are required to follow Check-in and Demobilization procedures.  
 

b. Assign Sheriff’s Deputies requested by the Forest Service for fire severity or 
fire suppression situation patrols and law enforcement. 

 



 

 
USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 

FS-1500-8A

 

Page 6 of 9 
 

c. Furnish itemized statements of expenditures to the Forest Service for the fire 
severity or fire suppression situation services requested by the Forest Service, 
at the address below: 

 
Bray Addison, Patrol Captain 
Central Arizona Zone, LE&I              
2324 East McDowell Road 
Phoenix, AZ  85006 

 
The Patrol Captain will review and approve the invoice, and forward the 
invoice and support documentation to Incident Finance for payment. 

 
Billing requests will include the following information: 
 
Cooperator Name, address, phone number and agency financial contact 
Invoice or Bill number.; 
Resource Order number(s); 
Appropriate incident number (State code or Forest Service P-code and 
override); 
Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement number; 
Dates of the incident covered by the billing; and 
Location and jurisdictional unit of the incident. 
 
Summary cost data for the amount being billed:   
 
Use incident-generated cost reports generated by the Agency to support the 
billing whenever possible.  Summary cost data may include, but not limited to, 
a list of personnel expenses including base, overtime and travel and a listing by 
vendor name and amount spent for supplies and services procured.   
 

 
 
 

 The Forest Service shall: 
 

a. Relay requests to the Sheriff’s Department to provide fully equipped Sheriff’s 
Deputies, including vehicles, through Forest Service Dispatch or Expanded 
Dispatch Office to the County Dispatch Office, including specific information 
on numbers of Deputies needed, tour, location, expected length of duty, 
authorization for overtime expenditures, and fire severity (S-code) or fire 
suppression (P-code) for billing.  A resource order number must be issued by 
the Forest Service to support each request.  The resource order number will be 
provided to the Sheriff’s Office by the Forest Dispatcher. 
 



 

 
USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 

FS-1500-8A

 

Page 7 of 9 
 

b. Post each Deputy’s time and vehicle mileage to a Fire Time Report (Optional 
Form 288) to provide documentation to support payment of each itemized 
statement of expenditures provided by the Sheriff’s Department. 

 
c. Reimburse the Sheriff’s Department for requested fire severity or fire 

suppression special enforcement situation services that are provided and 
covered under this Section, at the prevailing rates as per Section I, Paragraph 
B above. 

 
3. Group Gatherings:  This includes but is not limited to situations which are 

normally unanticipated or which typically include very short notices, large group 
gatherings such as rock concerts, demonstrations, and organization rendezvous. 
Upon authorization by a Forest Service representative listed in Section I-A for 
requested services of this nature, reimbursement shall be made at the rates 
specified in Section I-B. Deputies assigned to this type of incident will normally 
coordinate their activities with the designated officer in charge of the incident.  
 

 
This includes but is not limited to situations which are normally unanticipated or which 
typically include very short notice, large group gatherings such as rock concerts, 
demonstrations, and organizational rendezvous. 
 

VI. BILLING FREQUENCY: 
See Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement Provisions II-H and III-B for additional 
information. 
 

A. Quarterly Billing for reimbursement to the Sheriff’s Office for items listed under Sections 
II, III and IV shall not exceed $74,800.00. 
 

B. The following is a breakdown of the total estimated costs associated with this Annual 
Operating Plan.  
 

Category Estimated Costs Not to Exceed by % 
Patrol Activities $74,800.00 N/A 
Training 0.00 N/A 
Equipment/Supplies 0.00 N/A 
Special Enforcement Situations 0.00 N/A 
Total $74,800.00 N/A 

 
C. Any remaining funding in this Annual Operating Plan may be carried forward to the next 

fiscal year and will be available to spend through the term of the Cooperative Law 
Enforcement Agreement, or de-obligated at the request of the U.S. Forest Service. See 
Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement Provision IV-D.  

 



 

 
USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 

FS-1500-8A

 

Page 8 of 9 
 

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this Annual Operating Plan as of the 
last date written below. 

 
 

       
ADAM SHEPHERD, Sheriff 
Pinal County Sheriff’s Office 
 
 

Date 
 
 

       
NEIL J. BOSWORTH,  Forest Supervisor     
U.S. Forest Service, Tonto National Forest  
 
 

Date 
 

 
       
      
 Chairman Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 

Date 
 
 

       
ROBIN L. POAGUE 
Special Agent in Charge, Southwestern Region  
 
 

Date 
 

 
 
 

The authority and format of this agreement have been reviewed and approved for 
signature. 
       
                                                                                                          
SHERRY J. SMITH 
U.S. Forest Service Grants Manager 

Date 

 
 
 

Burden Statement 
 
According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to a collection of information 
unless it displays a valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0596-0217.  The time required to complete this 
information collection is estimated to average 3 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and 
maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.   
 
The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, and 
where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, sexual orientation, genetic information, political beliefs, reprisal, or because all or 
part of an individual’s income is derived from any public assistance.  (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.)  Persons with disabilities who require 



 

 
USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 

FS-1500-8A

 

Page 9 of 9 
 

alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA’s TARGET Center at 202-720-2600 (voice 
and TDD). 
 
To file a complaint of discrimination, write USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, DC 20250-9410 or call toll free 
(866) 632-9992 (voice).  TDD users can contact USDA through local relay or the Federal relay at (800) 877-8339 (TDD) or (866) 377-8642 (relay voice).  USDA 
is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 
 
 

 



   USDA Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
 FS-1500-19 

 

 

11.  SIGNATURES 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE: BY SIGNATURE BELOW, THE SIGNING PARTIES CERTIFY THAT THEY ARE THE OFFICIAL REPRESENTATIVES OF 

THEIR RESPECTIVE PARTIES AND AUTHORIZED TO ACT IN THEIR RESPECTIVE AREAS FOR MATTERS RELATED TO THE ABOVE-REFERENCED 

GRANT/AGREEMENT. 
11.A. PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA   SIGNATURE 11.B. DATE 

SIGNED 

 
      

11.C. U.S. FOREST SERVICE SIGNATURE 11.D. DATE 
SIGNED 

      
(Signature of Signatory Official) (Signature of Signatory Official) 

11.E. NAME (type or print): ADAM SHEPHERD 11.F. NAME (type or print): NEIL J. BOSWORTH 

11.G. TITLE  (type or print): Sheriff 11.H.  TITLE (type or print): Forest Supervisor 
 

  

MODIFICATION OF GRANT OR AGREEMENT 
  PAGE          OF  PAGES

 1 6  
1. U.S. FOREST SERVICE GRANT/AGREEMENT NUMBER: 
11-LE-11031200-004 

2. RECIPIENT/COOPERATOR GRANT or 
AGREEMENT NUMBER, IF ANY: 
      

3. MODIFICATION NUMBER: 

4 

4. NAME/ADDRESS OF U.S. FOREST SERVICE UNIT ADMINISTERING 
GRANT/AGREEMENT (unit name, street, city, state, and zip + 4): 

Sherry Smith, Grant   & Agreement Specialist 
Tonto National Forest, Supervisor's Office 
2324 East McDowell Road 
Phoenix, AZ  85006 

5. NAME/ADDRESS OF U.S. FOREST SERVICE UNIT ADMINISTERING 
PROJECT/ACTIVITY (unit name, street, city, state, and zip + 4): 

Bray Addison, Patrol Captain 
Tonto National Forest, Supervisor's Office 
2324 East McDowell Road 
Phoenix, AZ  85006 

6. NAME/ADDRESS OF RECIPIENT/COOPERATOR (street, city, state, and zip + 
4, county):       

Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Gila County Sheriff's Office 
PO Box 311 
Globe, AZ 85501 

7. RECIPIENT/COOPERATOR’S HHS SUB ACCOUNT NUMBER (For HHS 
payment use only): 

      

8. PURPOSE OF MODIFICATION 
CHECK ALL 
THAT APPLY: 

This modification is issued pursuant to the modification provision in the grant/agreement 
referenced in item no. 1, above. 

 CHANGE IN PERFORMANCE PERIOD: Extend the performance period through December 31, 2015. 

 CHANGE IN FUNDING: add funding in the amount of $74,800.00 for work to be performed in 2015 Annual Financial 
and Operating Plan, attached as Exhibit A. 

 ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES: Add additional language to the Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement (see 9.  
below) 

 OTHER (Specify type of modification):       

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the Grant/Agreement referenced in 1, above, remain unchanged and in full 
force and effect. 
9.  ADDITIONAL SPACE FOR DESCRIPTION OF MODIFICATION (add additional pages as needed): 

Note: Annual Operating Plan for  2015,  will be incorporated as  Exhibit A to this agreement.    
 

10.  ATTACHED DOCUMENTATION (Check all that apply): 
 Revised Scope of Work 

 Revised Financial Plan 

 Other: Exhibit A, Annual Financial and Operating Plan 



   USDA Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
 FS-1500-19 

 
 

       
      
Chairman, Board of 
Supervisors 
 
 

Date 
 
 

  
  

 
 

 
       
ROBIN L. POAGUE 
Special Agent in Charge, 
Southwestern Region 
 
 

Date 
 
 

  
  

 

  

12. G&A REVIEW 
12.A. The authority and format of this modification have been reviewed and approved for signature by: 
 
            ______________________________________  

            SHERRY J. SMITH 
            U.S. Forest Service Grants & Agreements Specialist       

12.B. DATE 
SIGNED 

      
 

 
  



   USDA Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
 FS-1500-19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST 
 
 
________________________________________ 
  
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
This ________day of _________________, 201 
 
 
 
 
By:_____________________________________   
 County Deputy Attorney      
 
 
 
 

Burden Statement 
 
According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB 
control number.  The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0596-0217.  The time required to complete this information collection is estimated to average 30 minutes per 
response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.   
 
The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, and where applicable, sex, marital 
status, familial status, parental status, religion, sexual orientation, genetic information, political beliefs, reprisal, or because all or part of an individual’s income is derived from any public 
assistance.  (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.)  Persons with disabilities who require alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, audiotape, 
etc.) should contact USDA’s TARGET Center at 202-720-2600 (voice and TDD). 
 
To file a complaint of discrimination, write USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, DC 20250-9410 or call toll free (866) 632-9992 (voice).  TDD 
users can contact USDA through local relay or the Federal relay at (800) 877-8339 (TDD) or (866) 377-8642 (relay voice).  USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 
 

  



   USDA Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
 FS-1500-19 

 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR FORM  FS-1500-19 

1.  Enter the orginal U.S. Forest Service agreement number. 
 

2.  Enter the cooperator’s agreement number, if applicable. 
 
3.  Enter the number for this Modification, i.e. 01, 02, or 03.  The first modification to an instrument is ‘01’, subsequent 
modifications receive a subsequent modification number (for example, the fourth modification is ’04’). 
 
4.  Enter the address of the G&A Specialist/Signatory Official responsible for this agreement. 
 
5.  Enter the address of the U.S. Forest Service Program/Project Manager or Lead Scientist responsible for this agreement. 
 
6.  Enter the cooperator’s address. 
 
7.  Enter the cooperator’s HHS Sub-Account numbers, if funding is provided on this modification (for example:   G2412345003)  
(Only used by NA/S&PF and NRS) 
 

   8.  Select all boxes that apply: 
 

- Change in Performance = updated performance period agreed to. 
- Change in Funding = obligation OR de-obligation amount and new totals. 
- Administrative = change in pay address, administrator address, correcting typing errors, etc. 
- Other = any other modification not described, such as update new objective to study plan, change the Principle 
Investigator, etc. 

 
9.  Insert changes such as updated provision, tasks, or any other data needed by the modification, add additional pages as 
needed. 
 
10.  Check all boxes that apply and ensure to attach these documents to the modification.  Other attachments could include  
SF-424 forms. 
 
 
11. A – D, self explanatory. 
11. E – H, Type or print the names of signatory officials. 
 
12.  G&A Specialist signs and dates before sending to the individuals in block 11, if all modification data are approved for 
signature. 

 





































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3133     Consent Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2016 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

January 1, 2015
through
December 31,
2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
FY 2016 Letter of Agreement Number 2015-04 between the Gila County Sheriff's Office
and the U.S. Department of Justice Drug Enforcement Administration.

Background Information
The U.S. Department of Justice Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA), pursuant to
the authority of 21 U.S.C. 873, proposes to provide certain necessary funds and the
Gila County Sheriff's Office is desirous of securing funds. For the past couple of years,
the Gila County Sheriff's Office has entered into a Letter of Agreement with the DEA
and has received funds to defray costs relating to the eradication and suppression of
cannabis.

The DEA will pay to the Gila County Sheriff’s Office federal funds in the amount of
Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000) for the period of January 1, 2015, through
December 31, 2015, to defray costs relating to the eradication and suppression of
cannabis.  The Gila County Sheriff’s Office agrees to use funds provided primarily for
payment of deputies’/officers’ overtime no ERE while those deputies and officers are
directly engaged in the cannabis eradication process, and for per diem and other direct
costs related to the actual conduct of cannabis eradication. These federal funds are not
intended primarily for the purchase of equipment or supplies. All purchases of the
equipment and supplies must have prior written approval from HQ/OMS by October
15th.

The DEA agrees to reimburse the Gila County Sheriff’s Office for officers’ overtime
accrued while participating in marijuana eradication efforts. The annual maximum
overtime reimbursement rate is based on the current year General Pay Scale/rest of
the United States and cannot exceed 25% of a GS-12, Step 1; the funds shall only be
used to pay the normal overtime rate, i.e. time and a half. The overtime
reimbursement rate “shall not include any cost for benefits, such as retirement, FICA,
or other expenses.”



Evaluation
For fiscal year 2016, the U.S. Department of Justice Drug Enforcement Administration
has committed to $20,000 for overtime. 

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office will utilize the funds in the amount of $20,000 to
provide primarily for payment of deputies'/officers' overtime no ERE while those
deputies and officers are directly engaged in the cannabis eradication process, and for
per diem and other direct cost related to the actual conduct of cannabis eradication. 

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of Supervisors
approve this Letter of Agreement Number 2015-04 with the U.S. Department of Justice
Drug Enforcement Administration in the amount of $20,000. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Letter of Agreement (Number 2015-04) between the U.S. Department of
Justice Drug Enforcement Administration and the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the
amount of $20,000 for the period of January 1, 2015, through December 31, 2015, in
order to provide overtime pay related to the Domestic Cannabis
Eradication/Suppression Program.  

Attachments
Letter of Agreement No. 2015-04 with U.S. Dept. of Justice DEA
Legal Explanation































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-3129     Consent Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Sidewinders Tavern & Grill Application for a Temporary Extension of
Premises/Patio Permit.

Background Information
Any establishment that has been issued a liquor license must submit an
Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit to the local governing
body of the city, town or county where the establishment is located.  The
application can be submitted to temporarily or permanently extend the
premises/patio where serving liquor is permitted by the Arizona
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC).  The local governing
body usually has established internal procedures for review and approval
of the application.  The DLLC has final approval of all recommendations
submitted by the local governing body. 

Randy D. Nations has submitted an application to temporarily extend the
premises/patio of the Sidewinders Tavern & Grill for an event to be held
on May 9, 2015.  The Sidewinders Tavern & Grill is located in Pine,
Arizona.

Evaluation
The application has been reviewed by the Clerk of the Board Department. 
Scott Buzan, Chief Building Official of the Community Development
Division, has also reviewed the application and he is familiar with the
premises.  Both departments have no objections with regard to
this application. 

Conclusion
The application is ready to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for a
decision.  The Board's recommendation will then be sent to the DLLC for
a final decision.



Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors issue an approval
recommendation to the DLLC.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio
Permit submitted by Randy D. Nations to temporarily extend the premises
where liquor is permitted to be sold at the Sidewinders Tavern & Grill,
which is located in Pine, Arizona for an event to be held on May 9, 2015.

Attachments
Sidewinders Tavern & Grill
Interoffice Memo













   
ARF-3145     Consent Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Cooperative Extension Advisory Board Appointments

Background Information
Per statutory requirement, the Board of Supervisors is responsible for
appointing members to a county cooperative extension advisory board,
which shall consist of 7 members.  Each member shall be appointed for a
term of two years.

On April 1, 2014, the Board of Supervisors re-appointed and appointed
the most recent members to the Gila County Cooperative Extension
Advisory Board of Directors.  Since that time, Kenny Evans resigned from
the Board effective October 7, 2014; however, his term of office ended on
December 31, 2014, so a vacancy currently exists on this Board.  Clark
Richens' terms of office also expired on December 31, 2014; however, he
has agreed to serve another two-year term of office.
 

Evaluation
The Board of Supervisors needs to consider re-appointing Clark Richens
to serve another two-year term of office retroactively from January 1,
2015, to December 31, 2016.  The Board also needs to consider
appointing Mike Burket to fill a current vacancy on said Board, which will
go into effect from the date the Board appoints Mr. Burket through
December 31, 2016.  The current two-year terms of office for these
appointments is January 1, 2015, to December 31, 2016.

Conclusion
Clark Richens has expressed a willingness to serve on this Board for
another two-year term of office.  Mike Burkett has also expressed a
willingness to serve on this Board.  Clark Richens has submitted a letter
of recommendation for the Board to appoint Mike Burket, which is
attached to this agenda item.  The Board needs to take an action to



appoint these two individuals to the Gila County Cooperative Extension
Advisory Board. 

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors reappoint Clark Richens
to serve another two-year term of office, retroactively from January 1,
2015, through December 31, 2016; and appoint Mike Burket beginning
May 5, 2015, through December 31, 2016, for the current term of office
which runs from January 1, 2015, through December 31, 2016.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the following appointments to the Gila County Cooperative
Extension Advisory Board:  1) Reappointment of Clark Richens for
another two-year term of office, retroactive from January 1, 2015,
through December 31, 2016; and 2) appointment of Mike Burket to fill a
vacancy on said Board beginning May 5, 2015 through December 31, 2016.

Attachments
Cooperative Extension Advisory Board Member List
Recommendation Letter for Mike Burket



 

GILA COUNTY COOPERATIVE EXTENSION ADVISORY BOARD 

 (Proposed to the BOS on 5/5/15) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Clark Richins  
(Principal Business) 

B C (05/05/15) 12 years 01/01/15-12/31/16 01/01/15-12/31/16 

Fred Jimenez (Utilizes County 
Ag. Extension Services) 

B C (04/01/14) 
 

1 year, 10 months 01/01/14-12/31/15 01/01/14-12/31/15 

Dave Cook  
(Principal Business) 

B C (04/01/14) 7 years, 8 months 01/01/14-12/31/15 01/01/14-12/31/15 

Kenny Evans 
(Organization Rep.) 

B C (12/18/12) 6 years, 5 months 01/01/13-12/31/14 
Resigned 10/7/14 

01/01/13-12/31/14 

Mike Burket  
(Youth Programs - 4-H) 

B A (05/05/15) - 05/05/15-12/31/16 01/01/15-12/31/16 

Diana Hemovich (Principal 
Business) 

B A - 04/01/14-12/31/15 01/01/14-12/31/15 

Albert Hunt (Utilizes County 
Ag. Extension Services) 

B C (04/01/14) 
 

7 months 01/01/14-12/31/15 01/01/14-12/31/15 

Lori Brown 
(Principal Business) 

B C (04/01/14) 2 years 01/01/14-12/31/15 01/01/14-12/31/15 

 
1
  Appointment Information: 

A. A.R.S. §3-124-County agricultural extension board; members; appointment; term; qualifications; office space states, “The board of supervisors shall appoint 7 persons, who are residents 
of the county, to a county agricultural extension board, 4 of whom have as their principal business the production of agricultural commodities, and the other 3 of whom shall be 
representative of organizations or persons who utilize the county agricultural extension services.” 

B. Each member shall be appointed for a term of 2 years. 
C. The University of Arizona, College of Agriculture and Life Sciences, administers all cooperative extension programs throughout the state.   

 
2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 



 

 





   

ARF-3151     Consent Agenda Item      4. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Deputy Director 
Submitted By: Kelly Jones, Administrative Clerk Specialist, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Fairground Facilities

Information
Request/Subject
The 2015 Junior Class of Globe High School is requesting that the fees for the use of the Exhibit Hall at
the Gila County Fairgrounds be waived for the Junior/Senior Prom that was held on April 25, 2015.

Background Information
The Globe High School Gym does not have sufficient space to hold the annual Junior/Senior Prom, so
the best location for the dance is the Gila County Fairgrounds.  The Junior Class has the responsibility
for putting on the Junior/Senior Prom which includes coordinating fund-raiser events to pay for the
decorations, refreshments, hiring security personnel, etc. for the dance. 

Evaluation
The Junior High Class is not a 501(C)(3) organization, although they certainly meet the criteria of not for
profit. The funds come entirely from the class fundraisers and any cost of the building rental comes at
the expense of other activities that the Class sponsors.

Student sponsored events provide activities for the benefit of the students and the community while also
providing real life event planning and production experience for the host class.  Schools are not able to
pay for building rental for student events. The Globe Unified School District does, however, often waive
fees for use of their facilities for community events.

Conclusion
Based on the above listed reasons, the 2015 Junior Class of Globe High School respectfully requests
that the fees for the 2015 Junior/Senior Prom that were charged to them be waived and returned.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the fees be waived to allow the students to have funds available for other student
sponsored events which provide activities for the benefit of the students and the community while also
providing real life event planning and production experience for the host class.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a request submitted by the 2015 Junior Class of Globe High School to waive fees for the use
of the Gila County Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall for the School's Junior/Senior Prom that was held on April
25, 2015.

Attachments

Globe Prom Letter





   
ARF-3134     Consent Agenda Item      4. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Administrative Clerk, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Canyon Water Improvement District new board member appointments.

Background Information
A.R.S. 48-1012 (C) provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district board
other than from expiration of a term, the remaining board members shall
fill the vacancy by appointment of an interim member.

Evaluation
The Canyon Water Improvement District Governing Board appointed
Robert McKusick and Lynn Hocking as governing board members.

Conclusion
Robert McKusick and Lynn Hocking have both agreed to serve as
members of the Governing Board for the Canyon Water Improvement
District which will expire in December 2018.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors
acknowledge the appointments of Robert McKusick and Lynn Hocking as
new Governing Board members for the Canyon Water Improvement
District with their terms to expire in December 2018.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the appointments of Robert McKusick and Lynn
Hocking to the Canyon Water Improvement District Governing Board,
terms ending December 31, 2018.

Attachments
01-19-15 Meeting Minutes



Oath of Office
ARS 48-1012













   
ARF-3131     Consent Agenda Item      4. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  
Reporting
Period:

March 2015

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court,

Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for March 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2015 monthly activity report submitted by
the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk of Court Report March 2015



















   
ARF-3120     Consent Agenda Item      4. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  
Reporting
Period:

March 2015

Submitted For: Colt White, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Michelle Keegan, Administrative Clerk Senior, Constable

- Payson Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2015 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2015













































































   
ARF-3123     Consent Agenda Item      4. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  
Reporting
Period:

March 2015

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region,

Justice Court-Payson Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for March
2015

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2015 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
March 2015 Monthly Report













   
ARF-3150     Consent Agenda Item      4. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  
Reporting
Period:

April 21-28, 2015

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Information
Subject
April 21, 2015, and April 28, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting
minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the April 21, 2015, and April 28, 2015, Board of Supervisors'
meeting minutes.

Attachments
BOS 04-28-15 Meeting Minutes
BOS 04-21-15 Meeting Minutes



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  April 28, 2015 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Clerk of the Board 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 
Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk. 
  
A County attorney was not present at this meeting. 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

  
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a work session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Robert (Bob) Gould led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
A.  Information/Discussion regarding a proposed amendment to the Gila 
County Planning and Zoning Ordinance to address Accessory Dwelling 
Units (ADU) regulations.   
 
Robert (Bob) Gould, Community Development Division Director, reviewed the 
proposed language which addresses Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) that 
would be added to the Gila County Planning and Zoning Ordinance if approved 
in the future by the Board of Supervisors.  The definition of an ADU in the 
proposed language is as follows:   “An ADU is a small self-contained dwelling, 
typically with its own entrance, cooking, and bathing facilities, that shares the 
site of a larger, single-unit dwelling.  ADUs may be attached, as in the case of a 
basement apartment, or detached, as in the case of a backyard cottage.  An ADU 
is not a separate property; it has the same owner as the primary dwelling.”  Mr. 
Gould stated that a different approach has been taken by County staff on this 
Ordinance revision because it would let a property owner “by right” be able to 
add an ADU without going through the County’s use permitting process, 
variance process, and conditional use permitting process.  Mr. Gould advised 

Page 1 of 4 
 



that the current Ordinance contains language which addresses guest houses 
and he explained the difference between a guest house and an ADU.  An ADU 
allows a property owner to rent out an ADU whereas a property owner may not 
rent out a guest house.  A component of the proposed revisions includes 
removing all references to guest houses in the Ordinance.  He proceeded to 
review the objectives of the proposed ADU regulations which are to increase the 
number of rental units available in Gila County, expand housing choices, 
provide housing options for low to moderate income households, and 
encourage energy efficiency.  No more than one ADU will be permitted on a 
single lot, and a lot must be at least 5,000 square feet in size in order to allow 
the addition of an ADU.  Mr. Gould reviewed the guidelines for an ADU that is 
attached to the primary building, and an ADU that is not attached to the 
primary building.  At the end of the presentation, Mr. Gould and Scott Buzan, 
Chief Building Official, answered some questions posed by Board members.  
On behalf of the Board, Chairman Pastor thanked Mr. Gould and Mr. Buzan for 
today’s presentation. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion to consider revising the Board of Supervisors’ 
process for the sale of land held by the State under tax deed.     
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, advised that changes in State law encouraged 
the Clerk of the Board to make proposed changes to a resolution that was 
adopted by the Board of Supervisors in 2003, which addresses the process for 
selling land held by the State under tax deed.  He reviewed the statutory 
changes which eliminated the need to post the public notice and list of 
available properties for sale in two public places in each election precinct, and 
reduced the length of time required to publish the notice and list.  He stated 
that language was also added to the statutes with regard to selling State-owned 
land to a county, city, town or special taxing district for a public purpose 
related to transportation and flood control; and selling State-owned land to the 
owner of contiguous real property.  Mr. McDaniel advised that the revised 
resolution will be more general, so if there are future statutory changes, only 
the County’s procedures for selling State-owned land will need to be changed.  
He stated that this resolution has accompanying formalized procedures for 
selling State-owned land that was not in place when the previous resolution 
was adopted.  Mr. McDaniel mentioned that the Clerk recently researched 
other counties’ processes for selling State-owned land and he noted that 
although the process varies from county to county, the Clerks of Cochise, 
Greenlee, Maricopa, Yuma and Navajo counties have authority to sell those 
State-owned properties that were not sold at the auction through an over-the-
counter process.  Mr. McDaniel advised that the final change in the proposed 
resolution authorizes the Clerk of the Board to sell State-owned land for the 
total lien amount through an over-the-counter process with the understanding 
that all such sales are deemed approved by the Board.   He added that after the 
Clerk sells the property, a quit claim deed would be presented on a Board 
meeting agenda to obtain authorization for the Chairman to sign it.  He 

Page 2 of 4 
 



emphasized that the Clerk would only have authority to sell State-owned 
parcels which did not sell at previous Board of Supervisors’ annual auctions 
and the sale must be for the lien amount owed on the property.  Mr. McDaniel 
further advised that the Board’s sealed bid process would remain in place, 
which allows an owner of property which adjoins a State-owned property to 
submit a sealed bid for the Board’s consideration that is less than the lien 
amount providing that the property owner submits proof of adjoining 
ownership at the time the sealed bid is presented to the Clerk of the Board.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin complimented the Clerk’s effort to bring forth these 
proposed changes of which she stated that “it’s the right direction.”  She 
suggested having the Board review this resolution and other resolutions on a 
yearly basis to determine how well they are working.  Supervisor Marcanti 
asked Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, to clarify the times when a State-
owned property was sold for the lien amount and times that it could be sold for 
less than the lien amount, which was done.  Chairman Pastor referred to an 
earlier suggestion that was made by Mr. McDaniel to change all references to 
“guidelines” in the resolution and procedures, to “procedures,” to which Ms. 
Sheppard agreed that would be done before the final resolution was presented 
to the Board for adoption.  Jon Cornell of KQSS radio station suggested that 
the Board conduct the auction twice a year rather than annual.  Ms. Sheppard 
explained that most of the properties that are sold at the Board’s auction have 
very little value and most of them would only have value to an adjoining land 
owner.  She did clarify that these properties will be available for purchase on a 
year-round basis after the auction has taken place.  
 
Item 3 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 4 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events. No action may be taken 
on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member presented information on current events.  The County 
Manager did not offer any comments.  

Page 3 of 4 
 



There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:40 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

Page 4 of 4 
 



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  April 21, 2015 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; 
Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief; Jacque 
Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian; Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the 
Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.   
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Minister Robert Howard of 
the First Christian Church in Globe delivered the invocation, and Bryan 
Chambers led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 2015-07 to 
proclaim May 7, 2015, as the National Day of Prayer in Gila County.   
 
Jerry Green, in Payson (via ITV), provided information regarding the history of 
the National Day of Prayer and then he read aloud the proclamation.  He 
requested that the Board adopt the proclamation.  Mr. Green briefly talked 
about some of the scheduled events in Gila County on May 7th.  Upon motion 
by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously adopted Proclamation No. 2015-07 to proclaim May 7, 2015, as 
the National Day of Prayer in Gila County.  (A copy of the Proclamation is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the electronic submittal 
of the Arizona Department of Emergency Management 2015 Application 
for the Emergency Management Performance Grant Funds in the amount 
of $160,000 with a General Fund match of $110,000 and a soft match of 

Page 1 of 11 
 



volunteer hours of $50,000 for the period of October 1, 2015, to 
September 30, 2016, which, if approved, will enable the Health and 
Emergency Services Division to continue to provide and improve its 
response and recovery activities through implementation of emergency 
response plans, communications, and emergency operations center 
coordination during and after emergencies.   
 
Michael O'Driscoll, Health and Emergency Services Division Director, stated 
that if approved, this renewal grant funding will be used primarily for the 
following:  1) completing the update of the northern and southern Gila County 
wildfire protection plans, 2) developing a tactical interoperability plan, 3) 
updating the emergency operations plan, 4) beginning the process of 
stakeholder engagement toward continuity of operations programs, 5) 
rebuilding the County’s communication systems and processes for 
emergencies, and 6) selecting, purchasing, and implementing a community 
wide mass notification system.  He added that the soft-match of volunteer 
hours was not used previously by the County as a portion of this grant match 
requirement.  Chairman Pastor inquired if additional County personnel would 
need to be hired in order to administer this grant.  Mr. O’Driscoll replied that 
recently two positions were eliminated in the Health and Community Services 
Division and two new positions were created, which are now filled.  One of the 
recently filled positions is that of a Communications Coordinator, which is 
100% funded by this grant, so there will not be a need to add any new 
positions for this grant.  Chairman Pastor inquired if the two newly created 
positions were in effect for one year or if they were permanent positions, to 
which Mr. O’Driscoll replied that the new positions paid for by this grant 
funding are permanent positions.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the 
electronic submittal of the Arizona Department of Emergency Management 
2015 Application for the Emergency Management Performance Grant Funds in 
the amount of $160,000 with a General Fund match of $110,000 and a soft 
match of volunteer hours of $50,000 for the period of October 1, 2015, to 
September 30, 2016, which, if approved, will enable the Health and Emergency 
Services Division to continue to provide and improve its response and recovery 
activities through implementation of emergency response plans, 
communications, and emergency operations center coordination during and 
after emergencies.   
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the electronic submittal 
of the Arizona Department of Health Services Ebola Phase 2 Funding 
Application in the amount of $28,193.25 for the period of April 2015 to 
September 2016 which, if approved, will enable the Health and Emergency 
Services Division improve its public health planning and preparedness for 
novel diseases like Ebola.   
 

Page 2 of 11 
 



Mr. O'Driscoll stated that since the Ebola outbreak in 2014, the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) are taking precautions to prevent this 
from happening in the Unites States.  This grant, if awarded, will enhance the 
County’s total preparedness grant award by approximately 10% and thereby 
increase the overall ability to prepare for and respond to emerging infectious 
diseases such as Ebola.   
 
Jon Cornell of KQSS radio inquired if this grant would be used in connection 
with a countywide mass communication system as recently presented to this 
Board.  Mr. O’Driscoll replied that utilization of this grant funding integrates 
with the countywide mass notification system.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously authorized 
the electronic submittal of the Arizona Department of Health Services Ebola 
Phase 2 Funding Application in the amount of $28,193.25 for the period of 
April 2015 to September 2016 which, if approved, will enable the Health and 
Emergency Services Division improve its public health planning and 
preparedness for novel diseases like Ebola.   
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Customer Purchase 
Agreement between Gila County and Empire CAT for the purchase of one 
2015, CT660S SBA 6x4 roll-on/roll-off truck in the total amount 
$196,197.41; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the Customer 
Purchase Agreement.   
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, stated that this request for purchase 
was previously presented to the Board with a lease-purchase option in addition 
to a purchase option.  Upon further research by staff, it was determined that 
an outright purchase of the roll-on/roll-off truck would be most beneficial to 
the County.  He added that this would be a purchase utilizing the existing 
contract that Empire CAT has between the City of Tucson and the National 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, which would provide a 
cost savings to the County.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved a Customer Purchase 
Agreement between Gila County and Empire CAT for the purchase of one 2015, 
CT660S SBA 6x4 roll-on/roll-off truck in the total amount $196,197.41; and 
authorized the Chairman's signature on the Customer Purchase Agreement.   
 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Agreement No. 032615-1 
between Gila County and the Gila County Rodeo Committee to provide an 
economic development grant in the amount of $10,000 that will be used 
to offset the costs incurred for the 2015 Copper Dust Stampede Rodeo on 
May 8-9, 2015.   
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that, historically, the County has issued contracts to 
individual contractors that provide services associated with the annual Copper 
Dust Stampede Rodeo.  In August 2014, the Gila County Rodeo Committee was 

Page 3 of 11 
 



granted 501(C) (3) tax exempt status by the Internal Revenue Service and 
classified as a public charity.  In accordance with County policy, an economic 
development grant may now be provided to the GCRC directly for the Copper 
Dust Stampede Rodeo as it is a non-profit organization.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if part of the $10,000 would be used to replace the 
sand washed dirt to improve footing and to hold moisture better at the 
County’s fairgrounds arena as stated in the letter of request.  Steve Stratton, 
Public Works Division Director, replied that the $10,000 would cover the 
expenses of the rodeo including the sand washed dirt, and the County would 
also assist in the installation of the dirt.  Vice-Chairman Martin made a motion 
to approve Agreement No. 032615-1 between Gila County and the Gila County 
Rodeo Committee to provide an economic development grant in the amount of 
$10,000 to the Gila County Rodeo Committee, which was seconded by 
Supervisor Marcanti.  Before the Chairman called for the vote on the motion, 
he inquired of Mr. Hessenius if the $10,000 would be funded from the County’s 
Community Agency Economic Development fund.  He also inquired if this 
amount was included in the County’s current fiscal year budget and, if so, he 
wanted to know the remaining balance of the fund after the money has been 
allocated.  Mr. Hessenius replied that he would obtain that information and 
provide it to the Board after the meeting.  There being no further questions or 
comments, Chairman Pastor asked for the vote on the motion, which passed 
unanimously. 
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 
Invitation for Bids No. 121014-2 - Copper Administration Building Roof 
Replacement; award to the lowest, most responsive, responsible and 
qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the award 
contract for the winning bid.   
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that this Invitation for Bids was advertised in the Arizona 
Silver Belt newspaper on March 4, 2015, and March 11, 2015, with a bid due 
date of March 18, 2015.  A mandatory pre-bid walk-through was conducted on 
March 10, 2015.  Three bids were received by the due date, and Custom 
Roofing Company, Inc. was the lowest, most responsive and qualified bidder.  
Supervisor Marcanti advised that Custom Roofing, Inc.’s base bid is 
$129,385.45; however, he inquired about the unit pricing that was quoted to 
maintain roofing warranty for a completed roof system.  He wanted to know if 
the added unit pricing included work to be completed at a later time, such as 
plumbing and HVAC (heating, ventilation and air conditioning) with regard to 
the penetration of the roof.  He asked if the extra pricing that is included in the 
contract is for each penetration.  Mr. Stratton replied that additional roof 
penetration warranty work is included in the contract and will be used only if 
necessary and added that most of the HVAC units for the Copper 
Administration Building are on the side of the building which reduces the need 
for additional roof penetrations.  He stated that there may be a need for an 

Page 4 of 11 
 



additional roof penetration in the area of the roof under which the Information 
Technology Department will be located.  Chairman Pastor inquired as to the 
number of contractors that were present for the walk-through, to which Mr. 
Hessenius stated that he would provide the list of all of the contractors that 
attended the walk-through after the meeting.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Marcanti, seconded by Vice Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously awarded 
a contract for Invitation for Bids No. 121014-2 - Copper Administration 
Building Roof Replacement to Custom Roofing Company, Inc. with a base bid 
amount of $129,385.45, and authorized the Chairman’s signature on the 
award contract. 
 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Qualifications No. 121714 for the design-build of new metal 
steps and landings for the Payson Courthouse.   
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that a need has been identified by County staff to replace 
the steps and landings at the Payson Courthouse as the existing steps are 
made of wood and are quite old.  He added that the new steps will be 
constructed of metal.  Mr. Stratton added that although the Payson 
Courthouse is not ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) compliant, the new 
handrails and stairs will be ADA compliant.  Chairman Pastor and Mr. Stratton 
briefly discussed a few clarifying details regarding the steps and landings 
project for the Payson Courthouse.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously authorized the 
advertisement of Request for Qualifications No. 121714 for the design-build of 
new metal steps and landings for the Payson Courthouse. 
 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Proposals No. 032615 - Food and Laundry Services for the 
Gila County Detention Center to replace the expiring contract which 
provides meals and laundry services to Gila County inmates.   
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that the existing contract to provide food and laundry 
services at the Gila County Detention Center will be expiring soon; therefore, 
the Sheriff’s Office is requesting the issuance of a new Request for Proposals 
(RFP) for the provision of these services.  He added that the Finance 
Department and County Attorney’s Office staff reviewed the RFP and, as a 
result, some modifications were made.  Justin Solberg, Detention Commander, 
added that the RFP is straight-forward and he requested the Board’s approval 
to move forward with the advertisement of the RFP.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously authorized the advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 
032615 - Food and Laundry Services for the Gila County Detention Center to 
replace the expiring contract which provides meals and laundry services to Gila 
County inmates.   
 

Page 5 of 11 
 



I.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve sale for $1.00 to the Friends 
of the Tonto Natural Bridge State Park, as follows:  1) guard rails - 18 
pieces, various lengths 6 feet to 16 feet to total the 179 feet required; 
and, 2) railroad ties or guard rail posts - 19 four foot, 4 five foot, 6 six foot 
in order to improve and help maintain the Tonto Natural Bridge State 
Park.   
 
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that the requested items 
are in stock, and initially they were given to the County by ADOT (Arizona 
Department of Transportation).  The County doesn’t have a need for these 
items as they are outdated.  Mr. Stratton mentioned that the Friends of the 
Tonto National Bridge State Park also requested T-posts (steel fence posts); 
however, the County does not have T-posts in stock.  He added that Friends of 
the Tonto Natural Bridge State Park have been notified about the T-posts.  
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved sale for $1.00 to the Friends of the Tonto Natural 
Bridge State Park, as follows:  1) guard rails - 18 pieces, various lengths 6 feet 
to 16 feet to total the 179 feet required; and, 2) railroad ties or guard rail posts 
- 19 four foot, 4 five foot, 6 six foot in order to improve and help maintain the 
Tonto Natural Bridge State Park.   
 
J.  Information/Discussion/Action regarding changes in the Arizona Local 
Government Employee Benefit Trust for Gila County's employee insurance 
and benefit plans to be effective as of July 1, 2015, as follows: 1) Adopt 
Schedule A - Employee Insurance Contributions FY 2016 (attached to the 
agenda item); and, 2) approve the addition of Flexible Spending Accounts 
to the insurance and benefit options available to employees through the 
Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust.   
 
Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, stated that for fiscal year 
2016, the cost of the health insurance premiums will increase approximately 
2.25% or about $11 per month for employee only coverage and $24 per month 
for family coverage.  This is the first year that County employees are being 
asked to share the increase in premiums.  She added that in past years, 
particularly during the five years (2010-2014) when there were no base salary 
across-the-board adjustments, Gila County absorbed the increase in 
premiums.  The exception was in 2012, when all rates increased by $20 per 
month, with the opportunity for a $20 per month earned reduction for those 
employees who chose to participate in the Wellness Program’s annual Health 
Risk Assessment.  For fiscal year 2016, there will be no increases to 
deductibles or medical co-pays.  Ms. Griffin advised that the Arizona Local 
Government Employee Benefit Trust (AZGLEBT) is also adding Flexible 
Spending Accounts to its plan options to better serve the employees and 
covered dependents.  She emphasized that other government employers in the 
area have experienced 15% increases, so the 2.25% increase shows that 
AZLGEBT manages its health plan very well.  Staff recommends the following: 

Page 6 of 11 
 



increase employee contributions for medical insurance coverage by $5 per 
month for single coverage and $10 per month for family coverage for both the 
Preferred Provider Organization and the High Deductible Health Plan.  Ms. 
Griffin then briefly explained the proposed changes as stated above relating to 
County employees.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved to take action regarding 
changes in the Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust for Gila 
County's employee insurance and benefit plans to be effective as of July 1, 
2015, as follows: 1) Adopt Schedule A - Employee Insurance Contributions FY 
2016 (attached to the agenda item); and, 2) approve the addition of Flexible 
Spending Accounts to the insurance and benefit options available to employees 
through the Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust.   
 
Item 5 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of five separate Amendments to five separate Professional 
Services Contracts, which are between Gila County and various attorneys 
who are utilized by the Superior Court to increase the contract amounts 
in order to ensure that adequate funds are available through the 
remainder of the contracts, all of which expire on June 30, 2015.  
 
B.  Authorization for the Sheriff's Office electronic submission of 
a FY2016 Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control Grant Application in the 
amount of $547,411.00 which includes a 25% match requirement, to the 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission to renew grant funding that will be 
used for the salaries and benefits of the Gila County Sheriff's Office Drug, 
Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force.  
 
C.  Approval of the Gila County Rodeo Committee's request to use the 
Fairgrounds' Rodeo Arena for the Copper Dust Stampede Rodeo on May 7-
9, 2015, and the Exhibit Hall on May 7, 2015, for the Sponsors' Dinner, 
with a waiver of fees.  
 
D.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
the Gila County Rodeo Committee to serve liquor at the Copper Dust 
Stampede Rodeo at the Gila County Fairgrounds on May 7-9, 2015.  
 
E.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
Arizona State Parks Foundation to serve liquor during a fund-raiser event 
for Friends of Tonto Natural Bridge State Park, an affiliate of Arizona 
State Parks Foundation, to be held on October 3, 2015.  
 

Page 7 of 11 
 



F.  Acknowledgment of the March 2015 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Globe Regional Constable's Office. 
 
G.  Acknowledgment of the February 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Recorder's Office.  
 
H.  Acknowledgment of the March 2015 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
I.  Approval of the March 10, 2015; March 17, 2015; and March 31, 2015, 
Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.  
 
J.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of 
March 3, 2015, March 10, 2015, March 17, 2015, March 24, 2015, and 
March 31, 2015.  
 
MARCH 3, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Robin Miller – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – 02/20/15 
– General Fund – DOH 12/08/08 
2.  Jose Frayrez – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 02/26/15 – General 
Fund – DOH 04/07/14 
NEW HIRES: 
3.  Lydia Morales – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 
03/09/15 – Various Funds – Replacing Adrian Marks 
4.  Jessica Lopez – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 03/09/15 – 
General Fund – Replacing Carol Branch 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Arthur Power IV – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 
03/15/15 – Facilities Management Fund 
6.  Nicole Weaver – Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 03/08/15 
– Public Works Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
7.  Karrie Powers – Globe Regional Justice Court – From Justice Court Clerk – 
To Justice Court Clerk Senior – 03/09/15 – General Fund – Replacing Mary 
Mendez 
8.  Shayla Rincon – Globe Regional Justice Court – From Justice Court Clerk 
Associate – To Justice Court Clerk – 03/09/15 – General Fund – Replacing 
Judith Moss 
REQUEST TO POST: 
9.  Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate – Vacated by 
Shayla Rincon 
10.  County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – Vacated by Robin Miller 
11.  Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk – Vacated by Karrie 
Powers 
 

Page 8 of 11 
 



MARCH 10, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Mary Lee – Community Development – Permit Technician – 04/01/15 – 
General Fund – DOH 09/18/06 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
2.  Patricia Freeman – Community Services – Temporary WEX Participant – 
03/16/15 – Workforce Investment Act IV Fund  
3.  Kevan Ford – Community Services – Temporary WEX Participant – 
03/16/15 – Workforce Investment Act IV Fund 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
4.  Shelley McPherson – Human Resources – Director of Human Resources and 
Risk Management – 03/22/15 – General Fund 
5.  Samantha Jerome – Health and Emergency Services –Nutrition Manager – 
02/25/15 – WIC Fund 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
6.  Daniel Sterling – Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – 03/23/15 – Public 
Works Fund – Extending probationary period an additional 6 months 
REQUEST TO POST: 
7.  County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – Vacated by Robin Miller 
8.  Community Development – Permit Technician – Vacated by Mary Lee 
 
MARCH 17, 2015 
NEW HIRES: 
1.  Austin Stratton – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 03/23/15 – General 
Fund – Replacing James Payne 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
2.  Penni Padgett – Sheriff’s Office – Nurse – 03/10/15 – General Fund 
3.  Marcus Teague – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 03/28/15 – General 
Fund 
4.  Heather Lutye – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 03/17/15 – 
General (.80)/ Diversion Consequences (.20) Funds 
5.  Juliane DeSpain – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 04/07/15 – 
General Fund 
6.  Leitha Griffin – Community Services – Administrative Assistant – 03/22/15 
– Various Funds 
7.  Ramona Scales – Health and Emergency Services – Health Services Program 
Manager – 02/25/15 – Health Service Fund  
 
MARCH 24, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Guadalupe Aldape – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 03/11/15 – 
General Fund – DOH 02/23/15 
NEW HIRES: 
2.  Stephanie Hunsaker – Payson Regional Justice Court – Part-Time Justice 
Court Clerk Associate – 03/30/15 – General Fund – Replacing Sabil Fitzhugh  
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

Page 9 of 11 
 



3.  Glen Farnham – Public Works – From Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic 
Lead – To Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance Supervisor – 03/30/15 – Public 
Works Fund – Replacing Lee Austin Jones 
 
MARCH 31, 2015 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Bruce Myers – County Attorney’s Office – Detective – 04/03/15 – General 
Fund – DOH 05/13/14 
2.  Christine Lopez – Community Services – Grants Administrator (.88) – 
03/27/15 – Various Funds – DOH 08/21/84 
3.  Gabriella Virgil – Finance – Accountant – 03/20/15 – General Fund – DOH 
11/04/13 
NEW HIRES: 
4.  Natalie Lister – School Superintendent’s Office – Administrative Assistant – 
04/06/15 – General Fund – Replacing Susan O’Connor 
5.  Ruth Burke – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 
04/06/15 – General Fund – Replacing Cassie Durnan 
6.  Shaunae Casillas – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health 
Specialist – 04/13/15 – Tobacco Free Environment Fund – Replacing Lexie 
Nosie 
7.  Austin Livingood – Public Works – Road Maintenance Worker – 04/06/15 – 
Public Works Fund – Replacing Larry Perez 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
8.  K. Todd Baty – County Attorney’s Office – Detective – 04/06/15 – From Cost 
of Prosecution Reimbursement Fund – To General Fund – Replacing Bruce 
Myers 
REQUEST TO POST: 
9.  Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – Vacated by Glen Farnham 
 
K.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of March 16, 2015, 
to March 20, 2015; March 23, 2015 to March 27, 2015; and March 30, 
2015 to April 03, 2015.  
 
L.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of April 
14, 2015, and April 21, 2015.  
 
April 14, 2015 
 
$1,960,561.74 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 269417 
through 269573.   
 

Page 10 of 11 
 



April 21, 2015 
 
$446,461.04 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 269574 
through 269690.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 3-A through 3-L. 
 
Item 4 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 
Item 5 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events. No action may be taken 
on issues presented.  
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:59 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

Page 11 of 11 
 



   
ARF-2931     Consent Agenda Item      4. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  
Reporting
Period:

04/07/15, 04/14/15, 04/21/15, and 04/28/15

Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant, Human

Resources Department

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of April 7, 2015, April 14, 2015,
April 21, 2015, and April 28, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of April 7,
2015, April 14, 2015, April 21, 2015, and April 28, 2015.

Attachments
HR Summary Report
04/07/15 Human Resources Report
04/14/15 Human Resources Report
04/21/15 Human Resources Report
04/28/15 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐15 Feb‐15 Mar‐15 Apr‐15 May‐15 Jun‐15 Jul‐15 Aug‐15 Sep‐15 Oct‐15 Nov‐15 Dec‐15

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES 45 8 18 7 12

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 35 9 9 8 9

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 11 3 2 2 4

NEW VOLUNTEERS 0 0 0 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 18 6 4 4 4

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 19 2 2 10 5

OTHER ACTIONS 24 11 2 1 10

REQUEST TO POST 35 7 14 5 9

  Total Transactions 187 46 51 37 53 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
APRIL 7, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Stacey Bryant – Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 04/03/15 – Public Works Fund – 
DOH 12/26/11 

2. Jerry Farr – Public Works – Temporary Construction Project Manager – 03/30/15 – Public Works Fund 
– DOH 02/14/13 

3. Richard Stockwell- Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 03/29/15 – General Fund – DOH 02/07/11 
4. Octavio Castillo – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 04/02/15 – General Fund – DOH 10/06/14 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

5. Sidney Wells Jr. – Public Works – Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 04/13/15 – Public Works 
Fund – Replacing C. Brent Bailey 

6. Michael Lorka – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer (.48) – 04/13/15 – General Fund – Replacing 
Marilyn Hinrichs 

7. Thomas Seagraves – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 04/13/15 – General Fund – Replacing 
Jose Frayrez 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

8. Paul Larkin – Health and Emergency Services – Hearing Officer – 04/13/15 – Rabies Control Fund – 
Replacing Brian Hudson 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

9. Lee Alexander – Sheriff’s Office – From Detention Officer Sgt. – To Detention Officer Lt. – 04/01/15 – 
General Fund – Replacing Sandra Estrada 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

10. John Root – Public Works – From Fleet and Equipment Maintenance Supervisor – To Fleet and Fuel 
Supervisor – 03/30/15 – Public Works Fund – Classification and Compensation Study grade update 

11. Martina Burnam – Probation – Probation Aide – 04/13/15 – From Juvenile Probation Service Fee 
(.50)/General (.50) Funds – To General Fund – Change in fund codes 

12. Glen Farnham – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance Supervisor – 03/30/15 – Public 
Works Fund – Classification and Compensation Study salary and grade update 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

13. Public Works – Road Maintenance Worker – Vacated by Travis Wills 
14. Public Works – Design Engineer – Vacated by Jerry Farr 
15. Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – Vacated by Stacey Bryant 
 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
APRIL 14, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Nawarut Marschke – Community Services – Temporary WEX Participant – 04/01/15 – Workforce 
Investment Act IV Fund – DOH 01/05/15 

2. Julie Treadwell – Community Services – Temporary WEX Participant – 04/01/15 - Workforce 
Investment Act IV Fund – DOH 01/05/15 

3. James Hinton – Health and Emergency Services – Hearing Officer – 02/10/14 – Health Service Fund – 
DOH 03/15/12 

4. Carlos Mejia – Superior Court – Bailiff Interpreter – 06/30/15 – Law Library Fund – DOH 03/08/10 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

5. Michael Sellars – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk – 04/20/15 – General Fund – 
Replacing Karrie Powers 

6. Jessica Pringle – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate – 04/20/15 – General 
Fund – Replacing Shayla Rincon 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

7. Patricia Clark – Treasurer’s Office – Temporary Treasurer’s Services Assistant – 04/20/15 – General 
Fund – Replacing Virginia Mounce 

8. Bradley Allison – Library District – Early Literacy Community Liaison – 04/20/15 – Library District 
Grants Fund  

9. Candelaria Nosie – Library District – Early Literacy Program Coordinator – 04/20/15 – Library District 
Grants Fund – Replacing Gloria Thompson 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

10. Cassie Durnan – Superior Court Division I – Judicial Assistant – 05/26/15 – General Fund 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

11. Debra Blevins – Health and Emergency Services – From Accounting Clerk – To Administrative Clerk 
Senior – 04/20/15 - From Various Funds – To Immunization Fund – Replacing Carol Tanner 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

12. Kevan Ford – Community Services – Temporary WEX Participant – 04/06/15 – From Housing(.50)/ 
Workforce Investment Act IV(.50) Funds – To Workforce Investment Act IV Fund – Change in fund 
codes 

13. Martina Burnam – Probation – Probation Aide – 03/13/06 – General Fund – Correcting date of hire from 
03/06/06 to 03/13/06 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

14. Superior Court – Bailiff – Vacated by Carlos Mejia 
15. Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance Supervisor – Vacated by John Root 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
APRIL 21, 2015 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

1. Jessica Moul – Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 04/27/15 – Health 
Service Fund – Replacing Bianca Melford 

2. Jade Kaufman – Community Development – Permit Technician – 04/27/15 – General Fund – Replacing 
Mary Lee 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

3. John Scott – Public Works – From Automotive Service Worker – To Automotive Mechanic – 04/27/15 
– Public Works Fund – Replacing Glen Farnham 

4. Bianca Melford – Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 04/20/15 – Health 
Service Fund 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

5. Thomas Homan – Public Works – GIS System Supervisor – 06/30/14 – Public Works Fund – 
Classification and Compensation Study salary and grade update 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

6. Public Works – Automotive Service Worker – Vacated by John Scott 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
APRIL 28, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Michael Gillette – Public Works – Construction Project Manager – 06/11/15 – Public Works Fund – 
DOH 11/08/10 

2. Caryn Paige – Community Development – Building Safety Specialist – 04/22/15 – General Fund – DOH 
11/17/03 

3. Terry Dalton – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – 05/05/15 – Attorney General 
Victim Rights(.90)/General(.10) Funds – DOH 01/09/07 

4. Elois Corn – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 04/17/15 – General Fund – DOH 08/04/08 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

5. Adela Johnson – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – 05/04/15 – General Fund – Replacing 
Robin Miller 

6. Maria Lechuga – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 05/11/15 – General Fund – Replacing Kurt 
Johnson 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Nancy Rutherford – Health and Emergency Services – Health Program Manager – 03/15/15 – Various 
Funds 

8. Anthony Curtis II – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 04/14/15 – General Fund  
9. Mary Charles – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 04/14/15 – General Fund 
10. Joshua Beck – Health and Emergency Services – EM/PHEP Manager – 05/03/15 – Bio 

Terrorism(.60)/General(.40) Funds 
 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

11. Hortencia Lovin – Health and Emergency Services – Public Health Nurse – 01/26/15 – Health Service 
Fund – Classification and Compensation Study Grade update 

12. Lucinda Campbell – Health and Emergency Services – Public Health Nurse – 10/15/14 – Various Funds 
– Classification and Compensation Study Grade update 

13. Dezirae Williams – Health and Emergency Services – PHEP Coordinator – 04/20/15 – From Bio 
Terrorism Program Fund – To Public Health in Action Fund – Change in fund code 

14. Sandra Pena – Health and Emergency Services – Communicable Disease Specialist – 04/20/15 – From 
Bio Terrorism(.40)/Public Health in Action(.60) Funds – To Bio Terrorism Fund – Change in fund code 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

15. Assessor’s Office – Assessor’s Aide – Vacated by Wendy Irish 
16. Public Works – Construction Project Manager – Vacated by Michael Gillette 
17. Community Development – Building Safety Specialist – Vacated by Caryn Paige 

 



   
ARF-3138     Consent Agenda Item      4. O.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/05/2015  
Reporting
Period:

April 10, 2015; and April 17, 2015

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 4-10-15; and 4-17-15.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of April 6, 2015, to April 10,
2015; and April 13, 2015 to April 17, 2015.

Attachments
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under 50,000 for
Weeks Ending 4-10-15 and 4-17-15
Contract P101347 for Canon CR-190
Service Agreement 040215-Rodriguez Constructions
Service Agreement 031615-Dutchaire LLC
Service Agreement No. 022515-Kino Floors
Service Agreement No. 031215-1-Atwell LLC
Amendment No. 3-Empowerment Systems



  
Page 1 

 
  

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
 
April 6, 2015 to April 10, 2015 

Number/Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

P101347 
DataBank IMX 

 

 
Proposal No. P101347 
Support Maintenance 

agreement for CANON/CR-
190 Check Scanner  

 

 
$365.25 

 
6-27-15 to 6-26-16 

 
 4-8-15 

 
Expires 

 
Support Maintenance for Canon/CR190 
check scanner. The check scanner 
enables the Treasurer’s office to scan and 
electronically make deposits to JP 
Morgan Chase.  The Canon/CR190 was 
purchased in June 2014 to replace the 
outdated Canon/CR180 the Treasurer’s 
Office was using.  As the maintenance 
agreement had already been paid in full 
for the CR180 prior to the Treasurer’s 
Office purchasing the CR190, Databank 
has issued and applied a $231.75 to this 
years’ maintenance agreement for the 
CR190. 
 

 
040215 

Rodriguez 
Constructions, Inc.  

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

040215 
URRD Work HH#4359 

 

 

 
$2,000.00 

 

 
4-8-15 to 6-30-15 

 
4-8-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor will replace a section of 
roofing, replace four outlets and install 
one 100 amp service panel. 
 

 
  031615 

Dutchaire, LLC  

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

031615 
HVAC Unit for GED 

Classroom at Gila County 
Jail 

 

 
$4,151.80 

 
4-17-15 to 4-16-16 

 
4-8-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor will furnish and install one 
1.5 ton 16 seer Mini Split AC unit in the 
Gila County Jail Classroom.  This will be 
paid four out of ESA funds. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
Page 2 

 
  

 
 
April 13, 2015 to April 17, 2015 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

022515 
Kino Floors and 

Interiors 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

022515 
Clerk of the Court Vault 

Flooring 
Gila County Courthouse 

 

 
$1,569.36 

 
4-15-15 to 6-30-15 

 
4-15-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor to install and seal off the 
wood flooring that was exposed when 
the new shelves were installed. 
 

 
031215-1 

Atwell, LLC 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

031215-1 
2 Groundwater Monitoring 

Pumps for the Russell 
Gulch Landfill 

 

 

 
$13,891.52 

 

 
4-15-15 to 6-30-15 

 
4-15-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor to furnish and install two 
groundwater monitoring micropurge 
bladder pumps at the Russell Gulch 
Landfill. 
 

 
030513-1 

Empowerment Systems, 
Inc.  

 

 
Amendment No. 3 to Lease 
Agreement No. 030513-1 

Gila County REPAC 
Consortium 

 

 

 
$20.00 per hr. 

Based on actual 
time the space 
is utilized by 

REPAC 
representatives 

 

 
3-1-15 to 6-30-15 

 
4-15-15 

 
N/A 

 
Due to the dissolution of the Gila/Pinal 
Local Workforce Investment area 
effective July 1, 2015, Gila County will no 
longer need to lease the office space from 
Empowerment Systems. 
 

 




































































































	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Resolution No. 15-05-01-Designating Pinal Canyon Road & Hermosa Vista Road as Country Dirt Roads
	Att1_Resolution No. 15-05-01
	Att2_Pinal Canyon and Hermosa Vista Country Dirt Road Easements
	 Item 2.B. - Resolution No. 15-05-02 Authorizing the Renewal of a Water Franchise to Bonita Creek Land and Homeowners' Association
	Att1_Resolution No. 15-05-02
	Att2_Bonita Creek - Public Hearing Notice
	Att3_Bonita Creek - Water Franchise Application
	 Item 2.C. - Old County Inn Restaurant Liquor License Application, Order No. LL-15-01
	Att1_Application
	Att2_Interoffice Memos
	Att3_Sheriff's Interoffice Memo and Affidavit of Posting
	 Item 3.A. - Proclamation No. 2015-08
	Att1_2015-08 Proclamation
	Att2_Globe Purple Heart Recipients
	Att3_Payson Purple Heart Recipients
	Att4_Press Release
	Att5_Military Order of the Purple Heart Letter
	 Item 3.B. - Donation for Gila County Christmas Bike Program 
	Att1_Letter and Check
	 Item 3.C. - Resolution No. 15-05-03 authorizing the execution of an Intergovernmental Services Agreement between Sheriff's Office and Tonto Apache Tribe
	Att1_Resolution No. 15-05-03
	Att2_Intergovernmental Service Agreement 
	Att3_Tonto Apache Tribe Resolution No. 15-05
	Att4_Legal Explanation
	 Item 3.D. - Department of Homeland Security 2015 Grant Program Application-Communications Upgrade
	Att1_Grant Program Application 
	Att2_Equipment Quote
	 Item 3.E. - Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement with Arizona Dept. of Economic Security
	Att1_Amend No 2 DE14-055408
	Att2_Amend No 1 DE14-055408
	Att3_WIA IGA DE14-055408
	 Item 3.F. - Lease Agreement with Payson Unified School District
	Att1_Lease agreement
	 Item 3.G. - Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement No. 022414 with the City of Globe
	Att1_Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement 022414 with City of Globe
	Att2_Intergovernmental Agreement No. 022414 with City of Globe
	Att3_Legal Explanation
	 Item 3.H. - Contract Award for Request for Proposals No. 110514 - Janitorial Service for Southern Gila County
	Att1_Request for Proposals No. 110514
	Att2_Bid Tab Spreadsheet
	Att3_Contract No. 110514-JaniServ Inc.
	Att4_Marsden West bid
	Att5_WCD Enterprises bid
	Att6_Carnation Building Service bid-clarified and revised
	Att7_Clarification requested email to Carnation Building Service
	Att8_Carnation Building Service bid
	Att9_RFP Issue List
	Att10_Walk Through Sign In Sheet
	Att11_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 3.I. - Request to Advertise Invitation for Bid No. 040615 Colcord Road Paving Project
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_Invitation to Bid No. 040615
	 Item 4.A. - FY 2016 Family Counseling Program
	Att1_15-05-04 Board Resolution
	 Item 4.B. - Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS13-040496) for  HIV Care Services
	Att1_Amendment No. 3
	Att2_Amendment No. 2
	Att3_Amendment No. 1
	Att4_Original contract
	 Item 4.C. - FFY2016 SNAP Community Organization Partner Application with Arizona Community Action Association
	Att1_FFY2016 SNAP Community Organization Parternship Application
	Att2_FFY2015 SNAP Community Organization Partnership Application 
	 Item 4.D. - Modification No. 4 to the Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004
	Att1_Exhibit A-FY2015 Cooperative Law Enforcement Annual Operating Plan and Financial Plan
	Att2_Modification No. 4 to FS Grant_Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004
	Att3_Modification No. 3 to FS Grant_Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004
	Att4_Modification No. 2 to FS Grant_Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004
	Att5_Modification No. 1to FS Grant_Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004
	Att6_Original FS Grant_Agreement No. 11-LE-11031200-004
	Att7_Legal Explanation
	 Item 4.E. - FY 2016 Letter of Agreement Number 2015-04 between Gila County Sheriff's Office and U.S. Department of Justice Drug Enforcement Administration 
	Att1_Letter of Agreement No. 2015-04 with U.S. Dept. of Justice DEA
	Att2_Legal Explanation
	 Item 4.F. - Sidewinders Tavern & Grill Application for a Temporary Extension of Premises_Patio Permit
	Att1_Sidewinders Tavern and Grill
	Att2_Interoffice Memo
	 Item 4.G. - Gila County Cooperative Extension Advisory Board Appointments
	Att1_Cooperative Extension Advisory Board Member List
	Att2_Recommendation Letter for Mike Burket
	 Item 4.H. - Fee Waiver Request for Use of Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall for the Globe High School Junior_Senior Prom
	Att1_Globe Prom Letter
	 Item 4.I. - Canyon Water Improvement District New Board Member Appointments
	Att1_01-19-15 Meeting Minutes
	Att2_Oath of Office
	Att3_ARS 48-1012
	 Item 4.J. - March 2015
	Att1_Clerk of Court Report March 2015
	 Item 4.K. - March 2015
	Att1_Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2015
	 Item 4.L. - March 2015
	Att1_March 2015 Monthly Report
	2015 march financial
	jp 0404 march 2015

	 Item 4.M. - April 21-28, 2015
	Att1_BOS 04-28-15 Meeting Minutes
	Att2_BOS 04-21-15 Meeting Minutes
	 Item 4.N. - 04_07_15, 04_14_15, 04_21_15, and 04_28_15
	Att1_HR Summary Report
	Att2_04_07_15 Human Resources Report
	Att3_04_14_15 Human Resources Report
	Att4_04_21_15 Human Resources Report
	Att5_04_28_15 Human Resources Report
	 Item 4.O. - April 10, 2015_ and April 17, 2015
	Att1_Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under 50,000 for Weeks Ending 4-10-15 and 4-17-15
	Att2_Contract P101347 for Canon CR-190
	Att3_Service Agreement 040215-Rodriguez Constructions
	Att4_Service Agreement 031615-Dutchaire LLC
	Att5_Service Agreement No. 022515-Kino Floors
	Att6_Service Agreement No. 031215-1-Atwell LLC
	Att7_Amendment No. 3-Empowerment Systems

